GIORDANO
o k//( n l;‘[a W’f\jv{» rnfr}ﬂ\r;
WEROE AR '

ERWNERERRQF

Giordano International Limited Annual Report 2010 & #R

(Stock Code B 1X35%: 709)



ANNUAL REPORT 2010 #

)

B &

CONTENTS

TEMBEEBRE

Ten-Year Financial and Operation Highlights
NEER

Corporate Information

IFmEE

Chairman’s Statement

EREzmiut ko

Management Discussion and Analysis
EERARBEEAEBBHN

Directors and Senior Management Profiles
PEERRESE

Corporate Governance Report
EEgnEE

Directors’ Report

BUZEMMmESE

Independent Auditor’s Report

B HMEX

Consolidated Income Statement

aUtEE A&

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BEBER

Balance Sheets

afftREanEx

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BB BHE
Statements of Changes In Equity

B R A

Notes to the Financial Statements

BREEH

Share Option Information

REEDEER
Information for Investors

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL
f& m )

30

34

56

62

64

65

66

68

70

73

143

148

LIMITED
R o~ &



THEMBERXIBERE

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

(G5 K EEETREMN)

(In HK$ millions unless otherwise specified)

EF

EF=E

R (a1 k2)
RN E (Ma1k2)
R LR (Hfat1k2)

Turnover

Gross profit

Gross margin

Operating profit (notes 1 & 2)

Operating margin (notes 1 & 2)

Profit attributable to shareholders (notes 7 & 2)

SHERIRE (Ha1k2) Return on sales (notes 1 & 2)

Be RRITEFRBITER Cash and bank balances less bank loans
BEES (Wit1) Working capital (note 1)

BEHBE (HWiH2) Total assets (note 2)

BEEE (Wi2) Total liabilities (note 2)

BRRES (Hi2) Shareholders’ funds (note 2)

BREBN-EKGEMW) (HF1Xk2)
SR HRE CE)
BRERFHRE CEL)
BRRBBE (E)

BRE AR S GEM)

Earnings per share — Basic (HK cents) (notes 1 & 2)
Interim dividend per share (HK cents)

Special interim dividend per share (HK cents)

Final dividend per share (HK cents)

Special final dividend per share (HK cents)

FHEERBRBE (Hit1Rk2)
FHBRRESQEE (HF1Rk2)
FEHHEZRELX (BH) (HiE3)
MELLE (FH) (HaE1)

Return on average total assets (notes 1 & 2)

Return on average shareholders’ funds (notes 1 & 2)
Inventory turnover on sales (days) (note 3)

Current ratio (times) (note 1)

mizRBERN#E (TK)

Number of shares outstanding (in thousands)

[EREESE: Market capitalization
FImEE (Hitd) Number of stores (note 4)
EREEMM Directly managed stores in Group markets
GeEEsfe ] Franchised stores in Group markets
EEFMMAY Group markets total
FREREMSAW (fas)  Non-group markets total ote5)
ZIRFIT R Total stores worldwide
Kiat - Notes:
1. 2004F 2 &FEFRMHKAST? [HHE | RHKFRS2 [k 1. Figures from 2004 are adjusted for the adoption of HKAS 17 “Leases” and HKFRS 2
SRS R B 2 e A E A R2005F1 41 H 8 “Share-based Payment” which are effective for accounting years commencing on or
K E R 2 @51 FEAER after January 1, 2005

2. 2002F 2 81 F 5 FIRASSAP12 [Frid# ] (#£3T)m 2. Figures for 2002 are adjusted for the adoption of SSAP 12 “IncomeTaxes” (revised)

TEH % Z &5 B ERIR2003F 151 H B U # 152 which is effective for accounting years commencing on or after January 1, 2003
BiTFEE AN

3. FHRAZGFERZFEZFHFEI65H 3. Inventory held at year end divided by full year turnover times 365 days

4. FHEAHF 4. Figures as at year end

5 HEBEEHAENSNG FEBELNGIRE=ZZHFEERA 5. Stores in markets operated by joint ventures (South Korea and Middle East) and
BEZ MBI third-party franchisees

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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TFEFMBREIBERAE
TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
4,233 5,048 4,950 4,372 4,413 4,003 3,389 3,588 3,479
2,175 2,439 2,357 2,178 2,243 2,035 1,634 1,677 1,544
51.4% 48.3% 47.6% 49.8% 50.8% 50.8% 48.2% 46.7% 44.4%
320 325 384 376 518 491 364 385 372
7.6% 6.4% 7.8% 8.6% 11.7% 12.3% 10.7% 10.7% 10.7%
288 311 295 205 406 387 266 328 377
6.8% 6.2% 6.0% 4.7% 9.2% 9.7% 7.8% 9.1% 10.8%
750 454 474 665 827 689 784 614 494
1,047 742 736 862 1,029 861 911 861 798
2,810 2,557 2,935 2,984 2,970 2,717 2,555 2,419 2,371
624 651 909 894 755 684 685 564 625
2,118 1,855 1,927 1,987 2,122 1,954 1,799 1,794 1,695
19.30 20.80 19.80 13.80 27.50 26.70 18.50 22.80 26.30
2.00 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.00 1.50 4.50 4.50

- 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.50 3.00 - -

7.00 3.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
7.00 - 10.00 156.00 15.00 13.00 12.00 10.00 5.00
11.1% 11.5% 10.3% 7.3% 15.2% 15.9% 11.8% 14.7% 17.3%
14.5% 16.4% 15.1% 10.0% 19.9% 20.6% 14.8% 18.8% 23.2%
25 23 33 35 31 30 24 26 30
3.0 2.3 1.9 2.1 2.6 2.4 2.5 2.8 2.3

1,491,647 1,491,647 1,491,613 1,490,853 1,489,631 1,450,692 1,442,199 1,440,345 1,436,029

3,431 2,909 5,578 6,336 6,480 7,072 5,192 4,393 4,954
1,015 1,036 1,000 962 914 811 550 473 456
602 512 482 441 4283 441 499 492 440
1,617 1,548 1,482 1,403 1,337 1,252 1,049 965 896
497 458 4183 366 357 3383 314 291 263
2,114 2,006 1,895 1,769 1,694 1,585 1,363 1,256 1,159
6. 20084 | & Placita - 6. Disposal of Placita in 2008:
R2008F FEFHERFEX KR ENE L A In 2008, the Group disposed of its principal garment manufacturing subsidiary
Placita Holdings Ltd ([Placita]) o 7% [#7T £ 7% Placita Placita Holdings Ltd (“Placita’). The Group’s 2008 results excluding Placita are
Z2008FAEAEAEIT - summarized below:
(BFRIEEIN U HEE T BEN) (In HK$ millions unless otherwise specified) 2008
=R Turnover 4,710
EF) Gross profit 2,362
ESIES Gross margin 50.1%
#5205 F Operating profit 330
FEpinR | S Operating margin 7.0%
% 3R 4 s Profit attributable to shareholders 290
6 B 3R K Return on sales 6.2%

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(Chairman and Chief Executive)
MAH Chuck On, Bernard

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Barry John BUTTIFANT
KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JpP
LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp
Professor LEUNG Kwok

GROUP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN

COMPANY SECRETARY

NG Wai Man

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Barry John BUTTIFANT
KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JpP
LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp
Professor LEUNG Kwok

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Barry John BUTTIFANT
LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp
Professor LEUNG Kwok

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

MAH Chuck On, Bernard

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

LAWYERS

Hong Kong lawyers
Robertsons
King & Wood

PRC lawyers
King & Wood

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Abacus Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

BNP Paribas

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
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Dear Shareholders:

The global financial crisis of 2008 — 2009 challenged the Group to
swiftly implement measures to rationalize expenses, build cash reserves
and ensure financial stability. It also afforded us the opportunity to
focus on the fundamentals of being good merchants. Your Company’s
performance in 2010 was the result of managerial discipline and
operational nimbleness from years of practice.

The first half of 2010 saw the galvanization of the Group’s margins and
profits, with gross margin rising by 9.7 percentage points to 57.9%. In
the second half we turned our attention to driving faster sales growth
by way of increased marketing and expanded franchising activities in
China Mainland. Second half sales growth accelerated from 6.7% to
16.3% and profits rose by 39.6% in response. 2010 full year gross
and operating margins were 57.7% and 14.7% respectively while profit
attributable to shareholders rose by 86.5% to HK$537 million. The
results are all record highs since the Group’s listing on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange in 1991.

2011 is a watershed year and will see the Group’s long term strategies
intensified:

1. Optimizing gross and operating profit margins through continued
improvements in supply chain relationships and business
processes.

2. Strengthening Group brands with fresh, new marketing and
merchandising programs aimed at differentiation.

3. Expediting China Mainland expansion primarily through franchising
reinforced with marketing support.

Our main challenge in 2011 is to maintain our margins in the face of
rising inflationary cost pressure in our supply chain. We will forge ever
closer collaboration with our strategic supply chain partners to achieve
additional efficiencies and limit the impact of rising raw material and
other input costs.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #
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TREBRESE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Well-conceived and executed merchandising and marketing programs
contributed to our strong performance. We successfully leveraged
Giordano’s core strengths of “quality”, “value” and “innovation” to
lift gross margin by 6.3 percentage points to 57.7%. To sustain
momentum, the Group will continue to invest in product design and
development to keep the supply pipeline filled with attractive and
innovative merchandise that can command a premium in the market.
We will support these new product initiatives with eye-catching,
impactful marketing campaigns to increase awareness and to reinforce
brand equity and pricing power.

We promised a quicker pace for our expansion in China Mainland.
In 2010 the Group added 171 stores and saw sales increasing by
15.6% in the second half and 9.1% for the full year. With increased
investment in marketing, in 2011 our target is to achieve double digit
sales and profit growth and to add 300 stores with the lion’s share
coming from franchising in second tier and smaller cities.

In summary, your Company sees positive trends heading into 2011
despite inflationary pressures in the supply chain and rising rental
costs. Sales and gross profit trends have held steady, and the first two
months in 2011 have seen the Group achieving year-on-year sales and
gross profit gains in the mid-to-high teens. Nevertheless, we will remain
vigilant to both predictable and unpredictable threats while responsive
to growth opportunities.

Lastly, | would like to thank you, our shareholders, for your unwavering
belief in Giordano’s vision and its philosophy of putting our customers
first and believing the profits will follow. | refer you to the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section for a detailed analysis of the Group’s
2010 results and a more in-depth discussion of the outlook for 2011.

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman

March 24, 2011

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ XA BER 22 S
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

rEBEKEXRE

RESULTS OF GROUP OPERATIONS

Group Operations

3
3 Turnover
7 Gross profit
ey Gross margin
EBITDA EBITDA

EBITDAT| % EBITDA margin

LEEF Operating profit

@EEAE  Operating margin

Profit attributable
REEEEF  to shareholders

HEEBE  Return on sales

FEEREHE (LB EETREN)

EEERERN

20105 £ 5 - REEE TR EE2009F T ¥ F
BSZBREF - EREEHE - ASEFE B Mo E
REHEEENHZEE ERREERKE  ATS
REARSI N mHEERSFBEZH
REBEHEZHEFUEREIBE 22 MBHERER
fRsEaTEl - bR B B AERE L F 2 EFKREA
9.7 E D BEES7.9% (20094 £¥4F :48.2% ) * EF
EF28.2% ; ifn & Z 58 RIE 20094 [A] HA1E £6.7% °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

=/ D BE B AR

o

3

i TH¥E tx%

Full Year Second Half First Half
Bm #m 2m
(H2) (H2) (i)
Increase Increase Increase
2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
4,233 11.8% 2,230 16.3% 2,003 6.7%
2,175 25.6% 1,210 23.5% 965 28.2%
6.3 pp/ 3.3 pp/ 9.7 pp/
51.4% A7E 54.3% ANE 48.2% ANE
487 77.8% 350 50.0% 137 148.9%
6.8 pp/ 4.5 pp/ 9.2 pp/
11.5% ANE 16.7% BNE 6.8% ANE
320 117.2% 254 66.9% 66 310.6%
7.1 pp/ 4.9 pp/ 9.4 pp/
7.6% ANH 11.4% A% 3.3% R
288 86.5% 240 39.6% 48 320.8%
4.6 pp/ 2.1 pp/ 7.1 pp/
6.8% BRH 10.8% R 2.4% R

E\uu"ﬁﬁ%’

Group Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)

Turnover and Gross Profit

In the first half of 2010, the Group focused on reinforcing the margin
gains that it made in the second half of 2009. On the supply side, the
Group strengthened cooperation with strategic supply chain partners
to lower product costs and fill the product pipeline with attractive new
high volume and high margin merchandise. At the same time the Group
rolled out new non-price-driven marketing and promotion programs.
These initiatives helped to increase the Group’s first half gross margin
by 9.7 percentage points to 57.9% (1H09: 48.2%) and its gross profit
by 28.2% with sales growth of 6.7% over the same period in 2009.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THF AEELIENEFRMTEEEER -
ABRHNERERRNEBELOEEREER YIRS
TSRz ie BEENEXFENSERER
X (EEMAX])37.2%% T FiE— S
69.4% WRIREBEREELERTERTM
EEEEBEREAMMBER LXF26.7% £
ETH¥F216.3% EF XA #FFEENS7.6% "
S2010F NHEF 2 EF|IER235% - PEAELEE
BEMEFFHRA18% AFRBRETFF
15.6% @2010F R A E2FEXER LELFEK
9.1%  WHE2010F EERE 2 BRI

BIERHA - AEBER20105 2 XBHEMN1.8%%
47 311878 7T (20094 : 42.33(8 B 7L ) - E FI3E M0
25.6%F27.31BABTL -2 F £ ERBE7.7%
£2009F EF6.3EAE D -

REBH KEBFRATANE
TEREESE A ZER(EBITDA)

B

RMREHEEER  NEEEINEERE 54.3%
£8300& B L H2010F & ¥ % 2 1.8%
(2009 & 1 {HEL T 1.3%) ° BRI BEE
BEREENEMEERAT  SE2HER LN
4.3% £ 89 BB 152010 F & X% 2 18.8%
(2009 % : 8.53 {8/ IL - (hE R 2 20.2%) * M
BINAN (BEESHekEERREER) A| LA
14.5% £ 7.57 {8870 ' 1§ 2010 FEEFE 2 16.0%
(2009 F:6.61 BB (H&EFFE 2 15.6%) ° AR
REER 2008 F £ 2009 F 2 RS B S AR ) BR 1%
| PITHIESR M ERT - ITERZE MR 10. 8% =
9,900 & 7T (2009 F:1.11 B8T) - BEM S -
REB 2 KEEFTILINI% = 21.59 8%
(2009 F : 19.65 BB L) °

EUg A _EF =123 T (20094 < 1.1E87T)

TEARERNEREAEEELETHERS
P BTt
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In the second half we turned our attention to driving faster sales
growth. To capitalize on the recovery in consumer confidence
and spending in the region, we followed up the 37.2% increase in
advertising and promotion (“A&P”) outlays during the first half with a
further 69.4% increase in the second half, at the same time maintaining
discipline on pricing and markdowns. Sales growth accelerated from
6.7% in the first half to 16.3% in the second half in response while
gross margin remained steady at 57.6%, resulting in a 23.5% increase
in gross profit in the second half of 2010. The strong performance is
driven by faster growth in China Mainland which saw modest sales
growth in the first half of 1.8% accelerating to 15.6% in the second
half, resulting in a 9.1% year-on-year increase in Mainland sales for
2010 as a whole.

Overall, 2010 saw the Group increasing its sales by 11.8% to
HK$4,731 million (2009: HK$4,233 million) and its gross profit by
25.6% to HK$2,731 million. Full year gross margin was 57.7%, up by
6.3 percentage points against 2009.

Operating Expenses, Operating Profit and Earnings before
Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amortization Expense
(EBITDA)

To support its push for faster top line growth, the Group increased
its A&P spending by 54.3% to HK$83 million or 1.8% of 2010 sales
(2009:
control other operating expenses: the Group’s rental expense grew by
4.3% to HK$890 million to account for 18.8% of 2010 sales (2009:
HK$853 million or 20.2% of sales) while staff cost (including director

1.83% of sales). Otherwise, Management continued to tightly

emoluments and employee share option charges) rose by 14.5% to
HK$757 million or 16.0% of 2010 sales (2009: HK$661 million or
15.6% of sales). Depreciation expenses decreased by 10.8% to HK$99 million
(2009: HK$111 million) as a result of the Group’s tight controls on
shop openings and renovations during the 2008-09 global financial
crisis. Overall, the Group’s operating expenses increased by 9.9% to
HK$2,159 million (2009: HK$1,965 million).

Other income increased to HK$123 million (2009: HK$110 million)
mainly due to an increase in exchange gain arising from the
appreciation of the currencies in the region compared to the
Hong Kong Dollar.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ XA BER 22 S
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEHMRERN EARNEEFRUIEG A E REE
A - FEEERSEEET A am - AE L¥F
ZHHRIE  TEF ZEBITDAE K50.0% %
525 L (2009F : 3.5 B L) KB T F
2 m IR R B 1 R66.9% E4.2418 8 T
(2009 : 2.54B B TT) - ERAEBFRILH20094F
THFRREE  TEFEME2009F 2 FLEH
M279.4% 2010 THF2KELEBE -

PHEBEGTHE A& BE ZEBITDAE R77.8% %
8.66fB8 7T (20094 : 4.87BE L) - £z 2 F K
% A IR R 38 A3, 75 BB T E£6.95(B 8 T &K
20095 8115 2 3. 2B B T &35 © 20106 2 &8 & ;m 1)
EKR/14T7% REFHL7TAEE DB

IR SR P46 52 R

20105 » AN & B 2 B R FE A i B /5. 37E B 7T
B 25 F 18 186.5% (20094 : 2.88B B L) - FRE
AR 2EEERF DB _EFE36.08 1l 535.978
(2009% : BREA R ZEEERFIF£219.381(L)

REBEEESE AR ZKB % EF TR LN
1,8008 % 7L 25,600 87T, (20094F : 3,8008#7T) °
REBHRRBEQAT ZBRBE RN ERMAGZIEE
1,2008 78 7T ° (20094F : 600 BT ) °

ERAEENRTEKBEHBATS WREHES
81,3008 8 7T °

20105 2 A5 B f 32 781.8 14848 7T (20094 :
6,4008 B )  EM B ER26.1% R & F R H
S H6.018 & o 2 (20094 : 20.1% ) ° It 1 i 2
FAZ S B BEEE A B K BE M B A 7] Rt & F e
Z I BEE L 1,8008 7 T 2 — X M E B IE B
B - WA FEZERE AEECEERER
23.5% X ERAMERm 2 MIH 2 ia B R B Frig
mimigs e
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The combination of higher top line growth and effective controls on
product and operating costs enabled the Group to achieve greater
positive operating leverage. As a result, the Group managed to follow
up on its strong first half performance by achieving a 50.0% increase in
second half EBITDA to HK$525 million (2009: HK$350 million). Similarly,
the Group’s second half operating profit increased by 66.9% to
HK$424 million (2009: HK$254 million). This is a particularly noteworthy
achievement as the second half of 2009 marked the beginning of the
Group’s recovery, accounting for 79.4% of 2009 full year operating
profit.

For the year as a whole, the Group’s EBITDA rose by 77.8% to
HK$866 million (2009: HK$487 miillion). Similarly, the Group’s full year operating
profit increased by HK$375 million to HK$695 million, more than double
the HK$320 million recorded in 2009. 2010 operating margin at 14.7%
was 7.1 percentage points higher than last year.

Profit Attributable to Shareholders

The Group’s 2010 profit attributable to shareholders was HK$537 million,
up by 86.5% compared to the previous year (2009: HK$288 million).
Basic and fully diluted earnings per share increased to 36.0 HK cents
and 35.9 HK cents respectively (2009: basic and fully diluted EPS were
the same at 19.3 HK cents).

After-tax profit contribution from the Group’s South Korea joint venture
increased by HK$18 million to HK$56 million (2009: HK$38 million).
After-tax profit contribution from our Middle East associate doubled to
HK$12 million (2009: HK$6 million).

During the year the Group also completed its exit from Japan, incurring
a HK$13 million loss on disposal.

The Group’s 2010 income taxation expense was HK$181 million (2009:
HK$64 million), resulting in an effective tax rate’ of 26.1% which is
6.0 percentage points higher than the same period last year (2009:
20.1%). The increase is attributable to a HK$18 million one-off increase
in deferred tax provision for withholding tax that would be payable on
remittance of accumulated earnings of our subsidiaries in the Mainland.
In the absence of such provisions, the Group’s effective tax rate would
have been 23.5%, with the increase arising from increased profit
contribution from markets with higher tax regimes.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #
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Cash Flow from Operations

In line with Group’s improved operational performance, cash generated
from operations increased by HK$296 million to HK$715 million
(2009: HK$419 million). Total taxes paid increased by HK$67 million to
HK$103 million (2009: HK$36 million). Net cash inflow from operating
activities increased by HK$228 million to HK$610 million (2009:
HK$382 million) as a result.

With the resumption of our normal store opening and refurbishment
programs, the Group’s 2010 capital expenditure increased by
HK$32 million to HK$91 million (2009: HK$59 million). However, capital
expenditure as a percentage of net cash inflow from operating activities
stayed more or less unchanged at 14.9% (2009: 15.4%) during the
period, reflecting Management’s continued close monitoring. However,
the increase in time deposits with terms longer than three months was
HK$128 million in 2010 compared to HK$232 million in 2009, thus
offsetting the increase in capital expenditure. As a result, the net cash
outflow from investing activities actually decreased by HK$45 million to
HK$223 million (2009: HK$268 million).

The Group increased both its 2009 final and 2010 interim dividends. As
such, dividends paid in 2010 totalled HK$336 million, HK$261 million
more than the HK$75 million paid in 2009, which largely explains the
HK$260 million increase in the Group’s cash outflow from financing
activities to HK$341 million in 2010 (2009: HK$81 million).

GROUP FINANCIAL POSITION

On December 31, 2010, the Group had total cash and bank balances
of HK$1,062 million (2009: HK$824 million), of which HK$374 million
were on fixed term deposits with maturity over three months from the
date of deposit. After offsetting against outstanding bank loans which
totalled HK$84 million (2009: HK$74 million), year-end net cash and
bank balances amounted to HK$978 million (2009: HK$750 million).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ XA BER 22 S
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Management built up stocks in anticipation of a strong Chinese New
Year, causing 2010 closing inventories to increase by HK$110 million
to HK$404 million (2009: HK$294 million) and inventory turnover on
sales? to increase to 31 days (2009: 25 days). The Group’s inventory
turnover on sales ratio has since come back down to 22 days as at the
end of February, well within the 30-day range considered prudent by
Management. Trade and other receivables increased by HK$186 million
to HK$597 million as at December 31, 2010 (2009: HK$411 million),
mainly due to the reclassification of HK$100 million in rental deposits
receivable related to the Causeway Bay flagship store from non-current
to current assets.

Current liabilities rose by HK$192 million to HK$719 million
(2009: HK$527 million).
HK$129 million increase in trade and other payables to HK$548 million

The increase was attributable to a

(2009: HK$419 million) which included an increased provision for staff
performance bonus and a HK$53 million increase in taxation payable to
HK$87 million (2009: HK$34 million) reflecting the recovery in business.

The Group had financing facilities totalling HK$556 million at the end
of the year (2009: HK$581 million), of which HK$66 million had been
drawn down in the normal course of business and were outstanding as
at year end (2009: HK$57 million).

On December 31, 2010, the Group had total liabilities of
HK$827 million (2009: HK$624 million), of which HK$108 million
consisted entirely of deferred tax liabilities that were non-current
(2009:
deferred tax liabilities of HK$82 million). Shareholders’ equity was
HK$2,408 million (2009: HK$2,118 million).

total non-current liabilities of HK$97 million including

The Group’s gearing® remained unchanged at 3.5%, whereas its current
and quick ratios decreased slightly to 2.9 times (2009: 3.0 times) and
2.4 times (2009: 2.4 times) respectively. With a cash surplus and a
strong balance sheet, the Group is solidly placed to fund future growth
and pay dividends to investors.

With the resumption of our normal store opening and refurbishment
programs, the Group’s 2010 capital expenditure increased by HK$32 million
to HK$91 million (2009: HK$59 million). Management estimates capital
expenditure in 2011 to range between HK$100 million and HK$150 million
as the Group intensify store expansion, especially in the Mainland.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #
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OPERATIONS REVIEW
Retail & Distribution Segment

In light of the Group’s strategic focus on growing its franchising
operations in the Mainland, same store sales calculation has been
changed to include franchised outlets in addition to self-operated
stores. As such, same store sales growth figures for 2009 have been
restated to facilitate comparison?. Sales per sq. ft. statistics for the
Mainland have also been restated to be consistent with this approach?®.
We have also started to measure “Total Brand Sales” when analyzing
our Mainland operations. This metric, which comprises retail sales in
both self-operated and franchised outlets, is intended to provide a
fuller and more accurate picture of the Group’s performance and an
improved alignment with our internal measurement of network growth.

Highlights

Management’s continued focus on controlling sourcing costs and
limiting markdowns resulted in the Retail & Distribution segment’s
gross margin increasing to 60.8% in 2010, up by 7.2 percentage points
against last year (2009: 53.6%). Supported by increased marketing,
sales growth accelerated from 6.9% in the first half to 14.3% in the
second half. For the year as a whole, Retail & Distribution turnover
grew by 10.8% to HK$4,337 million (2009: HK$3,913 million)
while gross profit increased by 25.7% to HK$2,635 million (2009:
HK$2,097 million). Continued restraint of operating expenses enabled the
Retail & Distribution segment to increase its operating profit by 146.6%
to HK$683 million (2009: HK$277 million) and its operating margin by
8.6 percentage points to 15.7% (2009: 7.1%) in 2010.

2E
Full Year
2009
EL Turnover 3,013
FEHER  Same store sales’ (4.5%)
7 Gross profit 2,007
ey Gross margin 53.6%
Yyl Operating profit 277
&A% Operating margin 7.1%

T b
Second Half First Half

£ £ B
("4) (A%) (%)
Increase Increase Increase
(Decrease) 2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
10.8% 2,080 14.3% 1,833 6.9%
N/A/ Flat/ N/A/ N/A/
TER oA TER (9.6%) TER
25.7% 1,179 22.2% 918 30.1%
7.2 pp/ 3.9 pp/ 10.8 pp/
BAH 56.7% BO8 50.1% BOH
146.6% 251 64.5% 26 938.5%
8.6 pp/ 5.3 pp/ 12.4 pp/
BAH 12.1% ARE 1.4% BA%

FERDHEDBEFHE (KB HETRENL)

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

Retail & Distribution Segment Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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ZERDHE-—BTESORE

Retail & Distribution Review by Market
China Mainland

B B K BE
2
Full Year
2009
MIEHELE Total Brand Sales’ 1,950
ZEH B Tumover’, comprising:
-8% - Retail sales in
MMz self-operated
2ER stores 1,089
~[AMEE - Wholesales
BE sales to
HEH franchisees 544
R Total 1,633
FEHER  Same store sales’ (5.5%)
LEREF Operating profit 152
@EEAE  Operating margin 9.3%
Mme g Number of outlets® 1,017
BEE Self-operated 420
MEE Franchised 597

TeE 224
Second Half First Half

)il B B
(H2) (H2) (H2)
Increase Increase Increase
(Decrease) 2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
8.5% 1,011 11.8% 939 5.0%
4.9% 560 10.9% 529 (1.5%)
17.5% 297 24.6% 247 8.9%
9.1% 857 15.6% 776 1.8%
N/A/ N/A/ N/A/
TER (2.4%) @R (9.2%) TER
88.8% 119 37.0% 33 275.8%
6.8 pp/ 2.5 pp/ 11.4 pp/
AR 13.9% R 4.3% BRE
171 1,017 17 912 189
28 420 28 401 42
143 597 143 511 147

FEAEXFHE (L EHETRENML)

REBBBFFTLE T NEENRDREPBEARE
2 FIT  HBT BE mOR AN B AR sk DA T
NBERKIERE N - EBPNFRNIER143FH MR
JE K28 B &5 - fF &£ B B RE 2 P A8 4%
FEH20106 K 21,188 « N F & ¥ HIE K E I
BRJE 4B oR A5 (K DN IR AN 17 45 HE BB O JE A0 K 1 B8 3 B
FroEBEEMS 20105 HMBm 2 LB LEEEMN
BEECESEHEED A R17.5%F4.9% =
SERPEAREZBEEBEMIA% (RARE
T MN7.5%)FE1781EBT-FRN RIELER
BR2.0% MR EFEAIE RE5%E21.1618
IR BRFIEPIM AZRARMN ZFEHIA
THT - SFHFREXLBAM T EZE2,1008 7T
(2009%F : ®F 5 IR2,3007 7T ) °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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China Mainland Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)

The Group continued to accelerate store expansion in the Mainland by
way of franchising, focusing on unsaturated second and lower tier cities
to maximize growth potential. We added 143 franchised outlets and
28 self-operated ones during the year, bringing our total store network
in the Mainland to 1,188 at the end of 2010. With faster expansion
of franchised stores and increased marketing support, sales growth
noticeably picked up in the second half. Overall, wholesale sales to
franchisees increased by 17.5% and retail sales in self-operated outlets
grew by 4.9%, causing the Group’s total turnover in the Mainland
to increase by 9.1% (7.5% in Renminbi terms) to HK$1,781 million
in 2010. Same store sales grew by 2.0% and total brand sales
increased by 8.5% to HK$2,116 million during the year. However, with
more stores opening in lower tier cities sales per sq. ft. decreased to
HK$2,100 (2009: HK$2,300 per sq. ft.).

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &
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Meanwhile, lower product cost and reduced discounting made
possible a 7.6 percentage point gross margin gain to 55.4%
(2009: 47.8%), enabling the Mainland to almost double its operating
profit to HK$287 million (2009: HK$152 million). The Mainland
accounted for 37.6% of the Group’s sales and contributed 41.3% of its
operating profit in 2010.

2009 2008 2007 2006
B Turnover
(K EEBETREN) (in HK$ millions)” 1,633 1,689 1,349 1,090
B FREES Sales per sq. ft.
(BT REL) (in HK$)? 2,300 3,100 2,900 2,400
B 5§55 58 Same store sales
B, (R )4 increase/(decrease)’ (5.5%) 6.1% 15.2% 8.5%
TEME Retail floor area
(FAHR)e (square feet)? 903,600 816,800 690,700 605,100
Fim&RE? Number of outlets? 1,017 909 820 729
FEIAE R FREBEZE China Mainland Five-Year Operations Highlights

AEBEBHPRAELSEEEER B8R
2011 F R B00M I M - EEEEER Z BRI A T
WmiER ZRE AT ABO K AMEBIE -
SEEMBER201FRARBEINERIMBTISHRE -
T FPFImER SIS RS-

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

The Group anticipates continuing growth in the Mainland, with a view
to adding some 300 outlets in 2011. Franchised outlets will comprise
the bulk of the new stores added, in line with Management’s strategy
to expand in second tier and smaller cities. Additional resources will be
devoted to marketing to support our store expansion and sales growth
plans in 2011.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
/R EBRAERLNF
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Hong Kong & Macau

EAREM
2E

Full Year

2009

ERE Turnover” 775
FEHES  Same store sales’ (3.2%)
Yyl Operating profit 64
MEEFIR  Operating margin 8.3%
FmEge Number of outlets® 75

TE by
Second Half First Half

£ Em i
-2 (H%) (A%)
Increase Increase Increase
(Decrease) 2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
8.5% 409 9.8% 366 7.1%
N/A/ N/A/ N/A/
TiER 4.4% TiEA (10.9%) TEaA
95.3% 54 31.5% 10 440.0%
6.6 pp/ 2.6 pp/ 1.1 pp/
BAE 13.2% BAE 2.7% BRH
- 75 - 80 6)

TERBPIREFHE (B &EETmEL)

ERMGHETELIN- FAFBZE EBILN
8.5%E8.41EHB T FIEEH£FBANERI.4% - EF
REFEWE - 5K2009F L A6.3EA DT SEFIE
Mn19.5% - e BRIZHIK LR BEEBKE2F
KRR R 63T 8 2 1 25088 7T (20094 : 6,4008
BIL) c BB ANEER2010F 2 EEFRKLEH
AR EEN17.8%518.0% °

Hong Kong & Macau Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)

Increased marketing efforts helped Hong Kong to grow its turnover by
8.5% to HK$841 million and same store sales by 9.4% during the year.
Gross margin continued to improve, rising by 6.3 percentage points
compared to 2009. Gross profit increased by 19.5% as a result. Along
with effective operating expense controls, Hong Kong almost doubled
its full year operating profit to HK$125 million (2009: HK$64 million).
Hong Kong contributed 17.8% and 18.0% to the Group’s 2010 sales
and operating profit respectively.

2009 2008 2007 2006

EERE Turnover

(LB EETREN) (in HK$ millions)” 775 850 892 873
B HREEE Sales per sq. ft.

(BT BEN)° (in HK$)® 8,400 8,200 7,800 7,600
] & 4 & 58 Same store sales

=/ CR ) increase/(decrease) (3.2%) (1.7%) 8.1% 5.4%
ZEHEE Retail floor area

(FH R )8 (square feet)? 87,100 98,700 110,900 117,300
Fim& g Number of outlets? 75 82 92 98

EHERRPI R FREBEHE Hong Kong & Macau Five-Year Operations Highlights

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& n B A R 2 7
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=01 Taiwan
2E THE i 3:3
Full Year Second Half First Half
£ £ i
- 2 (A%)
Increase Increase Increase
2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
2R Turnover” 555 9.2% 286 14.3% 269 3.7%
N/A/ N/A/ N/A/
FEHESB  Same store sales’ (2.6%) TR 3.8% TR (10.0%) TER
LG Operating profit A/
(B8) (loss) 27 240.7% 31 96.8% 4 TER
10.3 pp/ 7.9 pp/ 12.6 pp/
&A% Operating margin 4.9% BAH 10.8% BA& (1.5%) BA%
FmER? Number of outlets® 174 7 174 7 179 (3)
BEXFIEE (UGEETEEN) Taiwan Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)
EEBIKINEASEMISZ ZHEME 201056 46%  Management’s efforts to expand margins were also successful in
ERIEMNERREE LF72E DB -FEEKLTE  Taiwan, with 2010 gross margin up by 7.2 percentage points over last

B#®RE ASBERFREELEMT F5£E2
BIRERZ2010F R 2181 -Gz ¥
E 18 5£9.2% (LA th & ¥ 5138 K3.9% ) £6.061%
BT RAEEXENTREFIEREI% AN A E
EB I KERAEBNERBBNBE 58
HEREEBRTSZE SEEMELEFA103EE S
BiE15.2% &5 F I8 REBA = (EE20106F 2
9,200& /8 7T (20094 : 2,7008 B L) - FN » & /&
EREEBEER12.8% AEBKLHTE B
13.2% °

year. With the economy strengthening, we added seven outlets during
the year to grow our network to 181 locations at the end of 2010.
Consequently, Taiwan’s turnover grew by 9.2% (3.9% in local currency)
to HK$606 million and same store sales increased by 6.9% year-on-
year. With its operating cost structure lower after restructuring, Taiwan
experienced positive operating leverage and saw its operating margin
rise by 10.3 percentage points to 15.2% and its operating profit more
than triple to HK$92 million (2009: HK$27 million) in 2010. Taiwan
accounted for 12.8% of the Group’s sales and contributed 13.2% of its
operating profit during the year.

2009 2008 2007 2006

BT Turnover

(K EBEETREN) (in HK$ millions)” 555 634 649 658
BYRREERE Sales per sq. ft.

(BT REW) (in HK$)? 2,900 3,000 2,800 2,800
B 5§ & 58 Same store sales

B0/ O ) increase/(decrease)’ (2.6%) (3.2%) (4.2%) (9.1%)
TEME Retail floor area

(FFHR)® (square feet)? 185,700 204,900 218,700 235,800
Fim& g Number of outlets? 174 192 210 239

BERFEHBHE Taiwan Five-Year Operations Highlights

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &
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¥ 03K Singapore
2E THE
Full Year Second Half

£ Em

("2) (A%)

Increase Increase

2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)

BEW Turnover” 310 16.1% 163 15.3%

N/A/ N/A/

FEHES  Same store sales’ (4.1%) THEA (4.7%) TR
Yyl Operating profit

(B8) (loss) 18 200.0% 21 47.6%

9.2 pp/ 3.6 pp/

[EEF%  Operating margin 5.8% B 12.9% BOH

b GE Number of outlets? 47 5 47 5

HMERBHE (U BEETREL)

R2010F AN B IR IE L E M RIS HEE
TEARATS SETRRAEERAMPIT  E35
I3 2 FITH 48 BUE B 6 K 252/ ° 2010F £ X 8
HimiE&16.1% (A EHEEHIERKS.6% ) £3.6F

BT RIEEERIER2.2%

o R EFIRE2000F

FO3MEE B FH I ER 2 ELEFIBRBIGB
= fE%E5,4008 78 7T (20094 : 1,8008 /8 7T) ° # N
K AREBR010FE 2 BN KL HT DR

BE7.6%7.8% °

Singapore Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)

t¥F
First Half
m
§:22)
Increase

2009  (Decrease)

(0

147 17.0%
N/A/

(4.9%) TEam
N/A/

3) TER
15.4 pp/

.0%) ERE

46 2

We continued to build on the turnaround in Singapore with new product
and marketing programs. We also added five stores in 2010 to bring
the total number of stores in Singapore to 52 at the end of the year.
Turnover grew by 16.1% (8.6% in local currency) to HK$360 million
while same store sales increased by 2.2% in 2010 as a result. Full

year gross margin posted a 9.3 percentage point gain compared to

2009, enabling Singapore to triple its operating profit to HK$54 million
(2009: HK$18 million). Singapore contributed 7.6% and 7.8% to the
Group’s sales and operating profit in 2010 respectively.

2009 2008 2007 2006

BER Turnover

(X BEE TREN) (in HK$ millions)” 310 368 390 403
FYFREER Sales per sq. ft.

(W BT BE ) (in HK$)? 6,100 6,500 6,900 7,700
[ )5 $H & 58 Same store sales

#hn/ Ol ) increase/(decrease) (4.1%) (7.7%) (10.9%) (11.9%)
TEMEE Retail floor area

(FHR)8 (square feet)? 51,300 54,300 57,300 55,100
PIm#E Es Number of outlets® 47 51 53 53

I RFEREERE Singapore Five-Year Operations Highlights
18 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

A X E B ER QS

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &



EERE WAL K 2

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BN
2

Full Year
2009
2R Turnover’ 180
FEHES  Same store sales’ (6.9%)

LG Operating profit
(E8) (loss) (28)
&A% Operating margin (15.6%)
FmER? Number of outlets® 45

Australia
Tag by
Second Half First Half

£ £ i
("2) (A%) (%)
Increase Increase Increase
(Decrease) 2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
(2.8%) 103 (1.0%) 77 (5.2%)
N/A/ N/A/ N/A/
TER (5.2%) TEA (8.4%) TEam
N/A/ N/A/ N/A/
iR (12) TER (16) TiEHA
12.7 pp/ 20.5 pp/ 1.6 pp/
BAH (11.7%) B8 (20.8%) B8
9 45 o) 52 (12)

BMNEHRHE (L BFHETREL)

BN FE TS 2 E4E B R B R - BE G K AN B 4 fE
ME TR - I BRI AE RO IR B R 8 - RN
752010 2 EF REK2009F 12262185 7 2 °
REBMBERHEHPIT AL - B HR20094F & B
EPTIN RFEANBERASINEPT - RS
BEZE2010F K 236/ * RIBMEEACLEMA L
EMERA - FERMEBR201005F THFHER
BoARFEREGNE BNER 2 EEERL2.8%
(AEMEE R A15.9% ) B1.75EB T M&
& E 1B B E =500 4 7T (20094 - £ & B 18
2,800&8 & 7L) °
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Australia Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)

The restructuring of our Australian operations began to show improved
results. Lower product costs from supply chain improvements,
appreciation of the Australian Dollar and reduced markdowns
helped raise Australia’s 2010 gross margin by 6.2 percentage points
compared to 2009. We continued rationalizing our store base,
closing an additional nine stores during the year on top of the 11 we
closed in 2009 to consolidate the network to 36 stores at the end
of 2010, significantly reducing operating costs in the process. Along
with improved gross margins, this helped to swing Australia into the
black in the second half of 2010. For the year as a whole, Australia’s
turnover decreased by 2.8% (down by 15.9% in local currency) to
HK$175 million while its operating losses narrowed to HK$5 million
(2009: operating loss of HK$28 million).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Other Markets

Hth 35
2E

Full Year

2009

=+ Turnover’ 460
LEGEF Operating profit 44
@EEAE  Operating margin 9.6%
Fmege Number of outlets® 259

Tg byg
Second Half First Half

£ Em i
(H%) (") (R%)
Increase Increase Increase
(Decrease) 2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
24.8% 262 22.1% 198 28.3%
195.5% 38 105.3% 6 766.7%
13.0 pp/ 9.9 pp/ 17.5 pp/
BO& 14.5% BA& 3.0% BO%
9 259 9 259 2)

H 5 EFHHE (LB &ETREL)

AEEEMTHERIENE  HRADMRE (AEE
R2010F L F AR L BATS - ELEE1,3008
BIL) cBRAD RELKHEZERHERERE
FoaA[BEAERY] K WBE] RERT -
EFEEREREHELEMER FA(LERHRE
B RE)IIEFMER AL 20105 H1/E
BRI EERED 5I871536.6% (LAMEE A
#h119.8% ) }226.1% (LA 55 % 78 a5 Ak 25 43 5118 1
17.1% ) 2 i@ - TR 2 RI[BZH| EF FIEEE 2 BUA
FalyE SAUMEPIMIEBRETERESA -
BEWL 20108 FH 2 2 EEINILR16.4%
(ARG ER72%) AR EXEBERMNLE
MREERARE 2B =EMHE 2 &E 57T
HaaYRE-Z=—EAmHe B EEHTS7T1E
BIL (2009F 4. 47 B T) L& &% F
1.2918 7 7T (20094 : 510088 7L) r A AEH
R2010F 2 E¥EBREZ RGN DB EB12.1%
$18.6% °

Other Markets Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)

The Group’s other markets comprise Indonesia, Malaysia and Thailand
(the Group completed its exit from Japan in the first half of 2010,
incurring a loss of HK$13 million). Customers in Malaysia, Thailand
and Indonesia responded well to the Group’s renewed emphasis on
“quality essentials” and “value”. The resurgence in commodity prices
last year and favourable exchange rates (especially a strong rebound
of the Indonesian Rupiah) also contributed. As a result, Indonesia and
Malaysia recorded turnover increases of 36.6% (19.8% in Indonesian
Rupiah) and 26.1% (17.1% in Malaysian Ringgit) respectively in 2010.
Thailand’s performance was impacted by political unrest in the first half,
but despite having a number of stores in Bangkok damaged and closed
for several months, Thailand still posted sales growth of 16.4% (7.2%
in Thai Baht) in 2010. Operating profits in all three markets rebounded
strongly from improved sales and lower product and operating costs.
Excluding Japan, these smaller markets together registered sales
of HK$571 million (2009: HK$447 million) and an operating profit of
HK$129 million (2009: HK$51 million), contributing 12.1% and 18.6%
respectively to the Group’s sales and operating profit in 2010.

e

Indonesia

2009

BEW Turnover’ 183
FIE$HESE  Same store sales? 7.8%
TR Operating profit 36
MZEFIE  Operating margin 19.7%
Mmege Number of outlets? 99

BERBE RH

Malaysia Thailand
£ 1 i
-2 (") (A%)
Increase Increase Increase
(Decrease) 2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
36.6% 142 26.1% 122 16.4%
N/A/ N/A/ N/A/
TEf (11.7%) TEA (4.4%) TEA
94.4% 10 290.0% 5 300.0%
8.3 pp/ 14.8 pp/ 10.0 pp/
BAH 7.0% ARE 41% BAH
6 66 4 91 2

HE BHRBERFEZFHE (LB EETHENL)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& ®nEKBRABERAA

Indonesia, Malaysia and Thailand Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)
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ZERSTHE —BmEEE

Giordano X Giordano Junior

Retail & Distribution Review by Brand

Giordano & Giordano Junior

2E
Full Year
2009
BEE Turnover’ 3,379
R Operating profit 271
@EEFIR  Operating margin 8.0%
Mmege Number of outlets? 1,485

TeE 22
Second Half First Half

£m £ Em
(%) (%) (%)
Increase Increase Increase
(Decrease) 2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
11.7% 1,810 14.4% 1,569 8.5%
121.8% 222 61.7% 49 393.9%
7.9 pp/ 5.0 pp/ 1.1 pp/
BRE 12.3% BAE 3.1% BAH
159 1,485 159 1,393 172

Giordano & Giordano JuniorE 5 # 2Z (WX B & & T 5 &)

NEBEEEIEGordanoz [BEBE RZY ] &
[YIRBFTE ] BE  MATIGHE FEEBEARA
FHEFZ85%IEME T FF 214.4% ° LA20104F
BRI & Giordano X Giordano JuniorZ & ¥ 58
BR11.7%ZE37.73{8/8 7T (20094 : 33.798#& L) °
EmAKATERBRLHRE EEMNXRES7.8E
B BNLESSZEZEHRE LEHEF X
FE e =7 918 B 5 B o 20104 2 48 455 7 A i 3%
£121.8%%6.0118 8 7T (2009F : 2.71{E & TT) °
FR AL B LIRS0 ™ (K147
RA) < ZE RS #HDER2010F12H431H
2 Giordano . Giordano JuniorPih 81 B # %
1,644 °

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &

Giordano & Giordano Junior Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)

The Group continued playing to Giordano’s strengths in ‘quality
essentials’ and ‘value’ as increased advertising and promotion outlays
helped push sales growth up from 8.5% in the first half to 14.4% in
the second half. For 2010 as a whole, Giordano and Giordano Junior’s
sales grew by 11.7% to HK$3,773 million (2009: HK$3,379 million).
Lower product costs and reduced discounting produced a
7.8 percentage point gross margin gain which, along with continued
vigilance in controlling expenses, translated into an 7.9 percentage
point increase in operating margin. 2010 operating profit increased by
121.8% to HK$601 million (2009: HK$271 million) as a result. During
the year we added a total of 159 outlets, 147 of them in the Mainland,
to bring the number of Giordano and Giordano Junior outlets under the
Retail and Distribution segment to 1,644 as at December 31, 2010.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
/R EBRAERLNF
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Giordano Ladies

Giordano Ladies

2E
Full Year
2009
BEW Turnover’ 250
LEGEF Operating profit 28
MEEFIZ  Operating margin 11.2%
Mmege Number of outlets? 43

T b
Second Half First Half

£ D)l i
("2) (%) (%)
Increase Increase Increase
(Decrease) 2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
15.2% 136 16.9% 114 13.2%
N/A/
100.0% 27 29.6% 1 TER
8.2 pp/ 2.1 pp/ 15.4 pp/
BRE 19.9% BAE 0.9% BAH
2 43 2 40 1

Giordano Ladies¥%#Z (X B &#EETREN)

201045 - @ E | Giordano LadiesS B EE 2
DEEEMR - ZXBILR152%%2.88E B T H
REBERGIFE ENEREF LASABEEH S -
E It - 2010%F 2 48 &% F) 15 1 25,6008 % 7T
(2009F :2,8008 B L) KEHMEELRSE
19.4% - AL BN FERIGRPREFIT - £ omEES
2010F 12 A31 HZE £ 45/ »

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& ®EBRABERAA

Giordano Ladies Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)

The premium Giordano Ladies line benefited from a general recovery
in consumer confidence in 2010. Turnover increased by 15.2% to
HK$288 million while continued limits on markdowns boosted gross
margin by 3.4 percentage points compared to last year. Accordingly,
2010 operating profit more than doubled to HK$56 million (2009:
HK$28 million) and operating margin increased to 19.4%. During the
year, we added two stores to bring the brand’s network to 45 as at
December 31, 2010.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &
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Concepts One/Giordano Concepts

Concepts One/Giordano Concepts

2E
Full Year
2009
ERE Turnover” 106
BekR Operating loss (24)
@EEFIZ  Operating margin (22.6%)
B GE Number of outlets? 22

T b
Second Half First Half

£ Em i
("2) (%) (%)
Increase Increase Increase
(Decrease) 2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
(35.8%) 42 (23.8%) 64 (43.8%)
N/A/ N/A/ N/A/
TER ) TEm (19) TER
12.3 pp/ 8.8 pp/ 13.0 pp/
BRE (11.9%) BAE (29.7%) BAH
2 22 2 24 4

Concepts One/Giordano ConceptsZ 515 Z (X & &L B E )

20104 ¥ Concepts One/Giordano Concepts & h&
s =B E R —F o Z M R2000F #1TEH
BRI =52 —Fm - WEF T AT B AR
BimBTRETE - 2010F % MG 2 T ERBIG
MR SPMHBER4ABMPIT - BEFNEE
BT F%35.8%  FEFI R ANA R E10.018 F 5 i o hn
FREERARBEEK  BZMEEBR T FERK
¥ o 2010F B EETHE » Concepts One/Giordano
Concepts 2 & ¥ %31%6,8008 /8 T KL EEMA
FFEZ2,4008B TIWEET00&EE T -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

Concepts One/Giordano Concepts Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)

2010 has been a transitional year for the Concepts One/Giordano
Concepts brand. Following the restructuring in 2009 which saw the
closure of almost one third of its stores and the repositioning of the
brand to target the Mainland’s high end menswear sector, 2010 saw
addition in its retail network by two locations to 24. Although sales
decreased by 35.8% gross margin rebounded by 10.0 percentage
points during the year. Along with a significantly reduced cost base, the
brand more or less broke even in the second half. For 2010 as a whole,
Concepts One/Giordano Concepts had sales of HK$68 million and cut
its operating loss to HK$7 million from a loss of HK$24 million the year
before.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
/R EBRAERLNF
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BSX
2E

Full Year
2009
2R Turnover’ 158

LEEF Operating profit
(B#) (loss) -
MEZEFIE  Operating margin -
Mmege Number of outlets? 59

BSX
T¥E byg
Second Half First Half

#m £ i
(") (") (R%)
Increase Increase Increase
(Decrease) 2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
15.2% 82 23.2% 76 6.6%
N/A/ N/A/
@R 6 216.7% 6) TER
16.5 pp/ 11.5 pp/ 21.5 pp/
BAH 7.3% BA& (7.9%) BOH
19 59 19 64 )

BSXEFHE (KB HBTiEML)

BSX#EERNERFE 2T REER -REAEE
FHEPE SR BB R AR - BSXPR2010F K EFI%X6.61E
BOH BEEBSXEB o RBBINE BTRE
REERDE 2 FECE KRR 1 F R R10MH
P97+ 792007 4F LA 2R B X 38 0 - 7A20104F » BSXZ
BEBEREAMER15.2%E1.82B8 T K& %A=
3,0008 7T

HORAGFFEE 25

BSX Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)

BSX continues to build a following as a fun, youth-oriented
urban brand. This, together with ongoing efforts to control its
sourcing costs, enabled BSX to expand its gross margin by
6.6 percentage points in 2010. With its performance steadily
improving, Management judged it the right time to begin expanding
and added 19 outlets during the year, the first increase since
2007. This helped BSX to register a 15.2% increase in sales
to HK$182 million and an operating profit of HK$30 million
in 2010.

Export & Licensing Segment

2E
Full Year
2009
2E8 Turnover 350
TR Operating profit 50
@AEFIR  Operating margin 14.3%

TEE i 3:3
Second Half First Half

£ £ £

(%) (%) (%)
Increase Increase Increase
(Decrease) 2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
24.0% 166 44.0% 184 6.0%
24.0% 17 105.9% 33 (18.2%)
Flat/ 4.4 pp/ (4.1 pp)/

BT 10.2% BRE 17.9% BAH

HORBEFFAELDEEBIHEE (B EETBEL)

MBI B R RBLER  AEE 2 H 0 R
KEEHR(FEHEEHERMPREAELER
FFRBEEHBEMB ZHEMENK) R2010F 2 E X5
BE240%Z434EB L EHEBEIZRA
TH¥FEmMPRMEEER I BRINETR - 2010F 2 &%
U A It 1 R24.0% 56,2008 78 7T ©

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& n B A R 2 7

Export & Licensing Segment Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)

With the steady recovery in demand from overseas markets,
the Group’s Export & Licensing business (which consists
primarily of the Group’s sales to its Korean and Middle
East joint ventures and wholesale markets such as the
Philippines) saw turnover growing by 24.0% to HK$434 million
in 2010, with the increase largely attributable to a strong recovery in
shipments to the Middle East in the second half. Operating income
increased by 24.0% to HK$62 million in 2010 as a result.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &
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BEE Turnover’

FIEHESE  Same store sales’

Mmege Number of outlets?

HFEEBHE (UBEETRENL)

EEENBERMATILRAELERERI7T.7% K
EE R ARE A TN2010F 2 4 ¥ 5E i
£42.1% (LA E i & ¥ 511 K£30.8% ) £12.8618
BT -AREFREFET BELHAIEERT
BRI TR BER T S R AN E R 2 BRI
R47.4%%5,6008 8 7T (20094 : 3,8008 8 7T) °
HA P - 32 3R 23R P9 (£20104 & 2 P9 42 ez 5
214f - A20105 128318 A& EF A meE L H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

South Korea

2E THE
Full Year Second Half
£ £
(H4) (H2)
Increase Increase
2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
905 42.1% 550 26.0%

N/A/
16.6% TER

191 23

N/A/
29.8% TER

191 23

South Korea Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)

Jointly Controlled and Associated Companies

by
First Half
i
(%)
Increase
2009  (Decrease)
355 67.0%
N/A/
0.7% TEm
169 39

jointly controlled company as at December 31, 2010.

On the back of a renewed store expansion program and same store
sales growth of 17.7%, our South Korean jointly controlled company
increased sales by 42.1% (30.8% in local currency) to HK$1,286 million
in 2010. With its gross margin remaining steady and expense growth
under tight control, Korea increased its after-tax profit contribution to
Group profit by 47.4% to HK$56 million (2009: HK$38 million). Twenty-
three outlets were added in the period to bring the total store count
to 214 at the end of 2010. The Group held 48.5% in its South Korean

2009 2008 2007 2006

BER Turnover

(B BT RBEN) (in HK$ millions)” 905 835 982 1,014
Y FREERR Sales per sq. ft.

(LB T BB )° (in HK$)°® 5,900 6,200 6,700 7,500
[ & 4 & 58 Same store sales

#on/ Ol ) increase/(decrease) 16.5% (4.1%) (8.6%) (6.5%)
ZEER Retail floor area

(FHR)8 (square feet)® 164,100 133,700 145,600 135,600
FIm2Ee Number of outlets? 191 167 173 148

HELFEBHE South Korea Five-Year Operations Highlights

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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R
2
Full Year
2009
BEW Turnover’ 477
FEHER  Same store sales’ (13.2%)
Mmege Number of outlets? 175

Middle East
T¥E by
Second Half First Half

£m £ #m
(") (") (%)
Increase Increase Increase
(Decrease) 2009  (Decrease) 2009  (Decrease)
6.1% 252 18.7% 225 (8.0%)
N/A/ N/A/ N/A/
TiER (14.5%) iR (11.4%) @A
15 175 15 172 4

FREBHE (LB BB TREN)

REBARBERAZEBR X EFRRRE
BTH+FRABELBMELDN B -BEEMS
20105 & ¥ 51 £6.1%25.0612 78 7T (20094 :
ATTERIL) cFAF EEKATREERDITN:
FEFEIZES45EE DB -MEBRBIEHHZ
2010F R 2 B8 i Al B BB IS 51,2008 78 7T
(20094 : 600E B TT) ° M2010F 12 A31H » AEH
FAE P EBE R F20.0%2 -

Bat -

-

PR B B A 205 7 (I B E B ) ©
2 IR RN EE AN A2 -

3 FEERTENEFG AR oz

4 RIFET % AR HEEFETAAGEE - HF
PIT()FEASZ R 16K LA L+ (AEE 2 dafF 2L - 2 (i)
HEETEEB15%U L RIFZPITT T A (ELLE

RIFFT 0% A E G & B R A G &5 RN
BJE o i B PT 2 45 & H BUR A Bl E L 8B < # 2
B10%L L BIZFPIHT T AT ELL B o LR EE A &
B A E AL S B AR o
2009F 2 [A/E 5 E IS RBFEIEES  UEETTILE -
2008F R ZHI 2 A5 EREE R BRI K ZE A
27N

5 BFPTRPERHFHE L (L& F AL = mm
BRGNP H g E o B A BE2009%F 2 8 F 5 R
HEFHFE TES LEHTTIH L 2008F KA 5.2
GFLRBEFYFARTES M52 & F 7R
BB F A B ARZLIZE

6 EEERMBEEZ FEHEAE-

7 BEEFEHER (08T AL 50 mE sz
HBEHERE) -

8 REEE R ETEAAEPTTT (1B EAE - 5 MEE)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Middle East Operations Highlights (in HK$ millions)

The business of our associated company in the Middle East started
off sluggish in the first half, but picked up in the second half with
the recovery in oil prices. Overall, turnover increased by 6.1% to
HK$506 million in 2010 (2009: HK$477 million). Meanwhile, lower
product costs and reduced discounting produced a 4.5 percentage point
gross margin gain which, along with stringent expense controls, made
possible a doubling of the Middle East’s after-tax profit contribution to
HK$12 million in 2010 (2009: HK$6 million). The Group held a 20.0%
stake in its Middle East associate on December 31, 2010.

Notes:

7 Income taxation expense divided by operating profit (net of finance expense).

2 Inventory held at period end divided by turnover and multiplied by number of days
in the period.

3 Total bank loans outstanding divided by shareholders’ equity.

4 Under the old method, only directly operated stores are included in same store

sales calculations. A store ceases to be comparable if (i) it is closed for 15 days
or more for renovation, (ij) there is a change in the brand being carried; or (iij) its
selling area changes by over 15%.

Under the new method, both directly operated and franchised are included in same
store sales calculations. A store is not comparable only if the number of trading
days in the two periods under comparison differs by more than 10%. Same store
sales are calculated in local currency terms under both methods.

Same store sales growth figures for 2009 have been restated to facilitate
comparison. Same store sales growth statistics for 2008 and before have not been
restated.

5 Sales per sq. ft. figure calculated on a weighted average basis for self-operated
stores (plus franchised stores in the case of China Mainland). 2009 sales per sq.
ft. figures for China Mainland have been restated to facilitate comparison. Sales
per sq. ft. statistics for 2008 and before have not been restated. Sales per sq. ft.
calculations for other markets have not been affected.

6 Total retail sales in both self-operated and franchised stores.

7 Retail sales in self-operated stores (plus wholesale sales to franchisees in the case of
China Mainland).

8 Total directly managed stores (plus franchised stores in the case of China Mainland)

at period end.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &
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REARNR 2011 F B HPKE W TF o
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EAEERA -R201F  AEESEEREEMHE
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=
FHo

BREARRBIENITHE RS &% EE
MEAEBEAFC RYREBEMER - HEEY
Giordano }.Giordano JuniorE #1585 [BEE A &® X
P K [ MR E ] REHZ] S HR2010F 2 FEH)
RIBE7 8EAH D 2EGC0.4%  BSXTEAEEFE Z
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OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, 2011 offers both challenges and opportunities.

Our challenge in 2011 is to sustain the margin gains we achieved in
2010 in the face of rising inflationary cost pressure in our supply chain.
The Group’s brands all posted good gross margin gains in 2010. This
was achieved in part through close collaboration with our strategic
supply chain partners to lower product costs. 2011 will see continued
cultivation of supply chain relationships to limit the impact of rising raw
material and other input costs.

Well-conceived and executed merchandising and marketing programs
also contributed to our strong performance last year. Consumers
responded favourably to Giordano and Giordano Junior’s renewed
emphasis on “quality essentials” and “value”, enabling a 7.8 percentage
point increase in gross margin to 60.4% in 2010. BSX also gained
acceptance as a fun, youth-oriented urban brand and saw its gross
margin rise by 6.6 percentage points. Increased investment in
marketing underpinned the Group’s 16.3% top line growth in the
second half. 2011 will see the Group continue investing in product
design and development to keep its pipeline filled with attractive and
innovative merchandise that can command a premium in the market.
The new product initiatives will be supported by increased marketing,
focusing especially on non-price promotional campaigns, to reinforce
brand equity and pricing power, with a view to broadly maintain gross
margins at 2010 levels.

Faster sales growth on the back of robust margins enabled the Group
to deliver a strong set of results in the second half of 2010, and
2011 offers the opportunity for the Group to achieve greater positive
operating leverage by driving higher revenue growth, especially in
the Mainland. With incomes continuing to rise in China, the Mainland
remains the Group’s strongest growth engine. In 2010, the Group
added 171 stores and saw sales increasing by 15.6% in the second
half and 9.1% for the year as a whole. In 2011, our objective is to ramp
up new store openings to 300, with the bulk coming from increased
franchising activity in second tier and smaller cities. The expansion
will be supported by solid management and financial resources and
undertaken with close attention on the bottom line. The Group will also
devote more resources into marketing to support store expansion and
boost top line growth.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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We will continue to pursue profitable growth opportunities in other
Asian markets. In Hong Kong, the influx of Mainland tourists helped
lift turnover but also fuelled the escalation in retail rentals. This
will necessitate some repositioning of our stores in Hong Kong to
sustain operating margins. For this reason, Management has decided
against renewing the lease on the Causeway Bay flagship store which
accounted for 6.9% of Hong Kong’s 2010 sales. The store will close
in the third quarter this year but we plan to add up to a dozen smaller
stores in less prime locations to make up for the reduction in sales area
and expect this to enable Hong Kong to continue delivering sales and
profit growth in 2011.

Both Taiwan and Singapore are expected to see steady, profitable
growth. With the restructuring of their respective operations more or
less complete and local market conditions improving, we resumed
cautious expansion and plan to add a total of about a dozen shops in
these two markets this year. Indonesia, Malaysia and Thailand together
are expected to see a similar number of store additions in 2011.

Finally, the Group has made considerable headway in restructuring its
Australian operations. Australia posted a profit in the second half and a
much reduced annual loss for the full year. The first two months of 2011
saw continued improvements and we expect the Australian business to
return to profitability in 2011.

In summary, Management sees positive trends going into 2011 despite
challenges arising from inflationary cost pressure in the supply chain
and rising rental costs. Sales and gross profit trends held steady going
into 2011. A strong Chinese New Year helped our Mainland business
record double digit year-on-year sales and gross profit gains in January
and February, indicating that our expansion effort is gaining traction.
The Group’s markets outside the Mainland also posted double digit
sales and gross profit growth. Overall, the Group achieved year-on-year
sales and gross profit gains in the mid-to-high teens during the first two
months of 2011.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The recruitment, retention, development and motivation of outstanding
employees have always been the foundation of our success. The
Company offers competitive remuneration packages and generous,
goal-oriented bonuses to different levels of staff. Senior managers are
also offered generous incentive bonus schemes and share options as a
means to reward and retain a high caliber management team.
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Although a competitive remuneration package is important, numerous
studies and experience have shown that ethical business values,
fairness and opportunities for further professional and personal
development are equally important drivers for high achievers. As such,
the Group invests heavily not only in comprehensive staff training and
development programs in sales and service, but also in management,
planning and leadership programs addressing our people’s professional
and personal development needs. The Company also has an Employee
Self Learning Program to foster individual initiative and responsibility
for development. Fulfilment of the programmes requirements is an
important consideration in evaluating an employee’s total performance
for compensation and career advancement.

On December 31, 2010, the Group had 7,400 employees (2009:
7,300). Total staff cost (excluding director emoluments but including
employee share option charges) amounted to HK$730 million (2009:
HK$644 million). The Group granted a total of 40 million share options
to its employees in 2010 (2009: nil).

DIVIDENDS

It is the Company’s intention to return surplus cash to its shareholders
through payment of dividends. In line with its dividend policy, the
Company has been paying a substantial portion of its earnings as an
ordinary dividend plus a special dividend. The amount of which may
vary depending on cash on hand, future investment requirements
and working capital considerations. The Group had net cash and
bank balances of HK$978 million at December 31, 2010, of which
HK$526 million was in RMB. Markets outside the Mainland are
expected to generate positive operating cash inflow to sustain their
respective working capital and capital expenditure requirements.

As such, the Board has resolved to recommend to shareholders
the payment of a final dividend of 7.0 HK cents (2009: 7.0 HK cents)
per share and a special final dividend of 11.5 HK cents
(2009: 7.0 HK cents) per share for the year ended December 31, 2010.
Together with the interim dividend of 4.5 HK cents (2009: 2.0 HK cents)
per share and special interim dividend of 4.0 HK cents (2009: nil) per
share paid on September 24, 2010, total 2010 dividend would amount
to 27.0 HK cents (2009: 16.0 HK cents) per share, representing a
payout of 75.0% of 2010 per share earnings (2009: 82.9%). Subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting, the final and special final dividends will be payable on or about
Friday, June 24, 2011 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Thursday, June 9, 2011.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman), aged 58, is the Group’s
Chief Executive and a member of the Compensation Committee of the
Company. He joined the Group in 1987, became the Chief Executive on
February 8, 1994, and was elected Chairman of the Board of Directors
of the Group on August 10 in the same year.

Dr. Lau is an independent non-executive director of Fairwood Holdings
Limited which is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Dr. Lau
also serves as an ex-officio member of the Faculty Advisory Committee
of the Faculty of Business at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University as
well as Adjunct Professor of Marketing at City University of Hong Kong.

Dr. Lau holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, an MBA degree from the University
of Calgary in Canada and a Master of Buddhist Studies from The
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants and the Society of Certified Management
Accountants of Canada. Dr. Lau had over 12 years of management
and accounting experience in the private and public sectors in Canada
before joining the Group.

Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard (Executive Director), aged 61, joined
the Group in 1996 and was appointed to the current position of the
Company on June 14, 1999. Mr. Mah is also the Executive Chairman of
the Group’s operations in China Mainland and Group Executive Director
— Global Business Development. He graduated from the University of
Alberta in Canada with a bachelor degree in Business Administration
and is a member of The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Mah had gained extensive experience
in industrial and commercial investment sectors and had held senior
government positions in accounting and auditing in Canada for 15 years.
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Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 66, joined the Group in May 1991. He is also chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Compensation Committee
of the Company. Mr. Buttifant is currently as an executive director
and group chief executive officer of IDT International Limited, a non-
executive director of Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (“HCCG”)
and Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”); an independent non-
executive director of Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited; and was an
independent non-executive director of Alltronics Holdings Limited
(resigned in June 2009), all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong. Mr. Buttifant also serves as non-executive director
of Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. and China Nepstar Chain
Drugstore Ltd., both of which are listed in the U.S. on NASDAQ
and the New York Stock Exchange respectively. In October 2009,
Mr. Buttifant rejoined Mission Hills Group (“MHG”) as a director
— corporate finance and prior to this appointment, he was the
consultant to the Group since December 2008. Prior to joining MHG,
Mr. Buttifant served as a principal of KLC Kennic Lui & Company
(“KLC"), a professional accounting firm, and managing director of
KLC Transactions Limited. Prior to joining KLC, Mr. Buttifant was the
executive director — finance of MHG from February 2008 till November
2008. From December 2004 to December 2007, Mr. Buttifant was
the managing director of Hsin Chong International Holdings Limited,
a controlling shareholder of both the construction company HCCG
(which was acquired by MHG in November 2007) and a property
management service company, Synergis (which was acquired by HCCG
in September 2008). Mr. Buttifant was also an alternate director to both
public companies. Mr. Buttifant was an operating partner of Baring
Private Equity Asia Limited. He was also the managing director of Wo
Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (“Wo Kee Hong”) from 2001 to 2002
and was the Advisor to the board of directors of Wo Kee Hong from
November 2002 to April 2004. Prior to joining Wo Kee Hong, he was
the managing director of IDT International Limited for over eight years
and had worked for Polly Peck Group and Sime Darby Hong Kong
Limited for more than 11 years in the capacity of finance director and
managing director. Mr. Buttifant is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered Management Institute, the
Hong Kong Management Association and the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors.
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Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBs, JpP (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 60, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive
Director on April 26, 2004 and is a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr. Kwong is also an independent non-executive
director of AMS Public Transport Holdings Limited which is listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Mr. Kwong graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree in
Physics and Mathematics and was awarded a Master of Philosophy
degree in Economics and Politics of Development by the University
of Cambridge, England. He has served in the Government of Hong
Kong for 27 years and held positions principally in the economic
and financial fields. He was the Secretary for the Treasury from 1995
to 1998, with responsibility for public finances, and Secretary for
Information Technology and Broadcasting from 1998 to March 2000,
with responsibility for information technology, telecommunications
and broadcasting. He left the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in March 2000 to join the Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited as executive director and first Chief Executive,
following the demutualization and merger of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Futures Exchange and their associated
clearing houses and retired in April 2003. Since then, Mr. Kwong
had served as the managing director/executive director of various
companies, including Hsin Chong International Holdings Ltd, Hongkong
Sales (Int’l) Ltd and Macau Legend Development Ltd.

Mr. Kwong is a non-official Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong and has

been awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region.
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Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jr (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 70, joined the Company on September 10, 1999. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee and the Compensation Committee of
the Company. He holds an honorary degree of Doctor of Engineering
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and an honorary degree
of Doctor of Laws from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. Lee
is currently an independent non-executive director of AMS Public
Transport Holdings Limited, ITE (Holdings) Limited, Playmates Holdings
Limited, Sam Woo Holdings Limited, VXL Capital Limited and Wang
On Group Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong.

Dr. Lee was formerly a deputy of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region at the 9th and 10th National People’s Congress, PRC;
a member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council from 1978 to 1997;
a senior member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council from 1988 to
1991 and a member of the Hong Kong Executive Council from 1985 to
1992. He has taken an active role in public service.

Professor LEUNG Kwok (Independent Non-executive Director), aged 52,
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and ceased
to be a Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from July 7,
2010. He is also a member of the Audit Committee and Compensation
Committee of the Company. He was the Board Advisor and provided
consulting services to the Group for more than 20 years. Professor
Leung received his Ph.D. in Psychology from University of lllinois,
Urbana-Champaign, U.S.A. He holds a chair in management at the City
University of Hong Kong. In addition to his international reputation for
his scholarly work, he has extensive consulting experience with a wide
range of organizations and government departments in Hong Kong and
China Mainland.

Mr. Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN, aged 47, is the Group Chief
Financial Officer. He holds a bachelor degree from University of
Liverpool and is an Associate of The Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants in the United Kingdom. He joined the Group since
August 1, 2010 and has over 25 years’ experience in accounting and
financial management working in industry and government in both
Hong Kong and the United Kingdom.
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AmRTRIZER:

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is dedicated
to maintaining the highest standard of corporate governance within
a sensible and practical framework. The Board firmly believes that
the principles of transparency, accountability and independence are
essential for upholding the interests of all stakeholders and maximizing
shareholder value.

The Board has long been committed to excellence in corporate
governance. It has reviewed and upgraded the Company’s Code on
Corporate Governance on a regular basis, even before The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
introduced the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”). The CG Code came into effect during the accounting period
from January 1, 2005 with two levels of compliance: compliance with
the CG Code Provisions is mandatory whereas the Recommended
Best Practices are for guidance only. Any variances from the CG Code
Provisions must be explained. Further to the amendments to the Listing
2009, the Board updated the
Company’s Code on Corporate Governance in January 2009 to bring

Rules that took effect on January 1,

it into closer alignment with the CG Code. The following items highlight
where the Company’s corporate governance practice surpasses,
attains or varies from the CG Code:

B 15 R COMPLIANCE

BR Surpass

o FEERE=HDI_EBIIEHITEE- e Independent Non-executive Directors comprise two-thirds of the
HACEEARTRTAZRERERTHAME members of the Board, exceeding the minimum of one-third in the
KNELBE=ZD—EETLNE BB ILIFENTT CG Code Recommended Best Practices.
EEo

s EXCERRNABIUNNTESR BHLD
MAIZIRTE

. ZIK’AT SERREEZBE RAMEEK

RN RARERE - ZREEBFRNEFS
Ei&ﬁﬁ)/’t’@ﬁ%ﬁé\m%% AR RIZ ST A
fERSCEV AR E

e The Board includes four Independent Non-executive Directors,
surpassing the requirement under the Listing Rules.

e  The Company has a Risk Management Committee that reviews all
material controls and risk management functions and reports to
the Board twice a year, surpassing the CG Code Provisions.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Attain

The Company maintains appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance, in line with the CG Code Recommended Best
Practices.

Any Independent Non-executive Director who has served more
than nine years will be subject to a separate resolution on further
appointment to be approved by shareholders in line with the CG
Code Recommended Best Practices.

The Company adopts the CG Code guidelines on reviewing its
internal control system.

The Company meets all the CG Code Provisions except the
variances mentioned below.

Deviate

The Company deviates from the CG Code Provisions in having
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive performed by the same
person. The advantages of doing so and the balancing measures
that the Company has adopted to protect shareholders’ interests
are discussed in detail under the section “Chairman and Chief
Executive” in this report.

According to the Bye-Laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”) , the
Chairman or the Managing Director are not subject to retirement
by rotation.
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BOARD

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. It sets the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the corporate governance standards of the
Company. It also decides on matters relating to annual and interim
results, notifiable transactions, appointments or re-appointments of
directors, dividends and accounting policies. The Directors, individually
and collectively, are committed to act in good faith in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders.

As at the date of this report, the Board is composed of four
Independent Non-executive Directors and two Executive Directors.
The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a diverse range of
expertise, skills and experience to provide effective guidance and an
outside perspective to all major decisions of the Group. To assist in
the discharge of their duties, the Directors have free and direct access
to both the Company’s internal and external auditors and procedures
are in place to allow the Directors to obtain independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense. Besides, the Company has obtained
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in line with the CG
Code Recommended Best Practices.

Given the overall composition of the Board and the expertise, skills
and experience that each Director brings individually, the Group
believes that the Board is appropriately structured to provide sufficient
checks and balances to protect the interests of the Company and
its shareholders. The Board will regularly review its composition
to maintain a proper balance and diversity of expertise, skills and
experience to ensure continued effective leadership and oversight of
the Company’s businesses. Biographical details of the Directors are set
out on pages 30 to 33 of this annual report.
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In accordance with good corporate governance principles, the Board
established two Board Committees: the Audit Committee and the
Compensation Committee. In addition, a Management Committee and
a Risk Management Committee are also in place to support the Board
and the Board Committees. The composition of the Board, the Audit
Committee and the Compensation Committee is set out below. The
Management and Risk Management committees are discussed in the
relevant sections in this report.

EREE® HEZES®
Audit Compensation
BEEEgRE Members of the Board Committee Committee
BIYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
RN EE Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT v v
B E LA aBs P Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JP v
FlERIEL - up Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp v v
REHE Professor LEUNG Kwok v v
HITES Executive Directors
2R+ Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(FERITHBAEH) (Chairman and Chief Executive) v
ENZTHLE Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard
REEEXNEHITRENS 27 BENEM The Board members have no financial, business, family or other

EXREB R ERBEERFTELIEET AL
RBEBRBRARESETREETELIFNT
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material or relevant relationships with each other except that Mr. Kwong
and Dr. Lee both serve on the board of AMS Public Transport Holdings
Limited as independent non-executive directors.

It is the Board’s opinion that this relationship does not affect the
Directors’ independent judgment and integrity in executing their roles
and responsibilities.

None of the Independent Non-executive Directors owned any shares of
the Company up to the date of this report.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has confirmed with the Company
in writing his independence from the Company in accordance with
the relevant guidelines. The Company therefore considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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The Board holds four regular meetings a year and additional meetings
as and when required. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in
advance to facilitate the fullest possible attendance. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda of the Board
meetings and each Director is invited to present any businesses that
he wishes to discuss or propose at such meetings. Furthermore,
all Directors have access to the Company Secretary for advice and
services to ensure that board procedures and applicable rules and
regulations are adhered to. Board papers are circulated to all Directors
and other attendees not less than three days before the Board
meetings to ensure timely access to relevant information. Draft and final
versions of the minutes are circulated to all Directors for comments.
Any Director who is unable to physically attend any Board meeting may
participate electronically by conference call or via alternate arrangement
in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Moreover, pursuant to the Bye-
Laws, Board approval may also be obtained by way of circulation of
a resolution in writing on urgent matters when convening a Board
meeting is not practicable. Sufficient information and explanatory
materials will be provided to the Directors at the same time when a
resolution in writing is circulated.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, four full Board meetings
were held to review the quarterly performance results and discuss the
Group’s strategy going forward, as well as other business. In addition,
seven sets of resolutions in writing were passed.

Attendances of Directors of the full Board meetings in 2010 are as

follows:
HERB/EBRITRE

EEZge3 Board Meeting Meetings attended/held
BIUFEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
2N A& Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 4/4
BBE 54 GBS " UP Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBs, JP 4/4
= N Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp 4/4
REHE Professor LEUNG Kwok 4/4
HITES Executive Directors
2 EE L Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

(FERITHAAZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive) 4/4
BHRFEE Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard 4/4

BTIREBRRAFATHREH LIRS BIULIENT
Exgr MTRAELSBEATESLR NEMEMm -
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In order to facilitate free and open discussion of issues, Independent
Non-executive Directors may also meet without the presence of
Executive Directors from time to time.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Instead of following the CG Code Recommended Best Practices by
establishing a nomination committee with limited representation, the
Company intentionally involves the full Board in the appointment of
new Directors. The Board takes into account criteria such as expertise,
experience, integrity and commitment in its deliberations.

According to the Bye-Laws, any new Director (other than the Chairman
or the Managing Director) appointed by the Board is subject to
retirement and re-election by shareholders at the next general meeting
of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or at the next
annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition
to their number) following his appointment. At each annual general
meeting, one-third (or the number nearest to but not exceeding one-
third) of the Directors (other than the Chairman or the Managing
Director) will retire from office by rotation, and every Director (other
than the Chairman or the Managing Director) is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for
a specific term of three years and subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election pursuant to the Bye-Laws. To further strengthen the
standard of corporate governance, the Company follows the CG Code
Recommended Best Practices and requires any re-appointment of an
Independent Non-executive Director who has served on the Board for
over nine years to be subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by shareholders. In such cases, the Board will set out in the circular the
reasons it considers such Director to continue to be independent and
should be re-elected.

None of the Directors is aware of information that would reasonably
indicate that the Company is not in compliance with the CG Code,
except that (i) the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive are vested
in the same person (Code Provision A.2.1); and (ii) the Chairman and
the Managing Director are not subject to retirement by rotation (Code
Provision A.4.2).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Currently Dr. Lau Kwok Kuen, Peter, holds the positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive. In view of Dr. Lau’s extensive experience in the
industry and deep understanding of the Group’s businesses, the Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
in Dr. Lau provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership,
allows for more effective planning and execution of long term business
strategies and enhances efficiency in decision-making. The Board also
believes that the Company already has a strong corporate governance
structure appropriate for its circumstances in place to ensure effective
oversight of Management. The main elements of this structure include:

° Having Independent Non-executive Directors comprise two-thirds
of the Board;

¢ Including all four Independent Non-executive Directors as Audit
Committee members;

e Ensuring that all Independent Non-executive Directors have free
and direct access to both the Company’s internal and external
auditors and independent professional advice where necessary; and

e Having a “whistle-blowing” mechanism in place to allow the
Group’s staff members to anonymously and confidentially report
to the Head of Internal Audit any suspected acts of fraud or
gross misconduct by senior management, including that of the
Chairman and Chief Executive. Details about the “whistle-blowing”
mechanism are discussed under the section “Internal Control”.

The Board believes that these measures enable our Independent Non-
executive Directors to rigorously supervise the Group’s Management
and effectively control key issues relating to strategy, risk and integrity.
The Board continually reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
corporate governance structure to assess whether any changes are
necessary.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all four Independent Non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Mr. Buttifant, a qualified accountant with
extensive experience in financial reporting and controls. The Committee
is responsible for the appointment of external auditors, review of the
Group’s financial information and oversight of the Group’s financial
reporting system and internal control procedures. It is also responsible
for reviewing the interim and final results of the Group prior to
recommending them to the Board for approval. To this end, the Audit
Committee has unrestricted access to both the Company’s internal
and external auditors. Its terms of reference are available on request
and also accessible on the Company’s website at http.//www.giordano.
com.hk/web/HK/investors/2005AC. pdf.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review financial
reporting and internal control matters. The Group Chief Financial
Officer, the Chairman of the Risk Management Committee, the Head
of Internal Audit, the Company Secretary and representatives of the
External Auditor of the Company are expected to attend the meetings.
At the discretion of the Committee, other members of Management

BB Sy e B ERESHY T : may also be invited to attend its meetings. In 2010, the Audit
Committee held two meetings and the attendance record, on a named
basis, is set out below:

HERB/EEEBTRE

EREEEER Audit Committee Meeting Meetings attended/held

BIAFEITES Independent Non-executive Directors

RN EE Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 2/2

BEESAE eBs’ P Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBs, Jp 2/2

FHERIEL 0P Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp 2/2

REBHE Professor LEUNG Kwok 2/2

BERZEeRNg LHEIIEZHAMBEHNEZ R
Z  HZE2009F 12 A31 B IE 2 FEEFME E20104F
6A30HIEANEAFEHER -REgL EZZEE
ERNAEERNFEAHFINTIERERNEFE
WE WHEEEBEENSARTEREEEBEE
WASERREZ W BREEeFHEEE
EAEBARNIEITE RS URERERSC L E
BIBEASENEARVBRECEIRT A
HRABR BERNES REIJBREMEBER
BRE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed with the external
auditors the audit strategy summary, the final results for the year
ended December 31, 2009 and the interim accounts for the six months
ended June 30, 2010. During the meetings, the Audit Committee also
reviewed the activities of the Group’s Internal Audit Department and
its internal audit report, and discussed with Management the report’s
findings and recommendations on the Group’s business operations.
Besides, it also evaluated with Management the Group’s internal
control system to ensure its effectiveness, with particular attention to
the adequacy of resources, the qualifications and experience of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting staff, as well as their training
programs and budget.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Compensation Committee to deal with
matters of remuneration. Composed of three Independent Non-
executive Directors and the Chairman, it is responsible for reviewing
and determining the remuneration, compensation and benefits of
Directors and senior management. The committee members elect
one member as chairman at the commencement of each meeting.
When the remuneration package of an individual Director is under
review, the Director in question is required to abstain from voting
to avoid any conflict of interest. The terms of reference of the
Compensation Committee are available on request and also accessible
on the Company’s website at http://www.giordano.com.hk/web/HK/
investors/2005CC.pdf.

HERB/EERITREY

HEZEEER Compensation Committee Meeting Meeting attended/held
BIUFEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
2N AE Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 1/1
ZEREL 0P Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp 1/1
REBHIX Professor LEUNG Kwok 1/1
BITES Executive Director
2B 1S £ Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

(FERITEAAZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive) 0/1

2010 HEZESRITT —AEZ BIERE
MITBBE e R - FER2000F K T EFE X
TBBEMREBERA AR ENBBINTES
MEREEABR2009FIEAL « £ & RITHAAH I
BELEERRAMEZESSR UHERE UEW
RAEMMZER - EREREXNEHR LI 2 EE
i E S8R E A £ X o
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In 2010, the Compensation Committee held a meeting to review the
remuneration and bonus of the Chairman and Chief Executive, confirm
the 2009 guaranteed bonus to the Chairman and Chief Executive and
ratify and approve the 2009 bonus payment to Directors and senior
management. The Chairman and Chief Executive absented himself
from attending the said meeting and abstained from voting to avoid
any conflict of interest. Attendance record of the meeting, on a named
basis, is set out above.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company understands that a reasonable and comprehensive
remuneration package is an important factor in attracting, retaining
and motivating high quality personnel. As such, the Company
works to ensure that remuneration is competitive and aligned with
the Company’s objectives and performance. The Company takes
into consideration a number of relevant factors in determining its
remuneration policy, including the salaries paid by comparable
companies, job responsibilities, duties and scope, employment
conditions in the Company and its subsidiaries, market practices and
the financial and non-financial performance of the Company.

The Compensation Committee is responsible for reviewing and
determining the remuneration of the Directors. In doing so, the
Committee considers factors such as the fees paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, the responsibilities and likely workload
of the Independent Non-executive Directors and other employment
conditions in the Company to ensure that Independent Non-executive
Directors are appropriately paid for their time and responsibilities to the
Company.

The Company’s remuneration structure for its employees, including the
Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Director, is composed
of fixed compensation, cash performance bonuses, variable cash
incentives, long-term incentives, and retirement schemes as discussed
below.

Fixed compensation includes an employee’s base salary, allowances
and benefits (e.g. medical). Base salary and allowances are set and
reviewed annually for each position, taking into consideration the
Company’s remuneration policy, the Company’s and the individual's
performance as well as market conditions and practices. Benefits
are regularly reviewed and determined largely on the basis of local
standards and practices.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Employees are also eligible to receive an annual cash bonus based on
their performance at the Group, business unit and individual levels. The
bonuses awarded to the Chairman and Chief Executive, the Executive
Director and members of senior management are reviewed annually
by the Compensation Committee. In 2010, the cash performance
bonus component accounted for 73.7% of the total remuneration of
the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Director. Please
refer to note 10(a) to the financial statements for details. In addition,
the Company operates sales and business-related incentive schemes
to motivate certain staff such as front-line sales associates to achieve
specific sales or other business targets of the Company.

The Company also operates a share option scheme to provide long-
term incentives to reward and retain a high calibre management
team. The details of the scheme, together with information on options
exercised and outstanding in respect of the Executive Directors and
employees as at December 31, 2010 under the scheme, are set out in
the section of Share Option Information of this annual report.

Pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the
Company participates in an MPF scheme registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

The total remuneration of the members of the Board (excluding share-
based payments) is shown below:

(U EGEFTTAEEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
e Fees 1
FrEN R K& H 1R R Salaries, allowances and other
benefits 7
B I 4B T Variable remuneration related to
performance 9
i Mk Share options -
IRRET B3R Retirement scheme contributions -
17
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The total remuneration (including share-based payments) of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, the Executive Directors and the
five highest paid employees (one of whom was Executive Director) fell
within the following bands:

2009

N

B Remuneration Number
0% 7T — 1,000,0007% 7T HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 4
1,000,001/ 7T - 2,000,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000 -
2,000,001/ 7T - 3,000,000/ 7T HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 4
3,000,001/ 7T - 4,000,000/ 7T HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 -
4,000,001 7T — 5,000,000 7T HK$4,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 -
5,000,001/ 7T - 6,000,000/ 7T HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000 -
12,000,001/ 7T - 13,000,000/% 7T HK$12,000,001 — HK$13,000,000 1
22,000,001 7T - 23,000,000 7T HK$22,000,001 — HK$23,000,000 -
9

ERBIUFATETZHMNABRE —F AR
HIEELHMBHRERMEE10() -

EEZES
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All Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments fell within the
first remuneration band. Please refer to note 10(a) to the financial
statements for details.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to a Management Committee.
The Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board and
comprises the Chairman and Chief Executive, the Executive Director
and the head of the Group’s Middle East and India operations.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s internal controls,
particularly in respect of financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions, and as such monitors the effectiveness
on an ongoing basis. Appropriate policies and procedures have been
put in place to safeguard the assets against unauthorized use or
disposition; to maintain proper and accurate accounting records and
enhance the reliability of financial reporting; and to ensure efficiency
and effectiveness of operations and compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. Such policies and procedures are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement, loss, error or fraud, and to manage and minimize rather
than eliminate the risk of failure in the Group’s operational systems.

The Group’s internal control framework includes the following major
components:

e An organizational and governance structure with defined
responsibility, proper segregation of duties and delegated
authority;

e  Systems and procedures of financial control, internal control and
risk management to identify and measure risks and conduct bi-
annual risk assessment to monitor the progress of risk mitigation;

e  Operational and financial budgeting and forecasting systems for
performance measurement,
against budgets and plans, and setting key business performance
targets with appropriate measures to rectify deficiencies;

including regular variance analysis

e  Stringent policies and procedures for the appraisal, review and
approval of significant contracts, major capital and recurrent

expenditures;

e A “whistle-blowing” mechanism to allow the Group’s staff
to anonymously report any suspected acts of fraud or gross
misconduct by senior management, including that of the Chairman
and Chief Executive, to the Head of Internal Audit who will refer the
report to the Chairman of the Audit Committee for further action;
and

e  Strict internal procedures and controls for the handling and
dissemination of price sensitive information.
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The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the
Group’s internal control system and the review of its effectiveness to
a Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management Committee
is composed of five members including one Executive Director,
Mr. Mah, together with the Group Chief Financial Officer, the Head of
Internal Audit and two senior management representatives. It reviews
all material controls in accordance with the code provisions on internal
control of the Company’s Code on Corporate Governance, and reports
to the Board twice a year. The Risk Management Committee is fully
accountable to the Board. The Committee evaluated and was satisfied
with the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function as well
as their training programmes and budget for the year, and reported to
the Board that in all material respects the system of internal control
over risks associated with the Group’s operations was sufficient,
appropriate and operated effectively on a continuing basis.

Co-operating closely with the Risk Management Committee, the
Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the internal
controls of the Group.

The key tasks of the Internal Audit Department include:

e Unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s key
activities, risk management, control and governance process;

e Conduct independent, comprehensive and regular audits
of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of business and support units and
subsidiaries, including recommending improvements and
monitoring corrective or remedial measures taken by the units and
subsidiaries to minimize risk exposure;

e Conduct special reviews of areas of concern identified by
Management or the Audit Committee;

° Investigation of business ethics, conflict of interest and other
Group policy violations; and

e QOversee the “whistle-blowing” mechanism.
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Adopting a risk-based approach, the Internal Audit Department
implements the audit plan approved by the Audit Committee and
Management. It furnishes independent and objective evaluations
and recommendations in the form of an internal audit report to
Management. The Head of Internal Audit reports directly to the Audit
Committee twice a year on major findings, corrective actions and
responses from Management. The Audit Committee has free and direct
access to the Head of Internal Audit without reference to the Chairman
or Management.

During the year of 2010, the Internal Audit Department issued audit
reports to Management which covered significant business processes
and activities of the Group. It worked with Management to establish
action plans to address any identified control weaknesses. Post-audit
reviews were performed to ensure those agreed actions have been
implemented as intended.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

As required by Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, the Company adopted
in August 2004 and updated in 2009 a Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Directors. All Directors confirmed their compliance with
the code throughout the year.

In addition, the Company adopted in March 2005 and updated in 2009
a Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Specified Employees,
which governs the securities transactions of those employees who
may possess or have access to price sensitive information. The said
code covers areas such as prohibitions and conduct in the dealing
of the Company’s securities, avoidance of conflict of interests and
confidentiality of the Company’s information, etc. These employees
have complied with the aforesaid code throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, its operational results
and cash flows for that period. The Company’s financial statements
are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for
ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently, and that where judgment has been applied and estimates
made, they are prudent and reasonable.

The statement by the principal auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 62 to 63.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration charged by the Group’s principal auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for non-audit and
statutory audit services is set out below:

(K EEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
IEF RS Non-audit services 1
ETEBEZ Statutory audit 3
mEr Total 4
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

Earning shareholders’ trust and confidence has always been the
major emphasis of the Company’s efforts in investor relations. The
Group’s senior management keeps a constant and open dialogue with
the investment community through company visits, conference calls,
information sessions and participation in major investor conferences to
clearly communicate the Company’s business strategies, developments
and prospects. Over 100 meetings with institutional investors and
research analysts were held in 2010.
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The Company has a wide and diverse shareholder base of institutional
and retail investors. To ensure all shareholders have equal and timely
access to important company information, the Company proactively
utilizes internet and other forms of electronic communication to deliver
up-to-date information in a timely and transparent manner. To strike
a balance between keeping shareholders abreast of the Company’s
performance on one hand and avoiding an unhealthy focus on short-
term results on the other, the Company decided against following the
CG Code Recommended Best Practice of publishing quarterly financial
results. Instead, the Company publishes operations updates for the
first three and nine month periods on its corporate website. Annual and
interim reports, stock exchange filings, video webcasts, press releases
and other materials are also accessible on the corporate website.

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views on matters affecting the
Group, and encourages their attendance at shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns they may have with the Board or
Management directly. The Company’s Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
is an especially important forum. In order to encourage and facilitate
shareholder attendance at its AGM, the Company gives at least 20
clear business days’ prior notice together with a detailed agenda.
To ensure clear communication, each substantially separate issue is
proposed under a separate resolution.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, any shareholder holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings shall have the right, by written requisition,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
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Investors and shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at
shareholder’s meetings or to make enquiries of the Board may do so by
contacting our Investor Relations Department whose contact details are
listed on page 148 of this annual report.

The Company held its 2010 AGM on June 9, 2010. The meeting was
held at Block B, 3rd Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung
Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Attendance of individual Board
members at the AGM is set out below:

HERE/
ERBITRE
Meeting
2010FE R G & Shareholders’ Meeting in 2010 attended/held
BILKBITES Independent Non-executive Directors
BN EE Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 1/1
B R LS E eBs  uP Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, Jp 1/1
FlERIEL - up Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp 1/1
REBHIX Professor LEUNG Kwok 1/1
BITES Executive Directors
ZIEEE L Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(FERITHAEZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive) 1/1
BHLFRE Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard 1/1
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The Chairman opened formal business at the 2010 AGM by advising on
the voting procedures and the level of proxies received. The following
items of business were considered at the meeting:

e  Adoption of the audited financial statements and the reports from
the directors and the independent auditor;

e Resolutions on a final dividend and a special final dividend;

° Retirement and re-election of retiring directors and re-appointment
of auditor;

e  Resolution on the grant of general mandate to issue shares; and

° Renewal of the general mandate to repurchase shares.

The 2011 AGM is proposed to be held on June 9, 2011. Each of the
resolutions as set out in the notice of the AGM will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

There was no change in the Company’s Bye-Laws during the year.
If any amendment to the Bye-Laws is necessary, according to the
relevant law governing the Company, the Company will propose the
amendment for shareholders’ approval at a general meeting of the
Company.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has long been committed to being a responsible
corporate citizen, and formally adopted its Corporate Social
Responsibility policy statement in January 2005. Despite the impact
of the global financial tsunami, the Company continued to focus on
“doing well by doing good” in order to have a positive impact in the
communities where we do business, paying particular attention to
stakeholder relations, community involvement and environmental
protection.
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Employee Relations

The Company believes that its long-term success depends on the
contribution of each and every individual in the organization. As such,
the Company is committed to treating our employees with fairness and
respect. We believe in co-operation, teamwork, and trust. We hire on
the basis of ability and merit, and reward and promote on the basis of
performance.

The Company also recognizes that values, fairness and opportunities
for continuing professional and personal development are equally
important drivers for high achievers. As such, the Company invests
heavily not only in comprehensive staff training and development
programs in sales and service, but also in management, planning and
leadership programs addressing our people’s professional and personal
development needs. The Company also has an Employee Self-Learning
Program to foster individual initiative and responsibility for development.
In addition to investing in our own people, the Group also invests
in training and development programs for its business partners and
franchisees in the Greater China region to help them better compete in
today’s rapidly changing and highly competitive market. The Company
will continue to invest in learning and development to maintain its
competitive edge.

The Company organizes various activities, including seminars on
healthy living conducted by healthcare professionals, for its employees
from time to time to help them maintain a healthy work-life balance.
Various interest groups are also active in organizing different sports
events or leisure activities which employees can participate at minimal
or no cost.

The Company also conducts employee satisfaction surveys annually
and such surveys allow us to obtain useful feedback for reference in
setting company policies.
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Supply chain management is critical for the Group’s success and we
work closely with suppliers to ensure that they comply with our quality,
performance and not least labor standards. In particular, we expect our
suppliers to comply with our Core Ethical Sourcing Requirements as
listed below:

e The supplier only employs workers that are above the local legal
minimum age.

e  The supplier does not use forced or prison labour in any part or
aspects of its facilities.

e  The workers are not subjected to physical abuse, or the threat of
physical abuse.

e The supplier does not contravene local environmental laws and
regulations.

e The supplier provides a safe and healthy work environment for its
workers.

e The supplier is committed to rectifying any areas of concern
identified during supplier audits by the Company or its appointed
third party auditors.

The Group’s Quality Assurance team conducts surprise inspections

from time to time to ensure that factories comply with the Group’s
various standards.
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Community Involvement

Acting on our belief in a “World Without Strangers”, the Group actively
supports various charitable organizations and causes, especially
those associated with education, children and the underprivileged.
One such program is Project Hope, a public service project organized
by the China Youth Development Foundation. The Group has been a
longstanding supporter of the project’s work in providing children in
poverty-stricken rural areas in China Mainland with access to primary
school education by funding the construction of a number of Giordano
Hope primary schools. The twenty-first Giordano Hope primary school
was opened in Guangdong in October 2010. The Group also donated
to the Caring for Children Foundation in support of children’s welfare in
the Mainland.

Environmental Protection

The Group is also committed to protecting the environment. In 2008,
the Group launched an initiative to convert its shops to using energy
saving lighting. By the end of 2010, over half of the Group’s stores in
South Korea, Singapore, Taiwan, Thailand and the Middle East have
been converted to using energy-saving lighting.

In June 2010, the Group launched the “Green Team” initiative which
has representatives from different departments working together to
promote low carbon living. The Green Team organizes various monthly
activities for staff to experience low carbon living and reduce carbon
footprint.

The Group is also a longstanding sponsor of the Ngong Ping Charity
Walk, an event jointly organized by the Youth Hostel Association of
Hong Kong (the “YHAHK”) and Ngong Ping 360 cable car company to
promote conservation of Hong Kong’s countryside. In January 2011 the
Group was recognized by the YHAHK for its unbroken support of the
Ngong Ping Charity Walk since the event’s inauguration in 2007.
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The directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
business of the Group is the retail and distribution of men’s, women’s
and children’s basic and fashion apparel and accessories under the
Giordano, Concepts One, Giordano Ladies, Giordano Junior and
BSX brands through its own stores as well as third party franchisees.
Although targeted at different market segments, the brands all strive to
deliver excellent quality, value and service to consumers.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by principal activity and
geography for the year ended December 31, 2010 is set out in note 5
to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2010 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 64 to 142.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of 4.5 HK cents per share and a special interim
dividend of 4.0 HK cents per share were paid on September 24, 2010.

The directors recommend to shareholders the payment of a final
dividend of 7.0 HK cents per share and a special final dividend of
11.5 HK cents per share for the year ended December 31, 2010 to
those shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on June 9, 2011,

RESERVES

Movements in reserves during the year are set out in the Statements of
Changes in Equity on pages 70 to 72.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2010, the retained profits of the Company together
with the contributed surplus available for distribution amounted to
HK$1,011 million (2009: HK$902 million).
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made for charitable purposes by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$500,000 (2009: HK$400,000).

FIXED ASSETS

During the year, the Group acquired fixed assets of approximately
HK$91 million (2009: HK$59 million). Movements in fixed assets during
the year are set out in notes 15, 16 and 23 to the financial statements.
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at December 31, 2010
are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS

As at December 31, 2010, the Group had bank loans of approximately
HK$84 million (2009: HK$74 million) that were repayable on demand or
within one year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate percentages of purchases attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers during the year are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 19.1%
Five largest suppliers combined 33.7%

The percentage of the sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers is less than 30% during the year.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which, to
the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers and customers.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
ten fiscal years is set out on pages 2 and 3.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are shown in note 26 to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the year are set out
on pages 143 to 147.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there are no restrictions against having such rights
under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

Mr. MAH Chuck On, Bernard

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT*

Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JP*

Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, Jp*

Professor LEUNG Kwok* (appointed and ceased to be
a Non-executive Director on July 7, 2010)

*  Independent non-executive directors

In accordance with Bye-Law 98 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen and Professor LEUNG Kwok will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company as at the date of
this report are set out on pages 30 to 33 of this annual report. Further
information of the retiring directors proposed to be re-elected are set
out in the circular.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

The directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting do not have any service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisted during or at the end
of the year to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at December 31, 2010, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO; or as notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

¥kEHmZ
HER G
EnfEm
(Ktat)
BRHOBERER Beneficial RS
(H17) interest BOEHN
Beneficial in unlisted Approximate
interest in underlying aggregate
EEHE EEME shares shares percentage of
Name of director Nature of interest (Note) (Note) interests
2B 1 A
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter Personal 24,118,000 1,800,000 1.73%
Bz A
MAH Chuck On, Bernard Personal 1,619,086 6,200,000 0.52%

et : HEZRODRBREAITETAZIABERG BRI RBIFE -
FLEBZRANGTETRZIHERG A RFARAZ
BIRIE FMIR TEFZIERIE  GREHBIIRE 1467

Br Bt B SN R2010F12A831H A RRIEE R
THAEBEEARB RERBEEE (TR RLES
MERE GBI EXVER R 5 - BB R D R EEEFE
AR WREEBRIRZIGOIE3526E T HF
BB ATE SRR (12 2E<F B ARE AR A
B 2 P 2 AT RE 2R SR B o AN B Bt B R AN
RAR S EAMHER R NS E£2010F12831H
IFEFRABETLEALHE SRR ESHES
ZEHEBHRABMISHE I T RAEBALRQ AR EAM
EBZ RN EREmMER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

Note: Interests in the shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives were long position.
Underlying unlisted shares are share options granted to the directors pursuant to the
share option scheme of the Company and details of which are set out on page 145.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2010, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or as notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. Furthermore,
save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended December
31, 2010 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or any of their
spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EEEREE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FERR

R2010%F12 A31 0 » RIFFE 75 M I E 15§ £ 336{F
RERARREFE 2ELM THALERARRF]
BEERITHAEING B ARF Z S BR D
ZHERTOKBE%IIA L

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at December 31, 2010, the following persons, other than directors
and chief executive of the Company, having interests or short positions
of 5% or more in the Company’s shares or underlying shares were
recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO:

HERMGR

HERD A
Aggregate R
long position BAERBEN
in shares Approximate
and underlying aggregate
BB Joka shares of percentage
Name Note interests of interests
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its associates 1 207,321,230 13.86%
Franklin Templeton Investments Corp. 2 89,459,440 5.98%

Hpaz:

1. Aberdeen Asset Management Plc J& B EFZEA
W& BEHETE 5 (7 15 F 207,321,230 R 17 °

#1Aberdeen Asset Management Plc X £ % f&]
2ENBLAAXENEEMKRF#E T4
BR17

BEr A5

Name of subsidiary

Notes:

1. Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its associates held
207,821,230 shares in the capacity of Investment Manager.

Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its various wholly owned
subsidiaries held the following shares on behalf of the accounts
they managed:

HFERGAEH

Aggregate long position in shares

Aberdeen Asset Management Asia Limited
Aberdeen Asset Management Inc

Aberdeen Asset Management Limited
Aberdeen Asset Managers Limited

Aberdeen International Fund Managers Limited
Aberdeen Private Wealth Management Limited

2. HiFranklin Resources, Inc. 2 [F# 2 &H1/E
23 d]Franklin Templeton Investments Corp. LX
REHTE 51715 589,459, 440K R 17 45 42 (E 1K
HEZ e

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m BB R 2 7

201,093,230
2,160,000
674,000
26,030,000
186,210,673
10,722,000

2. Franklin Resources, Inc. had a deemed interest in respect of
89,459,440 shares held by its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
Franklin Templeton Investments Corp., in the capacity of
Investment Manager.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #
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EEERESE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Company did not have any connected transactions which were
subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire and being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment, and a resolution to this effect will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 24, 2011

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

K B RS 6 E AT

BERVEBRERIAKRR
(RERZEZMA LB BRAA])

AAZEED (AT (8] B EZINERFC4IE
Z1428ERNREBRER AR (IEAA]) RE
WMBAR(LTEHIEEE])NEHTB®REK
A G RAR B ENR2010F12 A3 AN A K
AREEABRREHEZEZRLEFEMNEHIBEER
EHRERER AHEREDENEGHRERE
R URFESHTBEMER LM THE-

EENEHMBHERRARENTL

ERREFARERBEREBEHMAEEMY
TRV BRELERRFE (RRED) ORERE
mAEAHMBRER  USAHUBRRELEEM
RFHRER - REBEERRREA M BREAUE
B A BRI B - AR & OF BF 5 ¥R R T AF A R R RRRE
ok $5 5R T B B0 B K #5 AR RO

BREEHNEFE

BMOEETRBEREMNEZEZS S MU B R
FIEHER  WRBARIE1981F (RFIE) F90F
EMEBRABRESEMOER BRI 2RSSR
BHEMBO - BMATSRARENADT AT EM
AT E FABEEAET-

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m BB R 2 7

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Giordano
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 142, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at December 31, 2010,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #
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BYBRBMHRE S
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
December 31, 2010, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 24, 2011

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ XA BER 22 S

63



| oF F B &

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HE2010F12A318ILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2010

(B & REFIS) - (In HK$ millions, lligza
UEEETRENMN) except earnings per share) Note 2009
=E Turnover 5 4,233
$HE A Cost of sales (2,058)
E5 Gross profit 2,175
H WA Other income 6 110
DIHE A Distribution expense (1,545)
THEH Administrative expense (169)
HAitn g & & A Other operating expense (251)
e Operating profit 7 320
HE—BARERE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary -
MEEH Finance expense 8 (1)
FEAG HERIIEHIA 7] Share of profit of jointly controlled

i ) companies 19 38
FE AL — B & 2 B)0a A Share of profit of an associate 20 6
B 35 A& 7 Profit before taxation 5 363
g Taxation 11 (64)
REEEF Profit for the year 299
FEAL & T - Profit attributable to:

KARIRE Shareholders of the Company 12 288

FEFE M A Non-controlling interests 11

299

KRR EE R Z Earnings per share for profit attributable

TR AEF to shareholders of the Company 13

B (GE) Basic (HK cents) 19.3

BsE (B) Diluted (HK cents) 19.3
&% 2 Dividends 14(a) 240

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

=/ D BE B AR
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EHEARER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BZE2010F12A31BIEFE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

(U GEFTAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
R EE R Profit for the year 299
Htpma s Other comprehensive income:
ArESMEE Fair value gains on available-for-sale
NEEZ BT financial assets 2
N B AR KD A F Exchange adjustment on translation
WMEZERAE of overseas subsidiaries and branches 61
BARIE LB IRTERIA Deferred tax relating to the exchange movement (5)
HE—MBARZ Realization of exchange reserve upon
IR 0E disposal of a subsidiary -
AEEHERENRE Total comprehensive income for the year 357
EhEme W Total comprehensive income attributable to:
A E PR Shareholders of the Company 337
FEFEGI R A Non-controlling interests 20
357

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 65
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EERER

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

BALANCE SHEETS

ot

(XGEETHEN) (In HK$ millions) Note
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
LE R YR g Property, plant and equipment 15
REME Investment property 16
EES Goodwill 17
ol NS b Interest in subsidiaries 18
FHAE A A Interest in jointly controlled

7 companies 19
—EE R R EE Interest in an associate 20
AREreRMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 21
RIERERZEAFERIEZ  Financial assets at fair value

CREE through profit or loss 22
FE LB B A R IR Amounts due from subsidiaries 18
HELTHR Leasehold land and

MeTENKIE rental prepayments 23
HEERS Rental deposits
R IEE E Deferred tax assets 28
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 24
ME TR Leasehold land and

HeENHIE rental prepayments 23
JE LS BR 30 R L A JE i K Trade and other receivables 25
FE UL BT B~ R 5K I8 Amounts due from subsidiaries 18
Re RRITET Cash and bank balances 32
EERE Total assets

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

66 s s mEmER 2D

55
Group

AT
Company
2009

402

1,666
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EEEEXR (F)
BALANCE SHEETS (continued)

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

| A
HiaF Group Company

(UABEBTREN) (In HK$ millions) Note 2009
ERREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BARHE Capital and reserves
[ Share capital 26 75
{1 Reserves 27 1,321
R A% B Proposed dividends 14 210
VNN ) Equity attributable to

JEAE HE 2= shareholders of the Company 1,606
FEFE S M R 2 Non-controlling interests -
RSB Total equity 1,606
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
BEEHIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 28 -
HoAth JE 3K Other payables 29 -
REEE Current liabilities
JE 51 BR 3 R ELAth B < 3R Trade and other payables 29 3
IRITEX Bank loans 33 57
sl Taxation _

60

BEEAE Total liabilities 60
ERREEAR Total equity and liabilities 1,666
2= BAR
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter MAH Chuck On, Bernard
EZE EFE
Director Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 67
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HE2010F12A318ILEE

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended December 31, 2010

k=3

(U BEEETRENL) (In HK$ millions) Note
Fed ¥ Operating activities:
B 35 A& 7 Profit before taxation
EoE=E Adjustments for:
HE—MWBAREI ZEIE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 34a
FEAG RIS QA Share of profit of

3 jointly controlled companies 19
FEAL — B & 2 B F Share of profit of an associate 20
HET MHEES BN FIE Amortization of leasehold land and

s rental prepayments 23
FEWA Interest income 6
we Depreciation 7
L ER Y] Impairment of property,

BB plant and equipment 7
LEME HERBEZ Net loss on disposal of property,

F B plant and equipment 7
REZXREAFEAESREEY  Gain on financial assets at fair value

3 hni = through profit or loss 6
RITEZRFE Interest on bank loans 8
BREER Share option expense 9
EEE® MEKWBEBEEHF 2 Operating cash inflow before changes

KBRS in working capital, interest and tax

FEZ (Em) /md

JFE Ui BR R e LA R MR 2
(3 hn) /g

JRE AN R R I EL A B AN R 2 48 hn/
ORd) —EHEn

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade and
other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade and
other payables — current portion

H A ER R 2R Decrease in other payables
—RHHD - long-term portion

KEFRSFEEZRS Cash generated from operations

AR E Interest paid

ENBEENEFH Hong Kong profits tax paid

B8 NE IR Overseas tax paid

REXEK2 Net cash inflow from
BERANFE operating activities

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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2009

363

382
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EHRERER (HF)
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

BZE2010F12A31BIEFE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

i iF

(U GEETHEENN) (In HK$ millions) Note 2009
BREEK: Investing activities:
BEWE. Purchase of property, plant and

W28 KR equipment 15 (59)
HEWE- Proceeds from sale of property, plant

Hees K AR 2 WA and equipment 2
HE—B AR Disposal of a subsidary (net of bank

CRBRIBRTHEFTRRESEEH) balances and cash equivalents

disposed of) 34a -

W — @A A Acquisition of a subsidiary (net of

(RBRBRTEFTRREEEH) bank balances and cash equivalents

acquired of) 34b -

HET MHEES BN FIE Increase in leasehold land and rental

2380 prepayments 23 (22)
MEZE 2 (38mMm) /@b (Increase)/decrease in rental deposits 12
RITE AFRZ AN Increase in bank time deposits 32 (232)
2 B Interest received 6
B R E § A 7 Dividends received from

1% 2 jointly controlled companies 17
B —EE QRIRE Dividends received from an associate 8
REEK 2 Net cash outflow from

REREFHE investing activities (268)
REFEK: Financing activities:
BITIRAFTIS A Proceeds from issue of share capital -
[mENE e R Dividends paid to non-controlling

AR interests 3)
ERRE Dividends paid (75)
RITER 2N Additions of bank loans 17
RITERZ D Repayments of bank loans (20)
RMEXEBEZ Net cash outflow from

HeRt 38 financing activities (81)
ReRESEEZ Increase in cash and

30 cash equivalents 33
FENRESRBEEEE Cash and cash equivalents

®F at the beginning of the year 530
HEEERSE > Effect of foreign exchange

E2-4 rate changes 27
FRBAESRBASEE Cash and cash equivalents

®== at the end of the year 32 590

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B ZE2010F12A318LFE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

(a) %M
Group

RRARRESES
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

ThEzS
HEERA
X BRE Available- FiERE
BEGE e for-sale B
RE  HABH  Capital RHEE Share ENfE Ht#E  financial  REEF Non- RRAH
(KBEETREN) Share Contributed redemption Share  options Exchange Other asset  Retained &3t controlling Total
(In HKS millions) capital surplus reserve  premium reserve reserve  reserves reserve profits Total interests equity

7201051 A1H
At January 1, 2010 75 383 3 608 19 32 133 5 860 2,118 68 2,186

REERT
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 537 537 30 567
Hiira s
QOther comprehensive income:
-AHESREELTEZ AT
(Histz1)
- Fair value gains on available-for-
sale financial assets (note 21) - - - - - - - 2 - 2 - 2
—BINNBRARRDARRE L
3 HE
- Exchange adjustment on translation
of overseas subsidiaries
and branches - - - - - 55 - - - 55 4 59
~BREXESHELHE
(Br7t28)
- Deferred tax relating to the
exchange movement (note 28) - - - - - 3) - - - 3) - )
~HEMBARZEREL R
- Realization of exchange reserve
upon disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - 15 - - - 15 - 15

#EalsE
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 67 - 2 537 606 34 640

HBREERS
Transactions with owners:
REREE
Transfer among reserves - - - - (5) 11 2 - (8) - - -
Ffstal
Share option scheme

-RiTREBREN#T2RA

—Shares issued upon exercise

of share options - - - 15 - - - - - 15 - 15

-BIREER

—Share option expense - - - - 5 - - - - 5 - 5
WERAEE 2SRRI S
Non-controlling interests arising

from acquisition - - - - - 1 - - - 1 3 4
FEHMERRS
Dividends to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - (20) (20)
2009F RERFARE (Mt 14i)
2009 final and special dividends

(note 14(b)) - - - - - - - - (210) (210) - (210)
2010FF B RKRIRE (H14(8))
2010 interim and special dividends

(note 14(a)) - - - - - - - - (127) (127) - (127)

BREEARS

Total transactions with owners - - - 15 - 12 2 - (345) (316) (17) (333)
#2010512A31A

At December 31, 2010 75 383 3 623 19 111 135 7 1,052 2,408 85 2,493

70 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Eag2mx (H)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

EHZE2010F12A318 LFE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

() &8
Group

2009F 2 LBHFMT:
The comparative figures for 2009 are set out as follows:
FRARFEGER
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

HEZS
REERE
AKX i Avalable- PRI
BOG#E E1 for-sale B
BA  #ABR%  Capita  ROEE Share  EREE HtEE  francid  EFRET Non- EzmfE
(UBEBTAEN) Share Contributed  redemption Share  options  Exchange Other asset  Retained A% controling Total
(In HK$ millons) capital surplus reserve  premium reserve reserve  reserves reserve profits Total interests equity

7200951 A1H
At January 1, 2009 75 383 3 608 18 (15) 101 3 679 1,855 51 1,906

REERT
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 288 288 11 299
Htira s
QOther comprehensive income:
-AHESREERTHEZET
(H#21)
- Fair value gains on available-for-
sale financial assets (note 21) - - - - - - - 2 - 2 - 2
—BHHBRARRARAREL
EXAE
- Exchange adjustment on translation
of overseas subsidiaries and
branches - - - - - 52 - - - 52 9 61
-BREZEH EERE
(Brit28)
- Deferred tax relating to the
exchange movement (nofe 28) - - - - - (6) - - - (5) - (5)

BEa s
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 47 - 2 288 337 20 357

HREERS
Transactions with owners:
FLIEkE!
Transfer among reserves - - - - - - 32 - (32) - - -
G
Share option scheme

-BRERE

- Share option expense - - - - 1 - - - - 1 - 1
FEHEERRE
Dividends to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 3 )
20085 RERRE (it 1410))
2008 final dividends (note 14(b)) - - - - - - - - (45) (45) - (45)
20095 BRE (Wit 146)
2009 interim dividends (note 14(a)) - - - - - - - - (30) (30) - (30)

BHEEARS

Total transactions with owners - - - - 1 - 32 - (107) (74) (3) (77)
2009512 431R

At December 31, 2009 75 383 3 608 19 32 133 5 860 2,118 68 2,186

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 71
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

B ZE2010F12A318LFE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

(b) 2+
Company
-
BEf#E BRERE
BRE  BABH% Capital R EE Share  REREF  EREE
Share Contributed redemption Share options  Retained Total
(K EEETHREN) (In HK$ millions) capital surplus reserve  premium reserve profits equity
R2010F1A1H At January1, 2010 v M s _____ o8 _____ 8 ____ 62 1,606
KEZRH (fat12) Profit for the year (note 12) - - - - - 441 441
gmaks Total comprehensive income _ ___ _ __ - SR, SR, SR, SR, - o “ _
isfmRE Transfer among reserves - - - - (5) 5 -
R Share option scheme
—RfTERREMET — Shares issue upon exercise
2 B3 of share options - - - 15 - - 15
-BREER — Share option expense - - - - 6 - 6
20096 K8 R RIAR 2 2009 final and special
(Biit14m)) dividends (note 14(b)) - - - - - (210) (210)
2010 B R AR E 2010 interim and special
(HiF14(a) dividends (note 14(a)) - - - - - (127) (127)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, - T T w 1 () (319)
20105128318 At December 31, 2010 75 540 3 623 19 471 1,731
2009F ZHLBHFMT :
The comparative figures for 2009 are set out as follows:
B
EEfE ERERRE
BA  BARH Capital {7 &E Share  EFEH  EZEE
Share  Contributed  redemption Share options Retained Total
(K EEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) capital surplus reserve premium reserve profits equity
R2000F1A1H At January1,2009 ™ok 8 ____..B8 ______ 8 ____1B____ 1369
KERRER (HiE12) Profit for the year (note 12) - - - - - 312 312
BreNE Total comprehensive income - - - - - 312 312
e Transfer among reserves - - - - - - -
R A Share option scheme
-BREER - Share option expense - - - - - - -
2008F KK B 2008 final dividends
(Hiit14b)) (note 14(b)) - - - - - (45) (45)
2009F R Hiflk & 2009 interim dividends
(Hiit14(a) (note 14(z)) - - - - - (30) (30)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e e e SRR (k0 IR (oo
A2009F12531H At December 31, 2009 75 540 3 608 18 362 1,606

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Giordano International Limited ([AR &) &
HWBE AR (B AEE])ER—EER
FR382,300M /5 W B M0 ERR 2 TEH
4 9 85 K $8 & Giordano + Concepts One (Al
#Giordano Concepts ) ~ Giordano Ladies *
Giordano Junior % BSXE f 8 2 B Ak - A&
MR B RERRELERKES-

ARRAR—BRBEREIMAINEREE
N&E Bl EE A A Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda °
RABIMEFNEBMEZHAER QRN
F—mi5 i (R :709) -

BRIFRIGERIN KA KT BHRRABEBTA
BB G B HRER B R20114F3A24H
EEESEB-

FTEEFBE

AUBRETHRA TS EHRERIH
T

(a) mREXE

AMBHRRDIZBEL QM AGRD
ZEBMBEREER ([HKFRS |) ~ &E
SRR (THKAS |) K2 Bim 5 - A Bt
BHRERRBELKALRE BRI HE
ZeMEERNERERATFEREZ
EMEESEHEATFEMER-
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Bt 7% R R Y EE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

GENERAL INFORMATION

Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) distribute and sell casual apparel under the
brand names of Giordano, Concepts One (renamed from Giordano
Concepts), Giordano Ladies, Giordano Junior and BSX through an
extensive retailing network with over 2,300 shops spanning over
20 countries. It also operates a limited manufacturing capacity in
China Mainland.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. lIts registered office is situated at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda. The Company has
its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(stock code: 709).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in million of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million) unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on March 24, 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below:

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The financial statements are
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial asset and
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.

The accounting policies and methods of computation used in
the preparation of these financial statements are consistent
with those used in 2009 except for the adoption of new and
revised HKFRSs which are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2010 as set out in note 2(b)

below.
(b) ¥ K & & 5T ZHKFRSK HKAS (b) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs and
SO HKASs
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In the current year, the Group has adopted the following
revised standards, amendments and interpretations issued
by HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s business and
effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on or after
January 1, 2010:

HKFRS 3 E A= HKFRS 3 Business combinations
({&zT) (2009FE7HA1H = 2 18 (Revised) (effective for annual periods beginning on
8 89 5 5 HA B AR 7)) or after July 1, 2009)
HKAS 27 BB B ®RER HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements
(1&857) (200978188 2 % (Revised) (effective for annual periods beginning on
B 16 B F Z B3R A4 R0 or after July 1, 2009)
HK—%2 5 BsHmRk 225 — HK - INT 5 Presentation of financial statements —

ERAHRBE R
1 30 2 O K
2
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Classification by the borrower of a term
loan that contains a repayment on
demand clause
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs and HKASs
(continued)

HK(IFRIC) Distributions of non-cash assets to owners
- INT 17 (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after July 1, 2009)
Annual (effective for annual periods beginning on
Improvements or after January 1, 2010)
2009

The adoption of the above revised standards, amendments
and interpretation has no material impact to the financial
statements except for certain presentation changes and
additional disclosures.

Certain new standard, amendments and interpretation to
existing standards have been published that are relevant to
the Group’s business and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011 or
later periods. The Group has not early adopted the following
new or amended standards and interpretation in the financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2010:

HKAS 24 Related party disclosures
(Revised) (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2011)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments
(effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2013)
HK(IFRIC) Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity
—INT 19 instruments
(effective for annual periods beginning on
or after July 1, 2010)
Annual (effective for annual periods beginning on
Improvements or after January 1, 2011)
2010

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(o)

(d)

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs and HKASs
(continued)

Apart from certain presentational changes and additional
disclosures, the adoption of the above new standards,
amendments and interpretations will have no significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements. The Group will
adopt these revised HKFRSs and HKASs when they become
effective.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to December 31, 2010.

All material inter-company transactions and balances within
the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are dealt with in the consolidated income statement from
or up to the effective dates of acquisition or disposal.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the
difference between the proceeds of the sale and the Group’s
share of its net assets together with any goodwill which was
not previously charged or recognized in the consolidated
income statement.

Non-controlling interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the operating results and net assets of
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, controls more than 50% of its voting power or
issued share capital or controls the composition of its board
of directors or has power to govern its financial and operating
policies.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which

control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized
directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries are changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost, less provision for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Jointly controlled companies

()

A jointly controlled company is an entity in which each
venturer has an interest and of which its financial and
operating policies are under contractual arrangements jointly

controlled by the venturers.

The Group adopts the equity method to account for the
interests in jointly controlled companies. The consolidated
income statement includes the Group’s share of the results
of jointly controlled companies for the year, and the Group’s
balance sheet includes the Group’s share of net assets of the
jointly controlled companies. When the Group transacts with
its jointly controlled companies, unrealized profits and losses
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in jointly
controlled companies.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the interests in jointly
controlled companies are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of jointly controlled companies
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is a company over which the Group has
significant influence but does not control, generally
accompanying an equity interest of between 20% and 50%.
Investments in an associate are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting and are initially recognized at
cost.

The Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognized in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognized in
other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(9)

(h)

Associates (continued)

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-makers. The chief operating decision-makers,
who are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been identified
as the steering committee that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s companies are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the company
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the transaction dates. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the income statement.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ili) Group companies
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The results and financial position of all the group
companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
balance sheet date;

— income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average rate is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case, income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rate on
transaction dates); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign companies,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold, such exchange
differences are recognized in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

(i) ME - BERRE (i) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is stated at cost and is not amortized.

KA SERE T AR ANE AR S N EBE S o
g ey EREREME T EE K Buildings, leasehold improvements and other fixed assets
AENRERBETERZBEREBESIRE-
KABEEECHEBERBEEESZR
TREZEzHMWEBER-

are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents the
purchase price of the asset and other costs incurred to bring
the asset into its existing use.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

80 '3 I BB R 2 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #



2. TESTEHE (&)

0]

M- HERRE (R

EXEREANER Sl P Y S S T
BRAEBE KR EFTELZERK
RZBERT  HBEZERAT EBRRNEE
FREEXERIRBLCEE (WER) -
EREMEERRESXHREEEZH
BHARM BRI -

W BRI E TN EERAE
EHEHRARETERFRUERS
=0T -

— KAERZ T TIERE-

— MRKAEELM 2 BFRIRMG
SAERAER WEEXRBRAZR
50F 3t & -

- UREELH BT ERMGEEH
HHAEFHREMTAERFS U
TR H T ZRE0FFE - ME 28
ENE-

- I 5%

- HiWERRE 3E5F

REeBEEER EEZNHBEBNRTEA
FH gNEZERENEMRELAE -

MAEEZEEMEAREMGFTRES
B ZEEZEEESINRREZEAIK
Bz &

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

B 7% R R Y EE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0]

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated.

—  Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years
after the date of completion.

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease or their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after
the date of completion.

- Plant 5 years

—  Other property and equipment 3 -5 years
Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ WA B ER LS

81



82

B35 8RR M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

2. TESTEHE (&)

0]

()

M- HERRE (R

HEWE HRMEREZRAKERERE
HEFUREAHEERESRIER
WRHMERAFIIR

REWE

BREMEEERBEARPUEBEHER
BE IMEEZ-

REVEZEEREHEEZET UKAE
R 2B ERREREBRTIR - KA
BEREREVMEZBEEREMEES
ROIAgzEMEARER - REMEZH
ERBRNSAEFHRERAERER
FrETEMBEAE

_\

EHEREZAB MBI RREEREB A
RN AEE R EFTELERRK
KZ\RT HENIHA@BRREE
REE -PAEMEERREHREE
H 2B BEEARAERYIX

R

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& n BB R 2 7

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0]

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognized in the
income statement.

Investment property

An investment property is a property which is held for long
term rental yield or for capital appreciation, or both.

Investment property comprises buildings held under finance
It is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents

leases.

the purchase price of the investment property and other
costs incurred to bring the property into its existing use.
Depreciation of investment property is calculated using
straight-line method to write off its cost over the unexpired
period of the lease.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of non financial assets

)

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortization and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units).

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivable and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or
so designated at inception. Derivatives are also classified
in this category unless they are designated as hedges.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade and other receivables” and “cash and bank
balances” in the balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose
of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet
date.

Recognition and measurement

Loans and receivables are initially stated at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective

interest method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and

available-for-sale financial assets are stated at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category
are presented in the consolidated income statement as
other income. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognized in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Gain or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets are recognized in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized
in equity are included in the consolidated income statement.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognized in the consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in consolidated income statement — is removed
from equity and recognized in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses recognized in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement.
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December 31, 2010

2. TESTEHE (&)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and
is arrived at as follows:

() Raw materials and purchased goods — invoiced prices
plus procurement costs;

(i) Work in progress and finished goods — cost of direct
materials, direct labor and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads, excluding borrowing costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated price at which inventories
can be sold in the normal course of business after allowing
for the costs of realization and, where appropriate, the cost of
conversion from their existing state to a finished condition.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
The amount of the provision is recognized in the income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cashflow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within bank loans in current liabilities on
the balance sheet.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortized cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement in
the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalized as being directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using liability method,
on temporary differences between the tax base of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date are used to determine deferred
taxation.

Deferred tax assets generated from taxable losses are not
recognized unless it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Deferred taxation (continued)

(s)

Deferred taxation is provided on the temporary differences

arising on investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled

companies and associates, except where the timing of the

reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled by

the parent company and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

Except for the pension scheme arrangements in Taiwan,
the Group operates defined contributions schemes and,
if applicable, participates in central defined contribution
provident fund schemes for all qualified employees. The
assets of the said schemes are held by independently
administered funds separated from those of the Group.
Contributions to these schemes are made by both the
employers and employees at rates up to 20% on the
employees’ salaries.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans and mandatory provident fund scheme are
expensed as incurred and, if applicable, are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme or the plan prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been made.

The branches of wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group
in Taiwan have a defined benefit scheme (“Old Scheme”)
governed by the Labor Standard Law and a defined
contribution scheme (“New Scheme”) governed by the
Labor Pension Act which became effective on July 1,
2005.
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201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2. FESEFEE (&)
(s) BE®A (&)
(i) RHRESEE (&) (i)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

Pension obligations (continued)

HEHT  SEARTERERHAN
B NETIZRREBSEH
ERMEFERRBZIERS KA
BUEB2RENMNETI ZBRFE
BEDRRBRITR2EBETIHSH
RZ2%RABGR KRS I IR X R
A ARRABUT BB E R - B HIERIK
TEENEATREXTRRE-

EFHIT BN RARKBEESE
MEMWBIZE8RAFE HARE
BRHENRE  WHFAB TR TR
BRBZEAKREA-

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &

Under the Old Scheme, the Group has an obligation
to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the scheme
to pay the benefits earned for the service years of all
employees before the New Scheme was effective and
the subsequent service years of employees who chose
to continue to participate in the Old Scheme. The
branches currently contribute at 2% of the total salaries
of participating employees as determined and approved
by the relevant government authorities. The assets of the
Old Scheme are invested by the Central Trust of China.

Under the New Scheme, the branches contribute each
month at 6% of the salary of employees who choose to
participate in the New Scheme into individual pension
accounts at the Bureau of Labor Insurance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognized as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. At each balance sheet
date, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable.
It recognizes the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income statement and a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining
vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

(t) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sales of goods and
services, net of value-added tax, rebates return and discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue is

recognized as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Sales of goods - distribution

Sales of goods are recognized when products are
delivered to the customer, the customer has accepted
the products and collectibility of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognized when products are sold
to the customer. Retail sales are usually in cash or by
credit card. The recorded revenue is the gross amount of
sales, before netting off credit card fees payable for the
transactions. Such fees are included in distribution costs.
Revenue is shown net of returns, rebates and discounts.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method, taking into account
the principal amount outstanding and the interest rates
applicable.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognized on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive
payment is established.
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201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

2. TESTEHE (&)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (continued)

(v)

(vi) Rental income

Rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over
the lease term.

Derivative financial instruments

Certain derivatives, including forward foreign exchange
contracts, which do not qualify for hedge accounting,
are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. Changes in fair value of
the derivatives are recognized immediately in the income
statement.

(w) Leases (as the lessee)

(x)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the leasing company
are accounted for as operating leases. Rental payments
applicable to such operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
periods.

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is

recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Contingent liabilities

(2)

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognized because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

With the exception of a contingent liability acquired as part
of a business combination which is initially recognized at
fair value (provided that the fair value can be reasonably
measured) in accordance with note 2(d), a contingent
liability is not recognized but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognized as a provision.

Goodwiill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is tested for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to

the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose identified according to operating segment.
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3. iIEKERE 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(a) i EEE (a) Financial risk factors
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The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and price risks. The Group’s overall risk
management program seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to manage certain risk
exposure when necessary. The Group did not have any
derivative financial instruments as at December 31, 2010.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

As at the year end, the foreign exchange risk of the
Group arising from commercial transactions, recognized
assets and liabilities is considered to be insignificant.
This is due to the Group’s transactions being generally
denominated in the functional currencies of the
respective group entities, while balances denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entity are generally settled promptly
leaving minimal outstanding foreign currency position as
at the balance sheet date.

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets and
liabilities, companies in the Group may use forward
foreign exchange contracts when major fluctuation in the
relevant foreign currency is anticipated.

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations,
whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. Currency exposure arising from the net
assets of the Group’s foreign operation is managed
partially through borrowings denominated in their relevant
foreign currencies.
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201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3. MKEKRERE (&)
(a) I EMEZ (&)
(i) EERK

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(ii) Credit risk
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The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from balances
with bank, trade and other receivables, rental deposits
and amounts due from related parties. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. As at December 31, 2010, all the bank deposits
are deposited in the high quality financial institutions
without significant credit risk.

The Group will limit the amount of credit exposure to
place deposits in reputable financial institutions with
credit rating of B+ or above only.

The table below shows the deposit balances with banks
of various rating as at December 31, 2010 and 2009.
Management does not expect any losses from non-

&M E L (EAEIE - performance by these banks.

(U BE¥TAREN) (In HK$ millions) 2009

HENE Counterpart:

FEARA + 2 SRAT Banks with A+ rating 27

FERA A - ZRTT Banks with A or A- rating 693

FEARB+ 2 /T Banks with B+ rating 58
778

BE B RL LS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

The source of current credit rating is from Standard &
Poor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

3. M¥ERERE (&)
(a) MBEABEE (&)
(i) FERR (&)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(ii) Credit risk (continued)

TEHE-REBRE ERERR
KBEEERDBRBERRMNR
AEEERABRIFEEREZ
HWEHREFPETEEHE EEHA
B60H A °

TR 275120104 KX2009F12 A

Retail sales are usually made in cash, through popular
credit cards or through reputable and dispersed
department stores. The Group’s credit sales are only
made to wholesale customers with an appropriate credit
history and on credit terms within 60 days.

The table below shows the major types of debtors as at

BIRZEZ2EBA- December 31, 2010 and 2009.

(U BE#TREN) (In HK$ millions) 2009

HERE Counterpart:

£x Landlords 267

BERA Department stores 165

B AT (H:#37) Related parties (note 37) 16

FENE AR Credit card receivables 10
458

WEFTHARBELERZRDE-
AREBHERETRH ZBITER
8,1008 87T (20094 : 8,300& & 7T ) °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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These counterparts have no default history in the past.
The Group holds bank guarantees of HK$81 million
(2009: HK$83 million) from landlords.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

3. BIEAKBER (&) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) I EBmEE (&) (a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(iii) "B E S R (iii) Liquidity risk

REBBZBRBEZTHRRETRENR The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by maintaining
AL REMER SRS sufficient banking facilities and cash and cash
WReRRSEE RIEHRBES equivalents, which is generated from the operating cash
BB o flow and financing cash flow.

TERBREREERZANEAS The table below analyzes the Group and Company’s
THIRE D ANEE KA Q T 2875 financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
BEZEEI AR Z 9 xP AT on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
WESHEALSHRTBIRESRE - contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the

table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

£8 Group 1ER 1235
Within  Between 1 ag
(UEEETAEEN) (In HK$ millons) 1year and 3 years Total
JERERR Trade payables 163 - 163
B ERREMERNT Accruals and other payables 385 - 385
ROERREFHE Bank loans and interest
payment on borrowings 85 - 85
R2010%12A31H As at December 31, 2010 633 - 633
JERERR Trade payables 181 - 181
B ERREMERK Accruals and other payables 238 15 253
BOERRERFE Bank loans and interest
payment on borrowings 74 - 74
#2009 12A31H As at December 31, 2009 493 15 508

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

3. MiIKEKRERE (&) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) I EBmEE (&) (a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(i) RBELEK (&) (iii) Liquidity risk (continued)
AF] Company 15/ 1235
Within  Between 1 ag

(UEBETHEN) (In HK$ millions) 1year and 3 years Total
ERER Trade payables - - -
[ ERREMERNK Accruals and other payables 3 - 3
RITERREFHE Bank loans and interest

payment on borrowings 66 - 66
R2010F12A31H As at December 31, 2010 69 - 69
JER BRI Trade payables - - -
JEE 2 A R E M T 5 Accruals and other payables 3 - 3
ROERRERFIE Bank loans and interest

payment on borrowings 57 - 57
12009512 A31H As at December 31, 2009 60 - 60

(ivy REFRENRE K (iv) Cash flow interest rate risk
K 3R 1717 7810.6218 /& T (20094 : Except for the bank balance of HK$1,062 million (2009:
8.241E 8 ) M HIR1TE E8,4008 HK$824 million) and the short-term bank borrowings
77T (20094F : 7,4008 78 L) o of HK$84 million (2009: HK$74 million); the Group has
AREBWESKFTEEENBE MU no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities. The
FEAERAB ZHRITERAREHIER bank balance and short-term bank borrowings at floating
TEESAEFHHRSEEF X rate expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
B WZERREAERZZEW which is insignificant to the Group. The Group’s income
FERK - AREFBZIMARKEIR SR and operating cash flows are substantially independent
EAMETIMGHNEZEGHTE -E of changes in market interest rates. Management does
EBEEEHREMEEHNTET T not anticipate significant impact resulted from the
G changes in interest rates.
98 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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3. MBRERER (&)
(b) EEE AR

(c)

AEENESEEAR TREAEHRE
FESEZREN UERREREHEKRD
WA HMESRA A -

AEBZBEKLEAB3.5% (2009F :
3.5%) REBILERERE ANEEJEE
EMRPEE ARRST FRENKRES
B RREEEERNRBEITHR-

TRAXREEZEREBIN -

B 7% R R Y EE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern as well as
maximizing returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

The Group has a low gearing ratio of 3.5% (2009: 3.5%).
In order to improve the capital structure, the Group may
raise long term debts, adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders and issue new
shares.

The table below analyzes the Group’s capital structure.

-3
Group
(UFEE TREN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
e Total equity 2,186

AEBEHREE RSB RENERNER AR
R REB BRI FF - N2010F
K2009F12ABIBFREN AEEZ
RE BRICBRERBANE -

EfER

AEEEERRAER R RN AE
B EcRERAHEEABRTH
FBEAAHEERNBESRRAFER
BZEREEMBC

WMAEEIHEEZERNEERNIBR
REATEEENSREEZATES
B e/ D5%M e B Hfha] &
AEHERFTE - AR EBEEH £2010F
12A31 B I FE 2= HE MR 708
7B T I 05 s A S 38 a0/ 21408 T 0

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &

(o)

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid base to support
the operations and development of its business in the long
term. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the years ended December 31, 2010 and
20009.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk because
investments held by the Group are classified on the
consolidated balance sheet as available-for-sale financial
asset and financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2010, if there had been a 5% change
in the fair value of available-for-sale financial asset and
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss with all
other valuables held constant, the Group’s equity would have
increased / decreased by HK$0.7 million and net profit would
have increased /decreased by HK$1.4 million.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

4.

EZgsHfhat RHE

At RHE 2 A SR A ETT W ABEE
Ak EMERERER  BEERABR
THREEHNAETAEL-

EES AT RER

AEBEHRKEHEERBR - AEZ2EE
AHEmLEHMAEBARNERGERAR AT
Pramit < fhat RBRRAHERRESIHAR
TEMREFEHEEMABZREEEEXR

-

(i) FrE®

REBMERZERDEERBRFEH -
ERNEGHEE 2GRS ZERM
EREMNHE -NARXHBRETABES
AEBERBRAZR S Mt E - AEE
KIEEEE I HRABEIHAE AT
ERERNHEARE AR HMWZFS
B2 ERBBERAY B LR ST
A - EEEZRBEEFELET 2 HMEARN
ST ST TR L

(i) AEFERBEHMEERE

BEAEUHABRZHNERTRENE
NEHZIERBEEZ AKREAENA
Wmes AEBEHZEEELTHESR
fl- BEEHESIERBEEZ A B S
BN DEBEMARERNZFEE 2R
2 REEEAEEXHEEFE (2R
MmIHER)ETE R EFEARRH
B R fhE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m BB R 2 7

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

(ii) Assessment of impairment of non-current financial
assets

The Group conducts impairment reviews of non-current
assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Management
assesses the recoverable amount of each non-current asset
based on its value in use or on its net selling price (by
reference to market prices), depending upon the anticipated
future plans for the assets. These calculations require the use
of judgments and estimates.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #
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EES A RER (&)

(i) T &

WE - HEs MR TR E AR E R FHIA
BERENE -AEEEHENZESEELZ
B ERFHUEEMEARERAX
2 88 - ERFHIRBAKE L85
UZEEZBEERMETE - BEZ
ABEANRE  MHEBESKYRZITE
e

(iv) FE2RFE

(v)

FERZRFEERAEEKGOAEEN
BR{AFTIHERX - ARG REBERITHR
KB ERUEm 2 &R 1EH - 1868
fl 51 AT BE R 7K 5 [ 48 /2 3 B 2 A IR 0L
HBREEPURFEPOKEBEFEF O
FETRE B RIS M L IREAES -
EEENSHERENTHUERT-

RESREATFTERENERME
EZRAY¥E

ERAERKERZTE T REBEHEERA
FEEENEREEZATFEE $KA
MRBEEREZEAEE -

Vit AR HEZESREEWN

AV

ZALEZEREEZ A FELRED
BEREIZARRREEL BREMAQ
Az HESREEZ TRV E
B BAREATEARMZAILHESH
BETARRRS-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(iii) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation
to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there
are material changes from previous estimates.

(iv) Net realizable value of inventories

(v)

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in economic conditions in places
where the Group operates and changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.

Fair value of financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss

The fair value of financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss that is not traded in an active market is determined by
using discounted cash flow model.

(vi) Estimated fair value of available-for-sale financial

asset

The valuation of the available-for-sale financial asset is
made on the basis of the market approach-guideline
public companies method by considering different financial
information from listed companies with similar nature of the
available-for-sale financial asset, with adjustments to reflect
the available-for-sale financial asset is not publicly traded.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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December 31, 2010

5.

LE S

AEEREIBEERREMBHLBAEL
REMNBEANEEELZEN AL

‘IE%‘L?&M%ﬁﬂ%tliﬁlﬁ&ﬁ:ﬁ%Zﬁlfg%
HETEERDHEOE 2 EH -RIFM R 28
Eﬁ*ﬁ’iﬁ SHOBRE - BEANERE

FoE FEREKNE BB MR 8E-
%ﬂlﬂiﬂi GENREMTIS o RE R B
=& R D E D BGiordano & Giordano
Junior ~ Giordano Ladies ~ Concepts One (i
% B Giordano Concepts) ~BSXKk H ith 2 &
R AHEFXEETBINETE 2EXZERA
SEREREXBEE B AED RRESE
j\’&/'\_L

REEPR2008FIEEE 2 KK BENE R F)

HER AEEMBR T IRRBEELESE /)

RERFEMAREBRNZ ARMEEE M- &R

HAEBXEAEEERCRELEE R IL

iﬁ%ﬁ%k&ﬁ’rﬁl”*ﬁTﬁﬁﬁﬁTﬂ‘Jm kS
SEEDE -

7 80 MR K& D B0 AT BRELZ FB R E R A
BRTHIE - EIERRZEHAREE GRS
NENGEA WAL G EER AT ELEREE
ERAMEERD B LA D BRI

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m B A R 2 7

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers who
make strategic decisions.

The chief operating decision-makers assess the business of the
Retail and Distribution segment from both a geographic location
and a brand perspective. From geographic perspective, the Retail
and Distribution segment is further divided into six reportable
operating sub-segments, namely China Mainland, Hong Kong
and Macau, Taiwan, Singapore, Australia and Other markets.
From brand perspective, the Retail and Distribution segment is
sub-divided into Giordano & Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies,
Concepts One (renamed from Giordano Concepts), BSX and
Others. Wholesale sales to overseas customers and the Group’s
licensing activities are grouped under the Export and Licensing
business segment.

Following the disposal of the Group’s principal garment
manufacturing subsidiary in 2008, the Group’s remaining garment
manufacturing operations are small and engaged more or less
exclusively in supplying products to other Group companies. In
view of the cessation of the Group’s manufacturing operations as
a material net contributor to its results, it is no longer considered
necessary nor appropriate to define a Manufacturing and Other
segment as a reportable segment.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
before finance cost, tax and share of profit of jointly controlled
companies and associate. This is the measurement basis reported
to the chief operating decision-makers for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

5. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment turnover and
operating profit/(loss) by geographical location is as follows:

(UEZETREN) (In HK$ millions)

TEMG: By principal markets:
FEARE China Mainland

BB RRM Hong Kong and Macau
A Taiwan

FiIIES Singapore

B Australia

Bt 5 Other markets
TERDHEAEF Total Retail and Distribution

0 R
O RE IR AR

Export and licensing business
Inter-segment sales on export and

licensing business

Total

2009
mE R/
(B#E)
Operating
HEE profit/
Turnover (loss)
1,633 152
775 64
555 27
310 18
180 (28)
460 44
3,913 277
350 50
(30) -
4,233 327

Further analysis of the Retail and Distribution business by brand is

LREEID 2 TERDE2E—TOWMBT

as follows:
(UEEETAEN) (In HK$ millions)
M By brand:

Giordano & Giordano Junior
Giordano Ladies

Gioraano & Giordano Junior
Gilordano Ladies

Concepts One (F1% B Concepts One (renamed from
Giordano Concepts ) Giordano Concepts)

BSX BSX

Hith Others

TERDHA Total Retail and Distribution

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &

2009

memEn

(B#8)

Operating

HER profit/
Turnover (loss)
3,379 271
250 28
106 (24)
158 -
20 2
3,913 277

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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5.

LB (&)

RATIHRES ERBAHINELPZBAR
12.3{878 7T (20094 : 10.8218/87T) * HRX
KEHINE P 2 WA BH17.8118 7 JT (2009%F :
16.338% L) - MR EMBE RIS ZWA
B17. 2878 70 (20094 : 151888 7T) °

H B 0 B 2 A2 M B RR B AT R A 2 B
LIRNE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

The entity is domiciled in the Hong Kong. The result of its revenue
from external customers in Hong Kong is HK$1,230 million
(2009:HK$1,082 million), China Mainland is HK$1,781million
(2009:HK$1,633 million) and the total of revenue from
external customers from other countries is HK$1,720 million
(2009:HK$1,518 million).

A reconciliation of operating profit for reportable segments to profit
before income tax is provided as follows:

(U GEETHEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
BESBZLERF Operating profit for reportable

segments 327
BUEETS Manufacturing business 11
Hih e B R Other operating expenses (18)
HE—MERREE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary -
MEER Finance expense )
JEAh F R )2 B A Share of profit of jointly controlled

companies 38
FEAE — B & QB A Share of profit of an associate 6
BBt A% A Profit before taxation 363

REBTERESRTIAREERBEAE (W2
ERRBEOMSIEZEERAEERER)
ZIEREEELTE R2.161E 8 T (20094 :
3.20BE L) MR FRBEKEEA3.01EBT
(20094 : 3.1118%8 L) - MAEINER 2 %48
IERBNVE E LR A6.29188 7T (20094 : 5.3518
BIT) °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& n B AR 2 F

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments and
deferred tax assets (there are no employment benefit assets and
rights arising under insurance contracts) located in Hong Kong is
HK$216 million (2009: HK$329 million), located in China Mainland
is HK$301 million (2009: HK$311 million) and the total of these
non-current assets located in other countries is HK$629 million
(2009: HK$535 million).

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

5. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment assets by
geographical location is as follows:

THEE
Segment assets

(UFEETHEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
TEm5: By principal markets:
e N3 China Mainland 922
B8 KR Hong Kong and Macau 678
=) Taiwan 173
AN Singapore 84
M Australia 35
Hth 7135 Other markets 283
TERDHEAF Total Retail and Distribution 2,175
HARESTEE Export and licensing business 44
DEEE Segment assets 2,219
BUE R EH A Manufacturing and others 172
BE Goodwil -
HEZEH QB Interest in jointly controlled companies 317
—HE N A Interest in an associate 41
AHEZERMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 11
RERIRRAFERE Financial assets at fair value through

LERMEE profit or loss 28
EXERIBEE Deferred tax assets 22
BEMTE Total assets 2,810

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. HMuA 6. OTHER INCOME
58
Group
(UEEETHEN) (In HK$ millions)
el A Rental income
R EFREIA Royalty income
R G Net exchange gain
RS ON Interest income
& WA Dividend income
REZXRATFEAREBEE Gain on financial assets at fair value
2z through profit or loss
Hlg A Other income

7. KEER

(LB &ETREN)

OPERATING PROFIT

£
Group
(In HK$ millions)

KEBRFNESHMBRT 5 &AE:

MELH
TR IR 35
2 il kA
mE-EER
REBIE
BREMERE
mE-EER
REAHE
HEME #HER
Rz FEER
THRETZ
reHEEM
-—HEEEXH
-ZAEEEMR
REFEERLER
G
BITHA (#13t9)

106 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& n B A R 2 7

The operating profit is stated after
charging:
Amortization of
leasehold land prepayments
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment property
Impairment of property,
plant and equipment
Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Operating lease rentals in respect of
land and buildings
- minimum lease payments
- contingent rent
Provision for obsolete stock and stock
written off
Staff costs (note 9)

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

8. MMEEH 8. FINANCE EXPENSE
£8
Group
(UFEETHEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
RITEFHFE Interest on bank loans 1
9. EIRAE STAFF COSTS
(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
HeRIA Salaries and wages
(BREEMS) (including directors’ emoluments) 596
BhEEAR Share option expense 1
RiRe Pension cost
—REMEKETE ~ defined contribution plans 64
661

REEN AEEBLSBERAREEDN ZHEHR
(2009%F « f& ) LR K £ 5K ¥ « )R20104F K
2009F12A31H )2 B Al R EF B 2 K
HELHLFR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

During the year, no unvested benefits were utilized by the Group
to reduce the level of contributions (2009: nil). As at December 31,
2010 and 2009, no unvested benefits were available to be utilized

in the future years.
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December 31, 2010

10.EER S EEASME 10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
(a) EEM £ (a) Directors’ emoluments
HE2010F12A81IB L FERNSEEHD The emoluments of every director for the year ended
B UM December 31, 2010 is set out below:
EXENKS
%
Employer’s
ARE Ht28* contribution
ue iy b Share Other  to pension 5
EEpgg Name of Directors Fees Salaries Bonuses options benefits’  schemes Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2010

2 LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter - 2,832 18,388 - 1,529 12 22,761

FSES MAH Chuck On, Bernard - 2,132 502 - 218 12 2,864

E N Barry John BUTTIFANT* 350 - - - - - 350

BHEE KWONG Ki Chi* 350 - - - - - 350

FER LEE Peng Fei, Allen* 350 - - - - - 350

REH LEUNG Kwok'"! 275 - - - - - 275
1,325 4,964 18,890 - 1,747 24 26,950

2009

2 LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter - 2,815 8,755 - 1,397 12 12,979

FSES MAH Chuck On, Bernard - 2,132 500 - 224 12 2,868

= 90N Barry John BUTTIFANT* 350 - - - - - 350

BHE KWONG Ki Chi* 350 - - - - - 350

FER LEE Peng Fei, Allen* 350 - - - - - 350

28" LEUNG Kwok® 275 - - - - - 275
1,325 4,947 9,255 - 1,621 24 17,172

* BUIHTEE * Independent non-executive directors

8 HPITEE " Non-executive directors

# E ez EFEIREBE - BERFHIEEL # Other benefits include insurance premium, housing and tax allowances

! R010F7A7AREZH BB IIFHTESE I ! Appointed as an Independence non-executive director and ceased to be

R IR IHTTEEZ B a Non-executive director on July 7, 2010
108 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

10.EEREREBEAEHE (F)

(a) E=M= (&)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

RAFERN MARREREXINZHSA

The aggregate amount of emoluments payable to directors of

BT the Company during the year is as follows:
(U EEETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
we Fees 1
Hiis : Other emoluments:
EX¥ ¢ RBERA- Basic salaries, housing
Hfth 2 8L & allowances, other allowances
EMRaE and benefits in kind 7
TE4L Bonuses 9
fE kg Share options -
BIRSHER Pension contributions -
17
(b) ENERESFHRE (b) Five highest paid individuals
RAFER  AEBRAUGEHTRETRE The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
&AL (2009F : () EE - HEl& 2 the Group for the year include one (2009: two) director whose
FEIBE R X HEEE o T EA T EAL (20094 emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
S &EeFBREWSLBNT The emoluments payable to the remaining four (2009: three)
individuals during the year are as follows:
(ABBETRENL) (In HK$ millions) 2009
EX%e FEEU- Basic salaries, housing allowances,
H 20 R E D= other allowances and benefits in kind 7
TB4L Bonuses 1
B e Share options -
8
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10.EERENEEBEAEME (8) 10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) TN BESHFRE (&) (b) Five highest paid individuals (continued)
BT Em BB RIS ARBENT The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals fell

within the following bands:

AH
[N Number of individuals
Emolument bands 2009
BT
HK$
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1
3,000,001 - 4,000,000 -
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 -
5,500,001 - 6,000,000 -
11. %18 11. TAXATION
AHFBERA BB A : The charge for taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:
(LB EETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
Fr8%iE Income tax
AEFEMREHE Current income tax
—BENER - Hong Kong profits tax 13
— BB - Outside Hong Kong 43
— B A& - Withholding tax on distribution
—HEAZFHARZ from subsidiaries and
Ao EHNHHIE a jointly controlled company 14
EERIE Deferred tax
BRREMEZEEZITER Relating to the origination and
#m reversal of temporary differences 10
BERygrye Effect of changes in tax rate (12)
BEREEETR/ (&) Under/(over) provision in previous year
—BEMNEH — Hong Kong profits tax 1)
— BB - Outside Hong Kong @)
BEZ Taxation charge 64
110  GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

11. TAXATION (continued)

Reconciliation of the Group’s profit before taxation at the tax rate
of Hong Kong to the taxation charge is as follows:

£8
Group

(U BEETHAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
BREAIER (TRE Profit before taxation (before share of

FE(E S RZESA A profit of jointly controlled companies

KB & DB mF) and an associate) 319
21 %16.5% Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%

(2009%F :16.5% )t & (2009: 16.5%) 53
HpBERTRBE Effect of different tax rates in

TE other countries 10
AR 2 2 Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 5
AERZELERBEEE Deferred tax assets not recognized 14
BAERT BN Income not subject to tax (17)
FEREMRERR Utilization of previously unrecognized

PR tax losses (4)
Fitk G Withholding tax 19
BEFEEBIR/ (FR) Under/(over) provision in previous year (4)
MERB T2 Effect of changes in tax rates (12)
BIRZ Taxation charge 64

KRG REEBMB AR 2 HIEEEZIRE
AREFRBBERNSRE BB 2 (EaHER
FHEAIRIRFT E16.5% (20094 - 16.5% ) 51 & -

HMREBIAIMEE 2B R R Z M EHIA
ERBEANEADEER ZHEMHE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

The provision for taxation of the Company and its Hong Kong
subsidiaries is calculated by applying the current rate of taxation of
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) to the estimated assessable profits earned in
or derived from Hong Kong during the year.

Taxation on the profits of other subsidiaries operating outside
Hong Kong is calculated at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions.
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12.

13.

IR 3R FE 45 73 A

BER BN SR E 2 & 00m A /56.37184 7T (20094 :
2.88B L) BEEAARMBIREANDE
A 2 B R FE AR & ) B4.4118 7 7T (20094 -
312188 7T) »

BRER

EREARBERADNEAFERRENES
@ F &5.3718 7% 7T (20094 : 2.881E /& L)
FE-

EREXABFDERFEARNEBEITRGD
hn #E S 5 A% 811,492,600,7760% (20094 :
1,491,646,518% ) 5T & o

FRESEANDIEREBEZE2010FEAE %
1T R% 9 2 N #E F 35 A% £01,492,600,776 %
(20094F : 1,491,646,5180%) i1 £ R F R &
Ao ERETEBREZHMBRITERR
EDITHEMEIT 2R G 2 MEFHRE
3,482,127/% (20094F : £ )+ & -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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12.

13.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Group’s consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company of HK$537 million (2009: HK$288 million) includes
a profit of HK$441 million (2009: HK$312 million) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on the consolidated profit attributable to shareholders for the year
of HK$537million (2009: HK$288 million).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average
of 1,492,600,776 shares (2009: 1,491,646,518 shares) in issue
during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is based on 1,492,600,776 shares
(2009: 1,491,646,518 shares) which is the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the 2010 year ended plus the
weighted average of 3,482,127 shares (2009: nil) deemed to be
issued if all outstanding share options granted under the share
option scheme of the Company had been exercised.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

14. R 2 14. DIVIDENDS
(a) AEEREWMT: (a) Dividends attributable to the year:
(ABEEETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
BEEMEEREZHHRE Interim dividend declared and
G455 paid of 4.5 HK cents
(20094 : B fR2.0/81) (2009: 2.0 HK cents) per share 30
EEMREIRE ZFHHFERE Special interim dividend declared and
G R&4.055 10 paid of 4.0 HK cents
(2009%F : &) (2009: nil) per share -
. _ EEw 80 _
REERRBEZ 2 KBRS Final dividend proposed after
G705 the balance sheet date of 7.0 HK cents
(20094 : B RR7.0/81L) (2009: 7.0 HK cents) per share 105
RERBRRBEZEIRERE Special final dividend proposed after
Hx1 1,578 the balance sheet date of 11.5 HK cents
(2009% : BR7.0781L) (2009: 7.0 HK cents) per share 105
o ____________________________________ el 210 _
240

(b)

R2011E3AAERIT v EEe9#
EEEFRERERERRERE DR
BEFR7.08 L R11.58 0 o b 18 # K %
BUEGKELAT ERRAAEE

BRE—SE IREAEFEREB
REAHRE:

(b)

At the board meeting held on March 24, 2011, the directors
proposed final and special final dividends of 7.0 HK cents
and 11.5 HK cents per share respectively. These proposed
dividends have not been recognized as a liability at the
balance sheet date.

Dividends attributable to the previous year,
approved and paid during the year:

(UEEBETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
B A R EE2000F REIRE B 2009 final dividend approved and

FR7.051L paid of 7.0 HK cents

(20084 : & fx3.0%8(l) (2008: 3.0 HK cents) per share 45
B b MR 220094 45 Bl K HA PR B 2009 special final dividend approved

FRL7.07 1L and paid of 7.0 HK cents

(20084 : &) (2008: nil) per share -

45

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

15. 1% - SRR 1E 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
-3 Group
RENE
% HFRR
BAERE
KAEEZ Leasehold
THRET improvements,
Freehold furniture & RE
land & 3 e office Motor fit
(WBEETAEN) (In HKS millons) buildings Buildings Plant equipment vehicles Total
HAE Cost
201051 A1H At January 1, 2010 42 25 56 807 19 949
BEER Translation difference 4 - - 46 1 51
BRNELARE Acquisition of a subsidiary - - - 7 - 7
RE Additions 15 - 1 72 3 91
hE Disposals - - ] (112) @ (119)
20105124318 At December 31, 2010 61 25 52 820 21 979
ZRNE Accumulated depreciation
201051 A18 At January 1, 2010 9 4 50 682 16 761
BEZEE Translation difference 1 - - 40 1 42
FRNBELFRE Acquisition of a subsidiary - - - 3 - 3
KERHE Charge for the year 1 1 1 83 2 88
e Disposals - - (1) (114) @ (117)
120105124318 At December 31, 2010 11 5 50 694 17 m
R2010F12A31 A2 REFE Net book value at December 31, 2010 50 20 2 126 4 202

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& R BB R 2 7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

15. Y% N5 (E) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
5 Group
RENE
£ GAR
BRERE
KAEEZ Leasehold
THRET improvements,
Freehold furniture & Bt
land & BT ke office Motor =H)
(WBEETAEN) (In HKS millons) buildings Buildings Plant equipment vehicles Total
HAE Cost
7200051 A1H At January 1, 2009 41 24 51 807 19 942
BEER Translation difference 1 1 - 34 1 37
WE Additions - - 5 54 - 59
e Disposals - - - (88) 1) (89)
@2_099_512)33_1? __________ ét_De_ce_mPe_rS_W,}gOg S fQ _____ 25 56 807 19 949
ZRIER Accumulated depreciation and
HE impairment
#2000F1 A 18 At January 1, 2009 8 3 49 641 14 715
HEER Translation difference - - - 27 1 2%
REEHE Charge for the year 1 1 1 9 2 97
e Impairment - - - 3 - 3
HE Disposals - - - (81) ) (82)
@%099_@1_2)33_1? __________ ét_De_ce_mPe_r 3_1 ,_2909 __________________ 9 ) 4 50 682 16 761
R2009512A31A 2 EEFE Net book value at December 31, 2009 33 21 6 125 3 188
A B R2009F 12 A1 A IEFE X R E Impairment had been charged for the year ended December
CREAHEMERE RMENAETRE R 31, 2009. The impairment charge was the amount by which the
AEBHETKE SR Z5E - Al WE <58 ) carrying amount of the leasehold improvements, furniture and
BTIEEREARRBEER2009F12A31H 2 & office equipment exceeded its recoverable amount which was
FHERERE - determined based on the value-in-use of the relevant assets

estimated by management as at December 31, 2009.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 115
ANNUAL REPORT 2010 # # & m BB R 247
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

15 403 - W RR 1 ()
%8

(@) KAXHZ TMWREBFURE

(o) BFZEREFESTMT

R ENFE -

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Group

(@) The freehold land and buildings are situated in Taiwan and
Indonesia.

(b) The analysis of the net book value of buildings is as follows:

58 N
Group Company

(U BEETRENN) (In HK$ millions)
EBEERE In Hong Kong, held on

—105F 504 - leases of between
_____ B 10endSOyears
EREBUINGE Outside Hong Kong, held on

—10F £50%F - leases of between

T4 10 and 50 years

— % RB0FEF 4 - leases of over 50 years

M12A31H At December 31

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& n B A R 2 7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

YN Company
HENE
£ BRR
BAERE
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture &
BF office a3
(UEEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) Buildings  equipment Total
BAE Cost
201061 A1B & At January 1, 2010 and
2010912 A31H December 31, 2010 11 2 13
2RME Accumulated depreciation
201061718 At January 1, 2010 2 4
AEEME Charge for the year 1 - 1
R2O10F12A81H At December 31,2010 1 8 2 ________ 5_
R2010512A31H Net book value at
ZREFE December 31, 2010 8 - 8
HEME
EE BiK
NS
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture &
EF office B3
(UBEETREN) (In HK$ millions) Buildings equipment Total
BAE Cost
7200951 A1H At January 1, 2009 11 3 14
HE Disposals - (1) (1)
R2009F12A8TH At December 31,2000 __ L 2 _______18_
2ERE Accumulated depreciation
#2009F1A1H At January 1, 2009 2 3 5
KEEME Charge for the year - - -
e Disposals - (1) (1)
R2009F12A8IH At December 31,2009 ¢ 2 2 _ _______ 4_
#H2009%12831H Net book value at
ZIREFE December 31, 2009 9 - 9

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

16. REY = 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
REBHE —WEERIWE - The Group has a property which is held for long-term rental yields.
58
Group
(UNEEETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
BAE Cost
®W1A1H Rk12A30A0 At January 1 and December 31 101
2RNE Accumulated depreciation
M A1H At January 1 20
KEEFE Charge for the year 2
R2AIA AtDecember 31 __ ______________[EEEEN 22
M12A31B ZREFE Net book value at December 31 79
ZIEMEN20105FE K2009F12 A31H 2 A The fair value of the investment property at December 31, 2010
FEH—"BIYILEBEEER ZTER MG and 2009 was assessed by an independent professional valuation
B HENRETHWHEETELEFTIER - firm. Valuation was based on current market value of the land and
WEMRA RN ZEREZARB I EEE on estimate of the replacement cost of building adjusted for age,
MmELEHET - M2010F12A31H  :ZWE (8 condition and functional obsolescence. The total fair value of the
EHEETHREFHES) 2B AFEAE1.67E property, including leasehold land and the building portion, was
BT (2009F 149 B T) cEA A E=E HK$167 million as at December 31, 2010 (2009: HK$149 million).
FEBRBRZIEEME 2L RAEI0E BT In the consolidated income statement, rental income relating to
(20094 : 7008 & JT) © investment property of HK$9 million (2009:HK$7 million) was
included.
118 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B 7% R R Y EE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

The net book value of the investment property is analyzed as

follows:
58
Group
(UFEFETHEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
EBBUIINEE Outside Hong Kong, held on lease
10 ZE 504 of between 10 and 50 years 79
17. B8 17. GOODWILL

P& RN E YW Giordano Fashions (India)
Private Limited#50.9% % #E FT 2 £ Hy i 2 -
REBEERREINSRABRIERE  TE
WEBEDR - N EE ST F TN 225
BT ER AT -

For the goodwill arising from the acquisition of 50.9% equity
interest in Giordano Fashions (India) Private Limited during the
year, the Group has assessed there is no indication of impairment
after the consideration of both external and internal sources
of information. The Group will continue to perfrom impairment
assessment for goodwill for the newly acquired business annually.

18. B A A= 18. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
NG|
Company

(U GEBETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
FLEMHE (KAE) Unlisted investment (at cost) 817

JiE U Bt /B8 X B 51 0A Amounts due from subsidiaries
REEH D Current portion 372
"HIE S Long-term portion 265
637

B FE U BT B8 A B FIES. 1518 78 JT (20094 ¢
BQ72EHE L) BEE—FAMNE - HEreFIE
BB -BERERBHISE —FRKD -

TEMBRARZFBHENYEHRKMESS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &

Except for the amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$515 million
(2009: HK$372 million) are recoverable within one year, the
remaining balances are non-interest bearing, unsecured and not
expected to be repayable within one year.

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
/R EBRAERLNF
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B35 R M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2010912 H31H
December 31, 2010

19. H [F 1= #l A F 19. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
R COMPANIES

T EEELTHEREH AR ZER: The following list contains the particulars of jointly controlled

companies, all of which are unlisted:

120

RIS it B BRTR2BAR
HEZHATEE Place of BERGESLLE BASFMER
Name of jointly incorporation Percentage of Issued and fully paid share TEER
controlled company and operation equity holding capital or registered capital Principal activities
2009
Giordano Corporation Limited* RERE 48.5  1,030,0000% RETERERERA®
Republic of Korea SR ME{E5,0005%EE 2 @K Retai of apparel and
1,030,000 common stock of accessories
WONS5,000 each
SRGCEBRAA" 0 49.0 200,000 EERENHNES
Cheong Yiu Enterprises Limited*  Hong Kong SREEIBTZEAR Trading of packaging products
200,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

: E# 15 H .2 R AZEE 2 A

AT RAKE MG ZEIELTHEZESQE

ZEE RBE FELRE:

Jointly controlled companies held indirectly

The Group’s share of the assets, liabilities, results and
commitments of its unlisted jointly controlled companies are as

follows:
g
Group
(ABEEETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
MBEE Current assets 347
nBAaE Current liabilities (50)
FEREEE Non-current assets 23
FERBERE Non-current liabilities @)
FrihEEFE Share of net assets 317
W= Revenue 443
=33 Expense (393)
B B AR 7 Profit before taxation 50
I8 Taxation (12)
JEE 15 BR 5 1 )5 71 Share of profit after taxation 38
BEME A Operating lease commitments 79

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& ®EBRABERAA
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19. H[E &2 7
E® (')

AEERBAEZKAREH QR Z2 RN A
BRAERRABBEREAREE Mz SRR
HRBAG NEBEFMKRAEBERENALE-

Bt 7% R R Y EE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
COMPANIES (continued)

There are no contingent liabilities and capital commitments relating
to the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled companies, and
the jointly controlled companies have no contingent liabilities and
capital commitments themselves.

20. —BE QT ER 20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
£E
Group
(UEEETHRENL) (In HK$ millions) 2009
LM, (RAE) Unlisted shares (at cost) 1
FfT 1 Ui 8 18 )5 71 Share of post-acquisition profits 39
FTib W BB 18 E 185 Share of post-acquisition reserves 1
41

TREEFELMBERRZER:

The following list contains the particulars of an associate which is
unlisted:

RIREE L H
Place of BEROGBEILE CEIRZBARERAE

BENRER incorporation Percentage of Issued and fully paid TEER

Name of associate and operation equity holding share capital Principal activities

2009

Giordano Fashions L.L.C.* WA AKEERE 20 3,000 RETEREREBRAR

United Arab Emirates SR EE1,0000 1 AR Retalil of apparel and
BeBREBRNEZRG accessories

y HEfEZ —BER A

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

3,000 shares of AED1,000 each

*

an associate held indirectly

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
/R EBRAERLNF
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B35 R M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

20.

21.

—BENTES (&)

AEBERKBZIFLMBERREDENT:

20.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The Group’s interest in its unlisted associate is as follows:

-3
Group

(U BB rAREN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
EE Assets 53
afE Liabilities (12)
FiGEESFE Share of net assets 41

W Revenue 95
b 5% A s ) Profit before taxation 6
I8 Taxation -
JE A B B 18 0 A Share of profit after taxation 6

THEZEMEE

AHE ZEe@MEERRKTY Higrowth Ventures
Limited Z9.9% RN B T ALEE -

21.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets represented a 9.9% interest in
Higrowth Ventures Limited denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

£
Group

(UFEFTHEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
M AR At January 1 9
BAFEZENEA Fair value gains transfer to

JHEZEREE available-for-sale financial assets

i reserve 2
M12A31H At December 31 11

ZAHEZEREEZ A FER BRI
BEEXERZHERFMEE"

ZAHEZERMEEZ N FERRENHZ
BRENZTERNTABREDS ERENER (&
ABEHEA)  RIEHKFRS 7 92 T EAE R
MBI BRRE=R-

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& ®EBRABERAA

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets was
assessed by an independent professional valuation firm.

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets is
determined using inputs that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs), which is categorised as level 3 under
the fair value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 7.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &



21.

22.

AHEZEMEE (&)

ZAHEZSREEZHENRENEER
EZNRARREE WRAR LW RE 28
URMHESREEZMBEE SHEEQF
BEUARRZALESHEENATRAFRS

e REESKRE-

RESKRRATEREZ2EREE

H2008F6A27H  ARFFIVEEHE LT E
Placita Holdings Limited ([Placita ) 21.0%
B IRIEZ S 88T 26,055,440 & i@
BRRRANEEIFEH T30.0%2 BT 2 /A
M B 1> 48 56,055,440 Placitaz 18 % %
(TMEBERR]) - o EANMERTARATELR
R EARE o

ZEEBERMEEAEENBRRARTE
ME-AVFEEESRFREERERERZ
BFEFRAEXMEERRENTG-

M20105F12A31HZE X R R HEBE 2
A F{E1E A2,800& % JT (20094 : 2,8008
BIL) RIERREBEATFEEEZEMEEZ
NRTEEHEREMHFABERCSEAEMIEA
(Kiat6) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21.

22.

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

The valuation of the available-for-sale financial assets is made
on the basis of the market approach-guideline public companies
method by considering different financial information from listed
companies with similar nature of the available-for-sale financial
assets, with adjustments to reflect the available-for-sale financial
assets is not publicly traded.

None of the financial assets is impaired.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

On June 27, 2008, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its 21.0% interest in Placita Holdings
Limited (“Placita”).
6,055,440 Ordinary Shares representing the Group’s remaining

As part of the agreement, the remaining

30.0% of the total issued share capital of Placita held by the
Company were redesignated into 6,055,440 preference shares of
Placita (the “Preference Shares”). Furthermore, the Purchaser shall
grant to the Company a put option on the Preference Shares.

The Preference Shares and the related options are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The fair value has been and will be
re-assessed by a professional valuation firm at year end and the
end of each subsequent period.

The fair value of the Preference Shares and the related options is
HK$28 million as at December 31, 2010 (2009: HK$28 million).
Changes in their fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other income in the consolidated
income statement (note 6).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B/ XA BER 22 S
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- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

2z@§§ﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁ23ﬂﬁz

ZARBREEAFEREZ SMEEQTE
ERENHZRENERERNTABEMS L
BBHMER (TABEEEA)  RIEHKFRS 7
MAFENEEEEDBRE =

22,

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is determined using inputs that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs), which is categorised as level 3
under the fair value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 7.

(U BEErTAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
M A1H At January 1 25
RABEREQNTE Increase in fair value to income

Z & statement 3
»m12F31H At December 31 28

ZREGREATEREEREEZAFE
H—BYULBEEXER ZFERRMGE.
YREMRRBASREEAFHERIFE

The fair vale of the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss was assessed by an independent professional valuation firm
and is determined based on discounted cash flow model.

23. 1 BELTHBEHEEFENFIE 23. LEASEHOLD LAND AND RENTAL PREPAYMENTS
-] Group
(UEEETHEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
MA1R 2 REFE Net book value at January 1 368
BEZE Translation difference 2
RE Additions 22
KEEHHE Amortization for the year (47)
W12A31AZEmFE Net book value at December 31 345
RS Current portion (45)
REHH Long-term portion 300

124 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Bt 7% R R Y EE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

23. LEASEHOLD LAND AND RENTAL PREPAYMENTS

(continued)
Company

Leasehold land prepayments are analyzed as follows:

(ABEEETHEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
MATBZREFE Net book value at January 1 155
REFHH Amortization for the year (5)
M12A318 2 FREDEE Net book value at December 31 150
mHIE S Current portion (5)
RHH D Long-term portion 145

HETHBENRBANECEANNELEHES
HeZERAERRFGHEFMEE AR
EFEDFMAT

Leasehold land prepayments represent prepaid operating lease
payments. The costs are amortized over the leasehold period and
their net book values are analyzed as follows:

DHE

Group Company

(UBEETHEN) (In HK$ millions)
TEEBREAE In Hong Kong, held on
—105 % 50% - leases of between
GiEKS) 10 and 50 years
EEBUINGEE Outside Hong Kong, held on
—105 % 505 - leases of between
sk 10 and 50 years
—ZR50F K ~ leases of over 50 years

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& nEBAERQF

125



B35 R M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2010912 HA31H
December 31, 2010

24.

25.

126

FE& 24. INVENTORIES
&
Group

(UEEETHEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
R Raw materials 7
EHEm Work in progress 7
B m Finished goods 280

294

FEECHARERYCREHEKRNLAP R
201878 7T (20094 : 20.5818 B 7T ) °

JE WL AR 0 % HL Ath FE WK

25.

The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included
in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$2,000 million (2009:
HK$2,058 million).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

D HE

Company

(UBEETRENL) (In HK$ millions)

JEE W2 AR X Trade receivables

R ERE Less: Provision for impairment

MR TR E Trade receivables - net

Hin U B1E Other receivables, including
HEN SRS deposits and prepayments

BRREREMREEIN RAEBEEEERT
RTEHEZEPTHE0REER-

HEARABODEURESEN EERREE EEE
BRI FRAANFRRE - FAAREESR
BRADBRARBEE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& ®EBRABERAA

Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally allows
an average credit period of 60 days to its trade customers.

Despite some of the trade receivables being settled after the credit
period, management expects that the balances are recoverable
within one year; therefore, these balances are classified as current
assets.
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25. R AR AR I E Al B Wk (4]
(a) FRiE 2 #7

REEE R RUERR (FIBRREEE) 25K
RRBEEZEEDFWT:

Bt 7% R R Y EE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a) Ageing analysis

As at the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis from the
invoice date of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
debts) is as follows:

%8
Group

(UBEBETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
0%30H 0 - 30 days 175
31£60H 31 - 60 days 35
61290H 61 - 90 days 13
#o0H Over 90 days 8
231

FEU R R Z REE A AR B R - A
SEZERSMNERSM  WAERZE
WERT EEFEZEERAR-

M2010F12A31H @ E B W EREZ
JiE WS BR 3 59,8008 78 7T (20094 : 3,2008
BIT) e THEBEPERT I EER
R RBIHRE D 2 REATIAT

The carrying amount of trade receivables are stated
approximately at fair value. There is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large
number of internationally dispersed customers.

As at December 31, 2010, trade receivables of HK$98 million
(2009: HK$32 million) were past due but not impaired. These
related to a number of customers for whom there had been
no recent history of default. Their ageing analysis from the
due date is as follows:

58
Group
(X FEETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
0Z30H 0 - 30 days 13
#30H Over 30 days 19
32

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

25. R AR AR I E Al B Wk (4]
(b) P& Uk BR X 89 3R 1B

FEUBR KRR B 18 TIIABEERF A
AR BRJEAN R B3R /8 IR B AR GR A M B 1R
o EWBERT  REBESEXERK

FARFEBENED (BIESTREEES
BB

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment loss in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components,

is as follows:
%8
Group
(X BEE TREN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
®1A1H At January 1 5
PN g Provision for the year -
Mm12H31H At December 31 5

118 51 2 35 &Y Mk R 0 B 1 3R B R IR B
MEP KEEEN GBI YR A
o AR B R R ERERRE -
AEBYEREBRFTH TAERSD -

26. R4

The individually impaired receivables relate to customers that
are in financial difficulties and management assesses that
only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts were
recognized.The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.
26. SHARE CAPITAL

(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
EE: Authorized:
2,000,000,000/% 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of

SHREES.OBIIZ T @R 5.0 HK cents each 100
ERTRE2EHE: Issued and fully paid:
1,496,068,518/% 1,496,068,518 ordinary shares

(20094 : 1,491,646,518/%) (2009: 1,491,646,518 ordinary

BREES.08Il Bk shares) of 5.0 HK cents each 75

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& ®nEKBRABERAA
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RAFER  BRITRAZEHBERET:

B 35 8 AR Y B
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Details of the movement in the issued share capital during the year
are set out below:

BHZA

Number of shares
2009

1,491,646,518

1,491,646,518

FREES.08 2 LBk Ordinary shares of 5.0 HK cents each
»1A1E At January 1

BTG Issue of shares

»m2F31H At December 31

(a) BT (a) Issue of shares

BRANE ZERESE RARIRAFE
NEBRERSEATEERENR T 2%
Pl 21T SR EES.08 1Lz 3T & mAR AR
19 4,422 000f% -

AR ET 2 AR EAD A
B RARNES S AN AR SHS-

(b) BREEHR

B 82 W E RA R TBRAR A
B2 BBEERNF14SEE147E -

(o) EERAD

A B R AR A [ PO A B B A (AR 15

(d) —HEEZEHQTFEFEENRS
R2010%F12A31H  —HE 4l A 7

¥ H AR A1,800,0000% & i@ A% i
(20094 : 1,800,0000%) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company, the
Company issued 4,422,000 new ordinary shares of 5.0 HK
cents each in the capital of the Company to option-holders
who exercised their rights attached to share options during
the year.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company ranked
pari passu with the then existing shares of the Company in all
respects.

(b) Share option information

A summary of the share option scheme and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the year
are set out on pages 143 to 147.

(c) Repurchase of shares

During the year, the Company did not repurchase any of its
shares.

(d) Shares held by a jointly controlled company

As at December 31, 2010, 1,800,000 ordinary shares (2009:
1,800,000 shares) were held by a jointly controlled company.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
/R EBRAERLNF
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27. #1E 27. RESERVES
2010F 12831 NEB N KRR Z H#HiE The reserves of the Group and the Company as at December 31,
DT 2010 are analyzed as follows:
£8 NG|
Group Company

(U BEETREN) (In HK$ millions)

BARER Contributed surplus

BAME R EE Capital redemption reserve

Btn s B Share premium

EIREREE Share options reserve

] Exchange reserve

Hib s Other reserves

AHEZSRERE Available-for-sale financial assets

fE reserve
BETF s A Retained profits
BORAE R Proposed final and
FRIR S (7 14(a)) special dividends (note 14(a))

B Total reserves

RAEBRARBZHBABKRDIEAEREER The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company represents

MEEZERRE  MEBEEHDBEN1995F credit arising from a group reorganisation pursuant to a scheme of

S5A20R =X 2 st Bl fET - RIBEBRE arrangement which was completed on May 29, 1995. Under the

1981 FE R Ak (K1&E]) B A BB DI T Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) the contributed

PR EE o surplus is distributable to the shareholders.

HEmEEz2TEBEFBEO T : Details of the main items in other reserves are as follows:

() WIEFPRKESBEENLTBER  F (@) According to the relevant laws and financial regulations, the
KEZHB AR Z EZTHEES AR statutory reserve funds of the subsidiaries in China Mainland
METEERE (W0F) RIS INZEY may be used to make up prior years’ losses, if any, and to
B ARl ERE- increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

130 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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27. %4 (4&)

(o) RIEFREBRGRBRSEAN LEEFXE
R RBREZ KREF QB ZEE R
BEREMRBEBIRIATARERERK
BEEREIBEES MARTAERERE
K3 o

© WIEMRAKANEREEAT A
FREB A ER Y ML AT ER RS
He  BREFERTIN NaEDBL 2 A °

28. EAEH 18
ELHERAEEEARCEEEERERR

BRDEER ZHEMIERBBE -

AEERFANECHEEERBBEZE
(R — &R 2 R IERT) 0T

B 7% R R Y EE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27.

28.

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

RESERVES (continued)

(b) In accordance with the Korean Tax Incentive Limitation Law
and Korean Commercial Code, the statutory reserve fund
and other reserves of the jointly controlled company in the
Republic of Korea may only be used to offset a future deficit
or be transferred to capital stock, but not for cash dividends.

(c) According to the United Arab Emirates Commercial
Companies Law, the statutory reserve fund of the associate in
United Arab Emirates is not available for distribution except as
provided in the Federal Law.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions.

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)
during the year is as follows:

EiERHIE (BE) /1BE Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
iz
BiNE RARZ
Accelerated BRER
accounting  Unremitted Hitr &%

(UEEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) depreciation profits Others Total
#0101 A1 At January 1, 2010 (1) 76 5) 60
HEES Translation difference - 2 @ -
HMEEG HE Effect on change in tax rates - - - -
REEERF (GTA)/ (Credited)/charged to income

5% statement 1) 26 (9) 16
RERPHX Charged to equity - - 3 3
R2010F12A31H At December 31, 2010 (12) 104 (13) 79
2200941 A1 At January 1, 2009 ) 76 (18) 51
BEES Translation difference - 6 - 6
HMEEZE PE Effect on change in tax rates - (13) 1 (12)
REEERF (GTA)/ (Credited)/charged to

5% income statement (4) 7 7 10
RERPHE Charged to equity - - 5 5
#2009F12A31R At December 31, 2009 (1) 76 (5) 60

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &
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28. EEBIIR (&)

28. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

132

EERE(EE) /&8E (&)

FAREZTITNELHEAARNR S RYE
KT — B RR 2 RERINE N B 5l
BZBE-

AEBBABRELERIBEES 70088 T
(2009F 1 14BBT) T ERMNFIB - 11k
EABRECEHBEEE $2,0008 8 T
(20094 : 6,1008 7 0) #57A20105F 12 A31 H iR
1Z10FAEM - R T 2D E2HBMNEE
BIM BN R 2 IR EABIIE S B -

EERMFA T  BRTEREHRS &R —i
HE  EERBEEA RN AR EEM
K- T EBEEBEFABERBER REH
BERBERAIIE-

REEZR CRERECETENMBARZAD
K2 BIEREF 2 MBHBENECHRBEGAR
1,80085 7% 7T (20094 : ) -

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities (continued)

The deferred taxation charged to equity during the year comprised
the tax on the unrealized exchange gain of a long-term loan to a
subsidiary.

The Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets of
HK$67 million (2009: HK$114 million) arising mainly from tax
losses. These unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent of
HK$20 million (2009: HK$61 million) will expire within 1 to 10 years
from December 31, 2010. The remaining portion is mainly related
to the losses of subsidiaries in Australia and Germany which has
no expiry date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax liabilities of HK$18 million
(2009: nil) have been recognized for the withholding tax that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of the PRC subsidiaries.

£
Group
(UFEFETHEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
B IBEE Deferred tax assets (22)
BEXERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 82
60

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& n BB R 2 7
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201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

3 AT
Group Company

(U BEETREN) (In HK$ millions)

JERTBR K Trade payables

HENRRENER Other payables and accrued
expenses

RHHH Long-term portion

"D Current portion

VAR A B AN BR R 2 Bl ik 0 4T

(ABEEETHEN) (In HK$ millions)
0%30H 0 - 30 days
31E60H 31 - 60 days
61Z90H 61 - 90 days

JEN BR R Z BREE KA R FAEFI AR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &

The carrying amount of trade payables are stated approximately at
fair value.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 133
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30. FREBEE

REBZ FRBDEEERDEENRAB A
F o ANEE H20105F R2009F 2 F R E E
2B 513.85@ B T R 10.47(EB T - AR AR
20104 R2009F 2 FRB A E H 5l R4 718
BT R3.42BF T o

N1.EERABHRABERS

RNEEBF2010%F K2009F 7 & E AR R 7
FBED R A26.01EH T k2283 B Lo
RARR0I0F 2 EERENRABARER
17.31127% 7T * 20094 Bl &16.0618 7 7T

NRBERBEEBEEFZOM

30.

31.

32.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

The Group’s net current assets, defined as current assets less
current liabilities, amounted to HK$1,385 million and HK$1,047 million
in 2010 and 2009 respectively. The Company’s net current
assets was HK$470 million and HK$342 million in 2010 and 2009
respectively.

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

The Group’s total assets less current liabilities amounted to
HK$2,601 million and HK$2,283 million in 2010 and 2009
respectively. The Company’s total assets less current liabilities
was HK$1,731 million in 2010 compared with HK$1,606 million in
2009.

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

&8 YN
Group Company

(U BEETHEN) (In HK$ millions)

ReRBTET Cash and bank balances

R AR Less: Bank deposits with maturity
Z{EA M EEH over three months from
2 RATE BTE K date of deposits

REBM F2RE RIRTETFTBIESES.260E
BT (2009F :3.83BE L) CARBER SR
RITHETF-

RERETE T R ERRH X 52.4% (20095
2.0%)  ZEFRFRHHRAZN=EA -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& R B AR 2 F

Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group are cash
and bank balances totaling HK$526 million (2009: HK$383 million)
denominated in Renminbi.

The effective interest rate on bank deposits of the Group was

2.4% (2009: 2.0%); these deposits have an average maturity of
more than 3 months.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &
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(L EEETREN)

B %5 8RR Y R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 A31H
December 31, 2010

33. BANK LOANS

DT

Company

(In HK$ millions) 2009

RERTER (EER)

Short-term bank loans (unsecured) 57

AEBEZERRTERNERF X 52.0%
(20095 :1.7%) ~ZFRITERZ FHE
HRAIHR=MEA-

M. EHBEERERME

The effective interest rate of Group’s short term bank loans was
2.0% (2009: 1.7%); these bank loans have an average maturity of
less than 3 months.

34. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT
(U BEZETHAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
(a) HE-HEAR (a) Disposal of a subsidiary
cHB s RERE Cash consideration received -
HEBEZ2EEFE Net assets disposed of:
JRE LS BR 3R e L At R Trade and other receivables -
BITEBRERE Bank balances and cash
EME equivalents -

FE A BRI L A A K

Trade and other payables

W EZ AR E R
BREL B

Less: Expense related to the disposal
Realization of exchange reserve

HE—MBRARER 2 EE

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

HE-MEBATIMSIBZES

Analysis of the net cash outflow

HREFEZSN: in respect of the disposal of
a subsidiary:
BB 2R RE Cash consideration received
W ERITER Less: Bank balances and
3k cash disposed of
HEZEBER Expenses related to the disposal

HE—MBARMSIBZ Analysis of the net cash outflow

Be&mbFE oM from the disposal a subsidiary

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& nEBAERQF

135



136

T

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201012 H31H
December 31, 2010

M.EHRAERERWE (&)

MR2010%12H23H * & B #E A Giordano
Fashions (India) Private Limited ([ Giordano
India | ) #950.9% X7 - ¥ {E800& % It °

W FTE A 2 EmE5008 8L KEMBE AN
BPE - AN AEE EGiordano Indiafk B
EEEBRTBHELEMNEBENZ -

R BEBRPTARMAEH - TRBES
SXNHEEMAEREE RSB ANEEMARE
MBERENALERES A BAFEHEREN
REFEE

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& n BB R 2 7

34. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (continued)

On December 23, 2010, the Group acquired 50.9% of the share
capital of Giordano Fashions (India) Private Limited (“Giordano
India”) for HK$8 million.

The goodwill of HK$5 million arising from the acquistion is
attributable to acquired customer base and economies of scale
expected from combining the operatings of the group and
Giordano India.

None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes. The following table summarises the
consideration paid for Giordano India and the amounts of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognised at the
acquisition date, as well as the fair value at the acquisition date of
the non-controlling interests in Giordano India.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &
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34. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued)

2009

(U BEBTHREN) (In HK$ millions)

(b) WE—MHWEALE (b) Acquisition of a subsidiary
Bz REE: Net assets acquire of:
ERY 1Y Property, plant and equipment
& Inventories

B M B 5 2 L A B R
=B A A L2
ZRITER
RITERERSFE
FE A B 0 B L At B £ 3R

Trade and other receivables

Bank deposits with maturity over three
months

Bank balances and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

IS

Non-controlling interests

WHEmEEZBE Goodwill on acquisition
ReRERBE Total cash consideration
WE—-HBARMSI %z Analysis of the net cash outflow

BEeEREFEIN: in repect of the acquisition

of a subsidiary:

NBREKE Cash consideration paid
Fri s 2 RIT4ETF Bank balances and cash

kE& acquired

Wl — M B A A A sl Bl
R Rt FE 20N

Analysis of the net cash outflow from
acquisition of a subsidiary

EWEFRAMEMERZINAFEEES
1,0008 870 LB IERFEE B4008B TH
FEUBR N -

AEBEEZERNKRBENEBGLEEFHEER
FEFR B MR A

20105612 A23H #£ > Giordano India ¥
AEFEZHEE T HEEMER -

R #& Giordano IndiafA2010F181HEE A

PEARR - BRI R E EBS 2152,2008
BT MER30E AT

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &

The fair value of trade and other receivables is HK$10 million and
includes trade receivables with a fair value of HK$4 million.

The Group has chosen to recognize the non-controlling interests at
its proportionate share of net assets for this acquisition.

Giordano India did not contribute any revenue or profit to the
Group since December 23, 2010.

Had Giordano India been consolidated from January 1, 2010,
the consolidated income statement would include turnover of
HK$22 million and loss of HK$0.3 million.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& W EKRBERAA
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35. &I
REPE 2 &KE

(a)

M2010F 128318 AEE KA R A 5
TEEH AR IREERZAARN
ARBEzEEHENSERNBEESR
BT

35. COMMITMENTS

Commitments under operating leases

(@)

As at December 31, 2010, the Group and the Company had
future aggregate minimum lease charges payable under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of retail shops, office
premises, factories and warehouses as set out below:

3 YN
Group Company
(U EEETBEN) (In HK$ millions)
1ER Within 1 year
1F R ESFR After 1 year but within 5 years
5% E Over 5 years

KEHEANEETRERGS He Rk
FtipERERE - E T ZKEHEER
SHREBEZERBESHAHERTE
ZHE (UBBERE) - Ll AETIIZ
REREEHSHE -

A2010F12A310 » REE & AR A5t
TEIRGH R TR 2 NI R RS 2 &
L2HENREERBASRANT

The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and
renewal rights. The operating lease rentals of certain outlets
are based on the higher of a minimum guaranteed rental or a
sales level based rental. The minimum guaranteed rental has
been used to arrive at the above commitments.

As at December 31, 2010, the Group and the Company has
future aggregate minimum lease income receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of retail shops
and factories as set out below:

%8 27
Group Company
(UEEETRENL) (In HK$ millions)
1E R Within 1 year
152 After 1 year but
5F R within 5 years

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& ®EBRABERAA
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36. E AR EIE 36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
A2010%F &2009F 12 A31H » REE AR As at December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company
FIWEBENEEYMERE EAEBRAZTRE have no capital commitment in respect of leasehold improvement,
ZEREE- furniture and fixtures.

J7.EEEBALIRS 37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
BB AT B BELEH S —F it Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
EETBRESBAERHERE -7 ERY directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
27 AN+ o HEZ M AT M AE AT significant influence over the other party in making financial and
BHZ AT EBEBEAL- operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related

if they are subject to common control or common significant
influence.

(a) RAEERN AEEETHBATIR K (a) During the year, certain subsidiaries traded with jointly
REFEEBBREEETHEZESHAAR controlled companies and an associate in the ordinary
—HENRETERR D BHEZERS and usual course of business. Details relating to these
EES (N transactions are as follows:

58
Group
(UXEBETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
HER: Sales to:
— HEEH QA a jointly controlled company 104
=N an associate 146
250
P12 831 8 /e BB A TR Amounts due from/to these related parties at December 31
are:
#E
Group
(X EFEBTHEN) (In HK$ millions) 2009
JREU B e A £ RIE Amounts due from:
—HEES QA a jointly controlled company 8
— A A an associate 11
19
FEASTRAESE A - 50E Amounts due to:
—HEESI QA a jointly controlled company 1
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 139
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JIN.EEEBALRE (&)

(a) M2010%12A31H eI R A T2 fE
MR A TS FEE 9 Bl R B 7E B URER
RREMERK - B R ER KBS AR

BN EE R

(b) EXEEERMN

EERREZERERRFOUBE
HO 2 70 B T SRR BT FE 1 OB R ©

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(a) As at December 31, 2010, the amounts due from related
parties and amounts due to related parties are reflected
in trade receivables and other payables respectively. The

receivables and payables are unsecured in nature and bear no

interest.

(b) Key management compensation

The directors regard the five highest paid individuals as
the key management of the Group whose remuneration is

disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements.

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

as at December 31, 2010:

BERTR2BERE
RAEMER
Issued and fully paid
share capital

or registered capital

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

TEER/CEHE
Principal activities/
place of operation

38.TEME T
RARR2010F12A31B Z X EWE A A
LU
BERGZ
EEERES
MEARER B B Effective
Name of Place of percentage of
subsidiary incorporation equity holding
2009
EHRERDA" EE 100
Bluestar Exchange Limited* Hong Kong
RERNESAERAA EE 100
Bluestar Exchange Worldwide Hong Kong
Limited*
East Jean Limited* 0 100
Hong Kong
Giordano (Australia) Pty. Limited* & 86
Australia

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

140 s s waEmsr 23

3,000,000
BREBIETZEER
3,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$1 each

650,000/
BREBIETZEER

650,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

100,0008%
BREBIETZ EBR

100,000 ordinary shares of
HK$10 each

700,000/
BREGBIRTZEER

700,000 ordinary shares of
AUD1 each

BETERDHRER
E#HAm/EER

Retail and distribution of apparel
and accessories/Hong Kong

RETEREREMAR/EE
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Taiwan

RETEREREMAR/EE
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Taiwan

METERERERARRN
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Australia

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 &



38.TEMEBLAE (&)

HEAREE
Name of
subsidiary

R 3L i 2
Place of
incorporation

Giordano Fashions (India) Private
Limited*

ERRERAR"

Giordano Limited*

Giordano (M) Sdn. Bhd.

ERRFIBERRE"

Giordano (Macau) Limited*

Giordano Originals (Singapore)
Private Limited

PT. Giordano Indonesia*

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

B

India

Hong Kong

RS

Malaysia

g

Macau

g

Singapore

g

Indonesia

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BERBZ BRTR2BAR
EREs=® RAFMEAR
Effective Issued and fully paid FTEER/CEHE
percentage of share capital Principal activities/
equity holding or registered capital place of operation
2009

100

100

100

100

40

10,000,000/
BREBINEELL 2 ERAR

10,000,000 ordinary shares of
INR10 each

50,000%
BREEI00E T2 EERK

50,000 ordinary shares of
HK$100 each

500,000%
BREESRATHIT
ZERR

500,000 ordinary shares of
RM1 each

50,00032 9
DR EHER K
MOP50,000 represented
by 2 quotas

1,900,002 i3 7T
$$1,900,002

1,500%
SREE1,000,00060 B &
ZEBRR

1,500 ordinary shares of
IDR1,000,000 each

KETERDERER
B A /e E

Retail and distribution of apparel
and accessories/India

BEZERDHEMRER
BEAm/ES

Retail and distribution of apparel
and accessories/Hong Kong

BETEREREBRAR/
BREDR

Retail of apparel and
accessories/Malaysia

EETERERERAR/RM
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Macau

BEZEREHMER
B 75 P8 am /%7 03

Retailing and trading of apparel
and accessories/Singapore

BT

ZERE RHR®
REEBER/ER
Retail of apparel, accessories
and related products/
Indonesia

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 141
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38.TEMEBLAE (&)

MEARARE FROL i 2
Name of Place of
subsidiary incorporation

RINEBHREB AR (M)
Shenzhen Tiger Garment Ltd.*

H B K B
China Mainland

(note)
REGCEERAF 3
Tiger Enterprises Limited Hong Kong
Walton International Ltd.* HEHS

Cayman Islands

Bt RAFRIEEELE
* EIBEFF B .2 18 2 7]

39. MBHREB

AEEHBRERON2011FIAMBEEES
B

142 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& ®EBRABERAA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BERGZ BRTR2BAR
ERES = RAFMEAR
Effective Issued and fully paid FTEER/CEHE
percentage of share capital Principal activities/
equity holding or registered capital place of operation
2009
100 210,100,000A K REER RERHERER
RMB210,100,000 BB dm /B R B
Investment holding,
manufacturing and retailing
of apparel and accessories/
China Mainland
100 1,000f% & @R REZR KREHRIEHRER
BREEIET R 7% /7 B K B
1,000 ordinary shares of Investment holding, trading
HK$1 each of garment products and
60,000,000/ & 1% ERERE T ik provision of management
BREB1ET services/China Mainland
60,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$1 each
100 102BEREEIETZ EBR BRBHEENE

102 ordinary shares of US$1 each  Licensing of trademarks

Note: This is wholly foreign owned enterprise

* Subsidiaries held indirectly

39. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors
on March 24, 2011.
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(2) EER/AL

(i)
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(i)

@ CAESXAREAEE (THE
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(b) EBEHREZERMA:
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FANEEEANKE TR AR R
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EHZFTBA
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XBEAEER REKRK

(o) EMALHERREHE ERAE
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BREEHN
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Summary of the share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)

is as follows:

(1) Purpose

As incentives or rewards for the contribution or potential

contribution to the Group from the selected eligible persons.

(2) Eligible persons

(i)

(i

(i)

(@) any director or proposed director (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive
director), employee or proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for;

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any controlling shareholder or any company

controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder:

(@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to,

(d) any customer of, or

(e) any landlord or tenant (including any sub-tenant) of;

and, for the purposes of the Scheme, shall include any

company controlled by one or more persons belonging to any
of the above classes of eligible persons.
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Maximum number of shares

As at March 24, 2011, the maximum number of shares available
for issue is 44,113,851, representing approximately 3% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to any eligible person (including
canceled, exercised and outstanding options), in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date on
or after the date on which the option is granted as the directors
may determine in granting the option and expiring at the close of
business on such date as the directors may determine in granting
the option but in any event shall not exceed ten years from the
date of grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the
grant of the option is accepted).

Acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is
HK$1.00.

Basis of determining the option exercise price

The option price per share payable on the exercise of an option is
to be determined by the directors provided always that it shall be
at least the higher of:

()  the closing price of the shares on the date of offer;

(i) the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(i) the nominal amount of a share.

The remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme remains in force until January 24, 2012.
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BREZ22E MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS
RARNEER AAFBREZSEHFSHIWOT During the year, movements of the Company's share options are set
out below:
BREHA
Number of share options
REFER
R20106  REAFER  REAFER THIKY 120105
1A1H R it Canceled/ 12A31A SRITEE
2 Granted Exercised lapsed 2t Exercise
BERAL Balance as at during during during Balance as at price RLAH TS
Eligible person 01/01/2010 the year the year the year 12/31/2010 per share Date of grant Exercisable period
B (A/8/%) (A/8/%F)
HKS  (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)
B3
Director
2B 600,000 - - - 600,000 3.520 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter 600,000 - - - 600,000 3.840 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
600,000 - - - 600,000 4.160 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
BN%Z 1,666,000 - - - 1,666,000 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2003 - 04/07/2012
MAH Chuck On, Bernard 1,666,000 - - - 1,666,000 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2004 - 04/07/2012
1,668,000 - - - 1,668,000 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2005 - 04/07/2012
400,000 - - - 400,000 3.520 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
400,000 - - - 400,000 3.840 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
400,000 - - - 400,000 4.160 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
6,200,000 - - - 6,200,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B #F R E K ER LA

145



146

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION
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MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

EREZA
Number of share options
REFER
R20105  REAFER  REFER FHIEH 20105
1A1R R 1% Canceled/ 12A31A BROTEE
2% Granted Exercised lapsed 2% Exercise
RERAL Balance as at during during during Balance as at price REBH Gl
Eligible person 01/01/2010 the year the year the year 12/31/2010 per share  Date of grant Exercisable period
BT (H/A/E) (B/A/E)
HKS  (MMDD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)
BEANES 1,026,000 - - 194,000 832,000 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2003 - 04/07/2012
Continuous Contract Employees 1,148,000 - - 194,000 954,000 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2004 - 04/07/2012
1,246,000 - - 202,000 1,044,000 4.650 04/08/2002  04/08/2005 - 04/07/2012
333,000 - - 333,000 - 2.795 02/05/2003  02/05/2004 - 02/04/2013
333,000 - - 333,000 - 2.795 02/05/2003  02/05/2005 - 02/04/2013
502,000 - 168,000 334,000 - 2.795 02/05/2003  02/05/2006 - 02/04/2013
194,000 - 66,000 12,000 116,000 2.650 06/10/2003  06/10/2004 - 06/09/2013
260,000 - 102,000 18,000 140,000 2.650 06/10/2003  06/10/2005 - 06/09/2013
524,000 - 242,000 32,000 250,000 2.650 06/10/2003  06/10/2006 - 06/09/2013
64,000 - 20,000 20,000 24,000 2.785 08/20/2003  08/20/2004 - 08/19/2013
4,000 - - - 4,000 2.785 08/20/2003  08/20/2005 - 08/19/2013
6,000 - - - 6,000 2.785 08/20/2003  08/20/2006 - 08/19/2013
6,000 - - - 6,000 3.300 09/19/2003  09/19/2004 - 09/18/2013
6,000 - - - 6,000 3.300 09/19/2003  09/19/2005 - 09/18/2013
28,000 - - - 28,000 3.300 09/19/2003  09/19/2006 - 09/18/2013
614,000 - - 166,000 448,000 4.500 06/16/2004  06/16/2005 - 06/15/2014
616,000 - - 166,000 450,000 4.500 06/16/2004  06/16/2006 - 06/15/2014
620,000 - - 168,000 452,000 4.500 06/16/2004  06/16/2007 - 06/15/2014
28,000 - - - 28,000 4.235 08/17/2004  08/17/2005 - 08/16/2014
34,000 - - - 34,000 4.235 08/17/2004  08/17/2006 - 08/16/2014
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 4.305 09/30/2004  09/30/2004 - 09/29/2014
110,000 - - - 110,000 4.875 12/30/2004  12/30/2004 - 12/29/2014
2,374,000 - 226,000 144,000 2,004,000 3.896 11/27/2007  11/27/2008 - 11/26/2017
2,374,000 - 80,000 144,000 2,150,000 3.896 11/27/2007  11/27/2009 - 11/26/2017
2,476,000 - - 180,000 2,296,000 3.896 11/27/2007  11/27/2010 - 11/26/2017
96,000 - 32,000 - 64,000 3.896 01/23/2008  01/23/2009 - 01/22/2018
96,000 - 32,000 - 64,000 3.896 01/23/2008  01/23/2010 - 01/22/2018
108,000 - - - 108,000 3.896 01/23/2008  01/23/2011 - 01/22/2018
19,018,000 - 3,222,000 3,012,000 12,784,000 3.520 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
6,352,000 - 96,000 960,000 5,296,000 3.840 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
6,352,000 - 136,000 960,000 5,256,000 4160 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
- 4,950,000 - - 4,950,000 3.340 07/07/2010  03/25/2011 - 06/30/2020
- 9,900,000 - - 9,900,000 3.340 07/07/2010 Note 1 - 06/30/2020
- 14,850,000 - - 14,850,000 3.340 07/07/2010 Note 2 - 06/30/2020
- 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000 4.502 10/08/2010  03/25/2011 - 06/30/2020
- 3,400,000 - - 3,400,000 4.502 10/08/2010 Note 1 - 06/30/2020
- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 4.502 10/08/2010 Note 2 - 06/30/2020
47,948,000 39,700,000 4,422,000 7,572,000 75,654,000
Hit 1,460,000 - - - 1,460,000 4150 01/27/2004  01/27/2005 - 01/26/2014
Others 1,640,000 - - - 1,640,000 4.975 12/29/2004  12/29/2004 - 12/28/2014
3,100,000 - - - 3,100,000
A
Total 59,048,000 39,700,000 4,422,000 7,572,000 86,754,000

Note 1: the day after 2011 final results announcement
Note 2: the day after 2012 final results announcement
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& m BB R 2 7

Mat1 2011 F2FREENTEH
Wiit2 : 2012F 2 FRERNTHEH

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #



BRhrEz28 (H)
S

1. BEAKNERSETRZBREREEZTEA
B2 I8 -F1GR (Y T 1B #34.618 T °

2. R2010%F12H31H.2 T 1B 54.53F 7T °

3. BRERLHAF—XZROKTEWT

RHBRER

B—Xx2Z

BRERHH FRERGKTE
2010F7H7H 3.33& T
2010%1058H 4.50/% T

BREEE

R2O10FMREFER L 2 BREZ SR AF(EE
7 B 730.402/8 7T ° 2 A FEETIRAA 7 o &7 8
Hrim e ER L YRR BRAN T Z REREIE

ars

ER R R 2.3% (R HHZ T FHIME

ESBEFHARNER)

SERED N fE 5 % B P E % A33. 2751
SEEEN T fE SR8 A39.4% & 45.5%
JEHA A +4F

B e iR M E EEA MR B B G L E
BRORGBEIAEHEBEZ AREERARZ AT
BE U ZHBREERATERFETEEE
BERREE 2RBEHARERE THZEER
BEHORECAESOSEBREZ AT EEENX
BER¥E-

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 & #

BREEN
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Notes:

~

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately
before the date on which the options were exercised by the
Continuous Contract Employees was HK$4.61.

2. The market value per share as at December 31, 2010 was
HK$4.53.

3. The closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on
which the options were granted were as follows:

Closing price per share

immediately before

Date of grant the date of grant
July 7, 2010

October 8, 2010

HK$3.33
HK$4.50

VALUATION OF SHARE OPTIONS

The fair value per share option granted during the financial year 2010
was HK$0.402. The fair value of each option granted was estimated on
the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with
the following assumptions:
Risk-free interest rate 2.3%, being the approximate yield of
ten-year Exchange Fund Note on the
grant date

Expected dividend Average historical dividends of 33.2
HK cents per share

39.4% - 45.5% based on historical
volatility

Expected volatility

Expected life ten years

The Black-Scholes option pricing model is developed to estimate the
fair value of publicly traded options that have no vesting restrictions and
are fully transferable. In addition, such option pricing model requires
input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock
price volatility. Any changes in the subjective input assumptions may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.
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IMPORTANT DATES

Closure of Register of Members

June 7, 2011 to June 9, 2011
(both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting

June 9, 2011

Dividends

Interim Dividend
Special Interim Dividend
Paid on
Proposed Final Dividend
Proposed Special Final Dividend
Payable on

STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Bloomberg
Reuters

4.5 HK cents per share
4.0 HK cents per share
September 24, 2010
7.0 HK cents per share
11.5 HK cents per share
June 24, 2011

709
709 HK
0709.HK

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

William YUE

Director of Corporate and External Affairs

Giordano International Limited

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2746 4668
Facsimile (852) 2370 8864
e-mail

WEBSITE

www.giordano.com.hk

investorrelations@giordano.com.hk
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